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Dear Shareholders,

| was delighted to be appointed as the Chairman of
your Company in September, 2020. It gives me
great pleasure and immense pride in placing
before you the 28th Annual Report of your
Company for the financial year 2020-21.

The Covid-19 pandemic has impacted most
countries, including India. This resulted in
countries announcing lockdown and quarantine
measures that sharply stalled economic activity.
Several countries took unprecedented fiscal and
/ monetary actions to help alleviate the impact of the

crisis. Government of India had announced various
measures to support the economy during this period. The Reserve Bank of India had also announced several measures to
ease the financial system stress, including enhancing system liquidity, reducing interest rates, moratorium on loan
repayments for borrowers, asset classification standstill benefit to overdue accounts where a moratorium had been
granted amongst others to alleviate the economic stress induced by the pandemic which had an impact across sectors
that were already showing signs of a slowdown even before the outbreak.

Inspite of the adverse changes in market conditions impacting many large and small NBFCs and has forced many firms to
revisit their business models and assess their resilience, our growth had been noteworthy. The impact of this
unprecedented crisis would be remembered for a long time. It's a well-known fact that the real test of a business model is
in the times of adversity. Today, the world is facing an unprecedented challenge and the crisis is still unabated. This crisis
has shaken many businesses; brought the economy to complete halt and has affected many medium and small sized
entrepreneurs. As a firm, we are taking actions to support our people, their families, and our clients. | am proud of how our
people have reacted amidst these circumstances, demonstrating the resilience and resolve they put forth on a daily basis
on behalf of our clients.

Atthe heart of everything we do, we try to deliver excellent service, making customers connected with us, feel recognised,
respected and valued with each interaction. Over more than two decades of rich knowledge enables us to develop
products and services according to the specific needs of our customer across various locations. Our continues focused
on stringent credit norms has helped us in maintaining assets quality over the years. Quality and Profitability has been the
underlying philosophy that has guided your Company over the years and shall continue to do so in the future as well. As
always, preservation of asset quality will remain a key imperative.

We are constantly building on our existing strengths, while at the same time envisaging our business priorities to reach
new horizons of growth and opportunities and also re-assured stability and soundness in terms of overall business
performance by achieving profit before tax of X 1, 253.46 lakhs for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021.

COVID-19 has triggered the deepest global recession in decades. Uncertainty will likely prevail for an extended period.
According to the World Bank, the pandemic will result in contractions across the vast majority of emerging market and
developing economies. The Company is better placed in the NBFC space to capitalise on the opportunities that will
emerge in what will possibly be a totally new business environment. The Company is well placed to leverage the
opportunity.

During the year under review, Mr. Udai Kothari had resigned from the post of Chairman & Managing Director of the
Company, after serving over three years on the Board. | would like to thank him for his support and wise counsel and wish
him well in the future. Furthermore, | have the good fortune and privilege to serve this great Company as a Chairman. With
the huge opportunities ahead, | am very excited about the future and sincerely believe that U. Y. Fincorp Limited best days
are yettocome.

At U. Y. Fincorp Limited, employees are an integral part of the organization's journey isn't a trite saying. Every HR strategy
that we adopt, aims at helping employees contribute at the highest, perform at their peak by building the right skills,
eliciting the right attitude. In an increasingly competitive market for talent, the Company continues to focus on attracting
and retaining right talent. It is committed to provide right opportunities to employees to realise their potential. Your
Company focuses on widening organisational capabilities and improving organisational effectiveness by having a
competent and engaged workforce. Our people are our partners in progress and employee empowerment has been
critical in driving our organisation's growth to the next level.

On behalf of the Board and on my own behalf, | place on record my sincere appreciation and gratitude to our Bankers, RBI,
SEBI, MCA, Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, Registrar of Companies, Stock Exchanges, Depositories, Customers,
Business Associates & Auditors for their continued support and the confidence they have reposed in the Company. |
record my special appreciation of the tireless efforts of Team U. Y., a dedicated and loyal band of people who have
displayed unswerving commitment to their work in these challenging times and helped the Company deliver strong
results. | owe my gratitude to the Company's valuable shareholders for their continued patronage & co-operation and seek
their continued support and co-operation in future.

Sincerely,

Sd/-

Deepak Kothari

(Chairman & Managing Director)
(DIN:- 00280323)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 28th Annual General Meeting of the Members of U. Y. Fincorp Limited (Formerly known as
Golden Goenka Fincorp Limited) will be held on Wednesday, the 29th day of September 2021 at 11:30 AM through Video
Conferencing ("VC") / Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM"), to transact the following businesses :

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. Toreceive, consider and adopt-

(@) The Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 together with the
report of the Board of Director’s and Auditor’s thereon.

(b) The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 together with
the report of the Auditor's thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Deepak Kothari (DIN: 00280323) who retire by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as a SPECIAL
RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V and all other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s), amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force), approval of the members be and is hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Mr. Dinesh Burman (DIN:
00612904) as Whole-time Director of the Company, for a period of 3 (three) years with effect from May 30, 2021 at a
remuneration and on the terms and conditions set out below:-

A. Basic Salary- ¥17000/- per month
B. Perquisites & Allowances-
i. House Rent Allowance- 50% of the Basic Salary
ii. Medical Reimbursement -3 15000/-per annum
iii. Leave Travel Concession equalto 1(one)month Basic Salary
iv. Encashment of unavailed leave as per the Rules of the Company at the time of retirement/ cessation of service.

The said perquisites and allowances shall be evaluated wherever applicable, as per the Income Tax Act, 1961 or any rules
made there under [including any statutory modification(s), amendment(s) or re-enactment (s) thereof, for the time being in
force]. In absence of any such rules, perquisites and allowances shall be evaluated as per actuals.

The Whole-time Director shall not be paid any sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors of the
Company or any Committee(s) thereof.

The remuneration payable to the Whole-time Director by way of salary, perquisites and allowances shall not however
exceed the ceiling limit as prescribed under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors is entitled to
determine and revise the salary, perquisites and allowances payable to the Whole-time Director at any time, such that the
overall remuneration payable shall not exceed the aggregate limit as prescribed under Section |l of Part Il of Schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013.

The period of office of Mr. Dinesh Burman as Whole-time Director shall be liable to determination by retirement of
directors by rotation. However this will not constitute discontinuation in tenure of services of Mr. Dinesh Burman.

The tenure of employment of Mr. Dinesh Burman as Whole-time Director of the Company may be terminated by the
Company by giving notice of 45 days or payment of salary (Basic) in lieu thereof. In case, the Whole- time Director does
not wish to continue with the Company, he should serve a notice period of 90 days prior to date of leaving or should make
payment of salary (Basic) in lieu thereof.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained where in any financial year during the currency of tenure of the
Whole- time Director, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, then also he shall be paid salary,
allowances and perquisites as specified above as minimum remuneration in accordance with the applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Annual Report 2020-21
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (Contd.)

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all acts and take
all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as a SPECIAL
RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 12, 13 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 30 of
the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 (‘Rules') and other applicable provisions, if any (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), of the Act, and/or SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as may be amended from time to time, and subject to approval of Central
Government through Regional Director and such other approvals, permissions and sanction, as may be required under
the provisions of the said Act or under any other law for the time being in force or any statutory modification(s) or
amendment(s) thereof, consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to shift the Registered Office of the Company
from the State of West Bengal (i.e. from the jurisdiction of Registrar of Companies, Kolkata, West Bengal) to the State of
Maharashtra (i.e. to the jurisdiction of Registrar of Companies, Mumbai) and consequently Clause-Il of the Memorandum
of Association (MOA) of the Company be substituted by the following Clause II:

“ll. The registered office of the Company will be situated in the State of Maharashtra i.e. within the jurisdiction of
Registrar of Companies of Maharashtra at Mumbai”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT upon the approval of the Regional Director, and the aforesaid resolution becoming
effective, the Registered Office of the Company be shifted from the State of West Bengal (i.e. from the jurisdiction of
Registrar of Companies, Kolkata, West Bengal) to such place in the State of Maharashtra (i.e. to the jurisdiction of
Registrar of Companies, Mumbai) as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of Directors of the Company
(which term shall be deemed to include any person(s) authorized and/ or Committee which the Board may have
constituted or hereinafter constitute to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this Resolution), be and is
hereby authorised to agree to and make and accept such conditions, modifications and alterations stipulated by any one
of the authorities, statutory or otherwise, while according approval, consent as may be considered necessary and to
appoint counsels and advisors, file applications/ petitions, issue notice, advertisements, obtain orders of shifting of
Registered Office from the concerned authorities and take such steps and to do such acts, deeds and things as they may
deem necessary and proper in this matter.”

Registered Office: By Order of the Board
16 Strand Road Sd/-
9th Floor, Room No. 908B Deepak Kothari
Kolkata-700001 (Chairman & Managing Director)
Dated: 30th August, 2021 (DIN:-00280323)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (Contd.)

Notes:

1. Inview of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA') has vide its circular dated 5 May
2020 read with circulars dated 8 April 2020 and 13 April 2020 (collectively referred to as 'MCA Circulars') and SEBI
circular dated 12 May 2020 permitted holding of the annual general meeting (AGM') through VC/OAVM facility, without
the physical presence of the members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (the 'Act'), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the 'SEBI Listing
Regulations') and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM hereinafter called as
'e-AGM'. Hence member can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM.

2. The deemed venue for e-AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company at 16 Strand Road, Room No. 908B, 9"
Floor, Kolkata- 700 001.

3. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held
pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM facility, physical attendance of members has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for the e-AGM and hence the
Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

4. Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 10 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014 read with Regulation 42(5) of the Listing Regulations, the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will
remain closed from Thursday, the 23" day of September, 2021 to Wednesday, the 29" day of September, 2021 (both days
inclusive).

5.  Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify the change in their addresses to the Niche Technologies
Pvt. Ltd., Registrar and Share Transfer Agents at 3A Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata 700 017 or to
the Company and always quote their Folio No. in all correspondence.

6. AStatement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the Special Businesses to be transacted
atthe Meeting is annexed hereto.

7. Brief resume of Directors proposed to be appointed / re-appointed, nature of their expertise in specific functional areas,
names of companies in which they hold directorships and memberships / chairmanships of Board Committee(s),
shareholding and relationships between directors inter-se as stipulated under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is provided in the Corporate Governance Section forming
part of the Annual Report.

8. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its circular dated April 20, 2018 has mandated registration of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) and Bank Account details for all Members holding shares in physical form. Therefore,
the Members are requested to submit their PAN and Bank Account details to the Company at the Registered Office or to
M/s. Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd., the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company. In this regard, the
Members are requested to submit a duly signed letter along with self-attested copy of PAN Card(s) of all the registered
Members (including joint holders). Members are also requested to submit original cancelled cheque bearing the name of
the sole/first holder. In case of inability to provide the original cancelled cheque, a copy of Bank Passbook / Statement of
the sole / first holder duly attested by the Bank, not being a date earlier than one month may be provided. Members
holding shares in demat form are requested to submit the aforesaid documents to their respective Depository Participant
(8)-

9. As per Regulation 40(7) of the Listing Regulations read with Schedule VII to the said Regulations, for registration of
transfer of shares, the transferee(s) as well as transferor(s) shall mandatorily furnish copies of their Permanent Account
Number (PAN) Card. Additionally, for securities market transactions and / or for off market / private transactions involving
transfer of shares in physical mode for listed Companies, it shall be mandatory for the transferee(s) as well as transferor(s)
to furnish copies of PAN Card to the Company / RTA for registration of such transfer of shares. In case of transmission of
shares held in physical mode, it is mandatory to furnish a copy of the PAN Card of the legal heir(s) / Nominee(s).

10. Members desirous of making nomination in respect of their shareholding in the Company, as permitted under Section 72
of the Companies Act, 2013 may do so.

11. Pursuant to provisions of Investor Education and Protection Fund (Uploading of information regarding unpaid and
unclaimed amounts lying with Companies) Rules, 2012, the statement containing information of the unclaimed amounts
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING(Contd.)

of dividend lying with the Company as on the date of last Annual General Meeting i.e., 30" September, 2020 has been
uploaded on the website of the Company and necessary forms/returns have also been filed with the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.

12. In compliance with the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education
and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 ('IEPF Rules') as amended from time
to time, the company had already transferred the unpaid dividend amount of Rs. 60,552.20/- on 12.09.2019 to the
specified bank account of the IEPF, established by the Government of India with respect to the unpaid/unclaimed
dividend for the financial year 2012-13 which have not yet been encashed by the equity shareholders for seven
consecutive years from the Financial Year 2012-2013.

Further the Equity Shares in respect of which dividend w.r.t. the financial year 2012-2013 remains unclaimed / unpaid for
seven consecutive years or more, are required to be transferred to the Demat Account of the IEPF Authority. The
company is in process of transferred underlying Equity Shares on which dividends remained unpaid or unclaimed for a
period of seven consecutive years or more, to the Demat Account of IEPF Authority.

13. Allrelevant documents referred in the Notice and Explanatory Statement will be available for inspection by the members
at the Registered Office of the Company between 11:00 AM to 01:00 PM on any working day of the Company up to the
date of the Annual General Meeting.

14. Members desirous of getting any information in relation to the Company's Annual Report 2020-21 are requested to
address their query(ies) well in advance, i.e. at least 10 days before the Meeting, to the Company to enable the
Management to keep the information readily available at the Meeting.

15. In view of the prevailing COVID-19 pandemic situation, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its circular dated 5" May
2020 has exempted companies from sending Annual Reports in physical mode. Accordingly, an electronic copy of the
Annual Report is being sent to all the Members holding shares in dematerialised mode and whose e-mail addresses are
available with the Depository Participant(s) as well as to all the Members holding shares in physical mode whose e-mail
addresses are registered with the Company/RTA for communication purposes.

Procedure for obtaining the Annual Report, AGM notice as well as electronic voting (e-voting) instructions for Members
whose e-mail addresses are not registered with the depositories or with RTA is provided herein and also available on the
website of the Company. The report is also available on the Company's website, websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e.
BSE Limited and CSE Limited. In view of the exemptions provided, no physical or hard copies of the Notice and the
Annual Report will be sent to the shareholders who have not registered their e-mail addresses with the Company/RTA as
well as to those specifically requesting for physical copy of the documents.

Members holding shares in electronic form who have registered/not registered their e-mail address, mobile number,
address and bank details may please contact and validate/update their details with the Depository Participant. Members
may follow the process detailed herein for registration of e-mail addresses to obtain the Annual Report, Notice and the
login credentials for e-voting.

16. The Notice and Annual Report of the Company circulated to the Members of the Company will be made available on the
Company's website at www.uyfincorp.com

17. Under Rule 18 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, Members who have not registered
their e-mail address are requested to register the same with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent/
Depositories.

18. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015
and Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020, the Company is pleased to
provide members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-voting services. The facility of casting
the votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a place other than the venue of the AGM (“remote e-
voting”) will be provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

19. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the
AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING(Contd.)

include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without
restriction on account of first come first served basis.

20. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining
the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

21. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the
members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act,
2013, representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can
attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting.

22. Inline with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM
has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.uyfincorp.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the
websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited at www.bseindia.com and
www.cse-india.com respectively. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing
the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com.

23. The AGM has been convended through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA
Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. In continuation of this Ministry's General Circular No. 20/2020, dated 05th
May, 2020 and after due examination, it has been decided to allow companies whose AGMs were due to be held in the
year 2020, or become due in the year 2021, to conduct their AGMs on or before 31.12.2021, in accordance with the
requirements provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the General Circular No. 20/2020 as per MCA circular no. 02/2021 dated
January,13,2021.

24. Since the AGM is proposed to be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map of the venue has not been annexed to this
Notice.

25. The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

() The remote e-voting period commences on Sunday the 26" day of September, 2021 at 10:00 AM (IST) and ends on
Tuesday the 28" day of September, 2021 at 5:00 PM (IST). During this period, members of the Company, holding
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 22™ September, 2021, may cast
their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the
vote on aresolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

(i) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

(i) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed
entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders' resolutions.
However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders
is atanegligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This
necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to
enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat
accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast
their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but
also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

(iv) Interms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to
update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING(Contd.)

Pursuant to aforesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders
holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders | Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their
holding securitiesin existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page
Demat mode with CDSL | without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest
are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com
and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for
eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of
the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e.
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service
providers' website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home
page or click on https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system
will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in
the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders |  |fyou are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website
holding securities in of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
Demat mode with NSDL |  yRL:_https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon
under “Login” which is available under 'IDeAS' section. A new screen will open. You
will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will
be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under 'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will
be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting
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Type of shareholders

Login Method

Individual Shareholders
(holding securities in
demat mode) login
through their Depository
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After
Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget
Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depositoryi.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders
holding securitiesin
Demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a
request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-23058738 and
022-23058542/43.

Individual Shareholders

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a

holding securitiesin
Demat mode with NSDL

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than
individual holding in Demat form.
e Theshareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com during the voting period.
e Clickon “Shareholders” tab.
e Now EnteryourUserID
a. ForCDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c.  Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company,
Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier
voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

e Ifyouareafirsttime user follow the steps given below :

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat.

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both

demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

e Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are
requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank
Details OR
Date of Birth (DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your
demat account orinthe company records in order to login.

e |If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the
member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
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(vii) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However,
members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to
mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used
by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other Company on which they are eligible to vote, provided
that Company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password
with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(vii) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained
in this Notice.

(ix) Click onthe EVSN for the relevant Company Namei.e. U. Y. Fincorp Limited on which you choose to vote.

(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for
voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and
option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xi) Click onthe “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xii) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed.
If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly
modify your vote.

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
(xiv) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xv) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code
and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xvi) Additional Facility for Non- Individual shareholders and Custodians:

e Non- Individual Shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to
https://www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

e A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

o Afterreceiving the login details they have to create a compliance user which should be created using the admin
login and password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

e The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts
they would be able to cast their vote.

e A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

e Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter
etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to
the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address contact@uyfincorp.com, if they have voted from
individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(xvii) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs")
and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an e-mail to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact them at 1800 200 5533

26. PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE
DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED
IN THIS NOTICE:

1. ForPhysical shareholders :- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders :- Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant
(OP)
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28.

29.

3. For Individual Demat shareholders :— Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above
for e-voting.

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after
successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will not
be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance
during the meeting.

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a
speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 10 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at cs@uyfincorp.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak
during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 10 days prior to meeting mentioning their name,
demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at cs@uyfincorp.com. These queries will be replied
by the company suitably by email.

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask
questions during the meeting.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on
the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through
e-Voting system available during the AGM.

10. Ifany Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same shareholders
have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be
considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the
meeting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-
1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting.

2. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on
the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through
e-Voting system available during the AGM.

3. Ifany Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same shareholders
have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility , then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be
considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the
meeting.

4. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be
eligible to vote at the AGM.

Institutional Members / Bodies Corporate (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution / Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the
duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote through e-mail at kohli.prateek@gmail.com with a copy
marked to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com on or before 28" September, 2021 at 5:00 PM (IST) without which the vote
shall not be treated as valid.
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30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.
38.

39.

40.

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Company
as on the cut-off date of 22" September, 2021. A person who is not a member as on cut-off date should treat this notice
for information purpose only.

The notice of Annual General Meeting will be sent to the members, whose names appear in the register of members /
depositories as at closing hours of business on 20" August, 2021.

The shareholders shall have one vote per equity share held by them as on the cut-off date of 22™ September, 2021. The
facility of e-voting would be provided once for every folio/ client id, irrespective of the number of joint holders.

Since the Company is required to provide members the facility to cast their vote by electronic means, shareholders of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 22™ September, 2021
and not casting their vote electronically, may only cast their vote at the Annual General Meeting.

Investors who became members of the Company subsequent to the despatch of the Notice and holds the shares as on
the cut-off date of 22™ September, 2021 are requested to send the written / E-mail communication to the Company at
cs@uyfincorp.com by mentioning their Folio No./DP ID and Client ID to obtain the Login-ID and Password for e-voting.

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 30" August, 2021 appointed M/s. Prateek Kohli &
Associates, Company Secretaries as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process and voting at the AGM in a
fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer will submit, not later than 3 days of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated
Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman of the Company or a person
authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

The results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website www.uyfincorp.com
and on the website of CDSL. The same will be communicated to the listed stock exchanges viz. The BSE Limited and The
Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited.

A copy of this notice has been placed on the website of CDSL.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the e-Voting System, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact Mr. Nitin Kunder (022-23058738) or Mr. Mehboob
Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-23058542).

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager,
(CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M
Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or
callon 022-23058542/43.

Subject to the receipt of the requisite number of votes, the resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the
AGMi.e. September 29, 2021.

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Item No.3

The Board of Directors of the Company (the 'Board'), at its meeting held on 17" March, 2021 has, subject to the approval of
members, re-appointed Mr. Dinesh Burman as Whole-time Director of the Company for a period of 3 (three) years
commencing from 30" May, 2021 to 29" May, 2024 at the remuneration and terms and conditions recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 17" March, 2021.

It is proposed to seek the members' approval for the re-appointment of and remuneration payable to Mr. Dinesh Burman as
Whole-time Director in terms of the applicable provisions of the Act. The salient terms and conditions of the appointment are
setoutinthe Item No. 3 of the Notice.
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Information as required under Section Il of Part Il of Schedule V of the Act are as follows:-
l. GENERAL INFORMATION:-
(1) Nature of Industry
Non-Banking Finance Company
(2) Date orexpected date of commencement of commercial production

Your Company continues to carry on its business of Non Banking Financial Institution without accepting deposits.
The Company has complied with and continues to comply with all the prudent financial management norms and
directions issued by Reserve Bank of India as applicable to it.

(3) In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by
financial institutions appearing in the prospectus

Not Applicable

(4) Financial performance based on given indicators

(% in lakh)
Particulars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Gross Sales & Other Income 1,501.99 1,801.94
Profit after Tax 949.00 274.93
Equity Share Capital 9,511.92 9,511.92
Reserve and Surplus 14,631.76 13,740.79

(5) Foreigninvestments or collaborations, if any — NIL
Il. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE :
(1) Background details

Mr. Dinesh Burman, aged about 64 years is the Executive Director of our Company. He holds a bachelors' degree in
Science and a LLB from University of Calcutta. He was earlier associated with his own whole selling business in
household appliances of various brands since 1987. He has keen analytical skills and good communication &
interpersonal skills.

(2) PastRemuneration:- ¥2,29,500p.a. (FY 2020-21)
(8) Recognition or Awards

Mr. Dinesh Burman holds a bachelors' degree in Science and a LLB from University of Calcutta.
(4) Job profile and his suitability

Mr. Dinesh Burman plays a major role in providing thought leadership and strategic inputs to the Company in
addition to helping shape new business in the Company. Mr. Burman is responsible for the overall performance of
the Company. He has been instrumental in giving direction to the entire team of U. Y. Fincorp Limited and has been
responsible for monitoring their performance on regular basis.

(5) Remuneration proposed
As referred in the resolution.

(6) Comparative remuneration profile with respect to Industry, size of the Company, profile of the position and
person (in case of expatriates the relevant details would be w.r.t. the country of his origin).

Keeping in view the profile, enriched knowledge & experience of the appointee, the proposed remuneration is
justifiable and comparable with the prevailing remuneration being paid to the Whole-time Director of the Companies
operating in the same sector in this part of the country. The remuneration payable to Whole-time Director has been
considered by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company at their meeting held on March 17,
2021.
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He shall be looking after and responsible for the whole affairs of the respective areas of management and shall be
accountable to the Board of Directors of the Company.

(7) Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company, or relationship with the managerial
personnel if any

Mr. Dinesh Burman has no pecuniary relationship with the Company other than his remuneration as Whole-time
Director of the Company. Relationships in accordance with Accounting Standard -18 are disclosed in the Annual
Report.

There is no managerial personnel related to Mr. Dinesh Burman.
lll. OTHERINFORMATION:

(1) Reasons of loss orinadequate profit
The Company is engaged in non-banking financial activities. The margins in such industries traditionally are
subject to economic reforms and market conditions. Increasing inflation, domestic political uncertainty and global
economic condition contributes to the inadequacy of profit of the Company.

(2) Stepstaken orproposed to be taken forimprovement
The Company is taking steps to expand its business in all the areas of financing and related activities.

(8) Expectedincrease in productivity and profits in measurable terms
With the expansion plans of the Company in the area of financing and related activities the productivity of the
Company is expected to be in commensurate to the prevailing industry trend in this part of the country.

IV. DISCLOSURE:

1. Adraft resolution and detailed explanatory statement about the appointment and terms and conditions thereof of
Mr. Dinesh Burman is presented under the Notice convening the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

2. The details regarding remuneration package etc., of all other directors, are produced in the Corporate Governance
Report, annexed to the Directors' Report.

A copy of the resolution passed at the Meetings of the Board of Directors and Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
a copy of the agreement between the Company and Mr. Dinesh Burman in this connection will be kept open for inspection by
the Members at the Registered Office of the Company.

The appointment and remuneration payable to Mr. Dinesh Burman require approval of the members in terms of Schedule V
ofthe Act.

Except Mr. Dinesh Burman, none of the Directors, Manager, other Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are in
anyway concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the aforesaid Resolutions.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at tem No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the members.

The information as required pursuant to Listing Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial Standard on General Meeting givenin
Corporate Governance annexed to the Directors’ Report.

ItemNo. 4

The Company was incorporated under Companies Act, 1956 in the State of West Bengal. As per Clause Il of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company, the registered office of the Company is at present in the State of West Bengal
(i.e. within the jurisdiction of Registrar of Companies, Kolkata, West Bengal).

Considering the fact that the operational and business activities of the Company are undertaken from its Corporate Office
situated in Mumbai, Maharashtra and also that majority of the Directors of the Company are based in Mumbai, it is proposed
that the Registered Office of the Company be shifted from the State of West Bengal (i.e. from the jurisdiction of Registrar of
Companies, Kolkata, West Bengal) to the State of Maharashtra (i.e. to the jurisdiction of Registrar of Companies, Mumbai).
Such a change would enable the Directors to guide the Company more effectively and efficiently and also result in
operational convenience.

As per provisions of Section 12, 13 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder, such shifting of Registered Office requires alteration of the Memorandum of Association of the Company,
obtaining necessary approval of the Shareholders by way of Special Resolution and confirmation from Central Government
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through Regional Director or any other authority as may be prescribed, pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

A copy of the Memorandum of Association of the Company together with the proposed alterations as mentioned above
would be available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company.

None of the Promoters, Directors and Key Managerial Persons (KMPs) of the Company or any relatives of such Promoters,
Directors are, in any way, concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the Special Resolution set out atitem no. 4 of the
notice.

The Board accordingly recommends, passing of the Special Resolution, as set out at ltem No. 4 of this Notice, for the
approval of the Members of the Company.

Registered Office: By Order of the Board
16 Strand Road Sd/-
9th Floor, Room No. 908B Deepak Kothari
Kolkata-700001 (Chairman & Managing Director)
Dated: 30th August, 2021 (DIN:-00280323)
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Directors’ Report

To

The Members of

U. Y. Fincorp Limited

(Formerly known as Golden Goenka Fincorp Limited)

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 28th Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts for the year ended
31st March, 2021.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS (% in lakh)
ol ot
Revenue from Operation 1,398.53 1,721.17
Profit before Provisions & Tax 1,237.84 1,536.11
Profit before Tax 1,253.46 457.66
Tax Expenses 304.46 157.46
Income tax in respect of earlier year - 25.26
Profit after Tax 949.00 274.93
Balance brought forward from previous year 3,543.03 3,315.96
Amount available for appropriation 4,492.03 3,590.89
Add/(Less) Appropriations:-
Other Comprehensive Income 1.98 (0.45)
Transfer to Fair Value Reserve against OCD (103.33) (41.66)
Final Dividend - -
Dividend Distribution Tax - (0.25)
Statutory Reserve (239.29) (5.50)
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 4,151.39 3,543.03

2. OPERATIONS & BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

The key highlights of your Company’s performance during the year under review are:
i.  The profit before bad debts, provisions and taxis ¥1,237.84 Lakhs as against ¥ 1,536.11 Lakhsinthelast year.
ii. Profitbeforetaxationis ¥ 1,253.46 Lakhsasagainst ¥ 457.66 Lakhsinthelastyear
ii. Net profit after taxationis ¥ 949.00 Lakhs as against ¥ 274.93 Lakhs in the last year.
iv. Thetotalassetsis ¥28,392.05Lakhs as against ¥26,887.88 Lakhsinthe last year.

Your Company discloses Standalone and Consolidated Unaudited Financial Results on a quarterly basis, Standalone and
Consolidated Audited Financial Results on an annual basis. The Financial Statements of your Company have been prepared
in accordance with the applicable Accounting Standards notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
as applicable.

The key driver to growth in today’s scenario requires higher operating efficiency, sustainability, customer satisfaction,
improving capabilities and exploring new market. For the purpose of diversification your Company is engaged in the
expansion of its business of vehicle loan and consumer loan etc. Over the past few years, the Reserve Bank of India (the RBI)
has been steadily implementing technology to deepen and broaden financial services in India. Considering the same, your
Company intends to expand into financial market segment and capitalize the set up for the same along with increasing
capacity as required by the business. The outlook of the business is very exciting and we take it as an opportunity to do
something unique and exceptional.

A detailed review on the operation and performance of the Company and its business is given in the Management Discussion
and Analysis Report. The same is enclosed as Annexure - 1 to this Report.
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3. DIVIDEND

The Directors of your Company do not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 in order to
plough back the resources for future growth.

4. DEPOSITS

The Company is a non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company and therefore is not accepting any public deposits
during the year.

5. LISTING OF SHARES

The equity share of the Company continues to be listed on The BSE Limited and The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited. The
Company has paid the Annual Listing Fees to the said Stock Exchanges for the financial year 2021-22

6. INVESTOREDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

In compliance with the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 ('IEPF Rules') as amended from time to time,
the company had already transferred the unpaid dividend amount of Rs. 60,552.20/- on 12.09.2019 to the specified bank
account of the IEPF, established by the Government of India with respect to the unpaid/unclaimed dividend for the financial
year 2012-13 which have not yet been encashed by the equity shareholders for seven consecutive years from the Financial
Year2012-2013.

Further the Equity Shares in respect of which dividend w.r.t. the financial year 2012-2013 remains unclaimed / unpaid for
seven consecutive years or more, are required to be transferred to the Demat Account of the IEPF Authority. The company is
in process of transferred underlying Equity Shares on which dividends remained unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven
consecutive years or more, to the Demat Account of IEPF Authority.

7. RESERVEBANKOF INDIA (RBI) GUIDELINES

Your Company continues to carry on its business of Non-Banking Financial Institution without accepting deposits. The
Company has not accepted public deposits during the year under review. Further the Company has complied with and
continues to comply with all the prudent financial management norms and directions issued by Reserve Bank of India as
applicable to it including Fair Practices, Anti Money Laundering and Know Your Customer (KYC) Guidelines.

Disclosures as prescribed by Non-Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding)
Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015 and other applicable NBFC Regulations have been made in
this Annual Report.

8. SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up equity share capital as on 31* March 2021 was ¥ 9,511.92 Lakhs. There was no public issue, rights issue, bonus
issue or preferential issue etc. during the year. The Company has neither issued shares with differential voting rights, sweat
equity shares nor has it granted any stock options.

9. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In terms of the requirement of Section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 your Directors state that:

a) inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of
the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

d) theyhave prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Annual Report 2020-21




Directors’ Report (Contd.)

10. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Report on Corporate Governance
along with certificate of compliance from M/s Prateek Kohli & Associates, Company Secretaries confirming compliances to
the conditions of the Corporate Governance is enclosed as Annexure - 2 to this Report.

All Board members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year
2020-21. A declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director/CEO of the Company is contained in the Corporate
Governance Section forming part of this Report.

The Managing Director/CEO and CFO have certified to the Board with regard to the financial statements and other matters as
required under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

11. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company and therefore information relating to Conservation of Energy and
Technology Absorption are not applicable.

The Company has neither earned nor used any foreign exchange during the year under review.
12. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the period under review, on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors
of the Company, at their meeting held on 29" August, 2020 approved the change in designation of Mr. Udai Kothari (DIN:-
00284256) from Executive Chairman and Managing Director to Non-Executive Non Independent Director of the Company
w.e.f. 21% September, 2020. Further, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
members of the Company at the 27th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30th September, 2020 approved the
appointment of Mr. Deepak Kothari (DIN:-00280323) designated as Executive Chairman & Managing Director of the
Company for a period of 3 years with effect from 21* September, 2020.

Further the Board of Directors of the Company (the 'Board’), at its meeting held on 17" March, 2021 has, subject to the
approval of members, re-appointed Mr. Dinesh Burman as Whole-time Director of the Company for a period of 3 (three) years
commencing from 30" May, 2021 to 29" May, 2024 at the remuneration and terms and conditions recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 17" March, 2021.

Except above, there was no change in the Key Managerial Personnel.

13. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The Extract of Annual Return is prepared in Form MGT-9 as per the provisions of Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rule 12 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is enclosed as Annexure - 3 to this Report.

14. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Your Company is exempted from the applicability of the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Meetings of Board and its
Powers) Amendment Rules, 2015 as your Company is RBI registered Non-Banking Financial Company whose principal
business inter-alia includes financing of companies.

Details of Loans, Investments, Guarantees or security in connection with loans to other body corporates or persons, as at the
end of the year are given in notes to the Financial Statements.

15. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION

There is no such material change and commitment affecting the financial position of your Company which have occurred
between the end of the financial year of your Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the Report.

16. MEETING OF THE BOARD AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on policy and strategy apart from other Board business. During the
year, Six Board Meetings and four Audit Committee Meetings were convended and held. The intervening gap between the
Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The details regarding Board and Audit Committee Meetings are given in the Corporate
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Governance Section forming part of this Report.
17. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12)

During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by the auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board under section
143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

18. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI

The Company is in compliance with the requirements of Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1)
and General Meetings (SS-2).

19. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/ JOINT VENTURES

As on March 31, 2021, the Company has one wholly owned non listed material Indian subsidiary and one Associate
Company.

As per the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2016, a separate statement containing the salient
features of the financial statements of the Subsidiary Companies/ Associate Companies/ Joint Ventures is prepared in Form
AOC-1 and the same is enclosed as Annexure -4 to this Report.

20. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pursuant to Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the Company’s Management in accordance with the
requirements of applicable Accounting Standards and as per the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
which forms part of the Annual Report.

As per the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has placed separate audited accounts of its
subsidiary on its website www.uyfincorp.com and copy of separate audited financial statements of its subsidiary will be
provided to the shareholders at their request.

The annual accounts of subsidiary will also be kept for inspection by any Member of the Company at the registered office of
the Company. The Consolidated Financial Statements presented by the Company include the financial information of its
subsidiary.

The financials of Purple Advertising Services Private Limited, an associate of the Company could not be completed and
hence same has not been considered for consolidation purpose.

21. AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

A. Statutory Auditors

M/s Das & Prasad, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration Number: 303054E) were appointed as Statutory Auditors
of the Company at the 25th Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 26th September, 2018 for a term of five consecutive years
from the conclusion of the 25th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 30th Annual General Meeting, at a
remuneration to be determined by the Board of Directors (including any Committee thereof) of the Company and
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses as may be incurred by them during the course of the Audit.

The observations of the Auditors when read together with the relevant notes to the accounts and accounting policies are self-
explanatory.

B. Secretarial Auditor

As per the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors have appointed M/s Prateek Kohli &
Associates, Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year
ended on March 31, 2021.

Secretarial Audit Report issued by M/s Prateek Kohli & Associates, Company Secretaries in Form MR-3 is enclosed as
Annexure - 5to this Report.

There is no reservation, qualification or adverse remark contained in the Secretarial Audit Report. Information referred in
Secretarial Audit Report are self-explanatory and don’t call for any further comments.

22. RISKMANAGEMENT

The Company manages risk through a detailed Risk Management Policy framework which lays down guidelines in identifying,
assessing and managing risks that the businesses are exposed to. Risk is managed through appropriate structures that are in
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place atU. Y. Fincorp Limited, including suitable reporting mechanisms.
Further kindly refer to the write-up in the Section Management Discussion and Analysis Report.

23. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) READ WITH RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 AND COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) AMENDMENT RULES, 2016

The prescribed particulars of remuneration of employees pursuant to Section 197(12) read with Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016, are set out as Annexure -6 to this Report.

24. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR UNDER SUB SECTION (6) OF
SECTION 149 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

All the Independent Directors of your Company have submitted a declaration at the time of their appointment and also
annually that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All requisite declarations were placed before the Board.

25. DIRECTORS

During the period under review, on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors
of the Company, at their meeting held on 29" August, 2020 approved the change in designation of Mr. Udai Kothari (DIN:-
00284256) from Executive Chairman and Managing Director to Non-Executive Non Independent Director of the Company
w.e.f. 21* September, 2020. Further, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
members of the Company at the 27th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30th September, 2020 approved the
appointment of Mr. Deepak Kothari (DIN:-00280323) designated as Executive Chairman & Managing Director of the
Company for a period of 3 years with effect from 21* September, 2020.

Further the Board of Directors of the Company (the 'Board'), at its meeting held on 17" March, 2021 has, subject to the
approval of members, re-appointed Mr. Dinesh Burman as Whole-time Director of the Company for a period of 3 (three) years
commencing from 30" May, 2021 to 29" May, 2024 at the remuneration and terms and conditions recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 17" March, 2021.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act and your Company's Articles of Association, Mr. Deepak Kothari
(DIN: 00280323) retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

The information as required to be disclosed under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in case of re-appointment/appointment of the director is provided in the Corporate
Governance Section forming part of this Report

26. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS, IF ANY
During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of the business.

27. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/COURTS/TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND YOUR COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

During the year under review, there were no such orders passed by the regulators / courts / tribunals impacting the going
concern status and your Company’s operations in future.

28. BOARD EVALUATION

In compliance with the requirements of the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed
thereunder and provisions of Schedule IV to the Act as well as the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, your Company has carried out performance evaluation for the Board of Directors, Committees of the
Board and Individual Directors on the basis of participation of directors, quality of information available, quality of
discussions, contributions and decision making etc. The overall performance of the members of the Board was found
satisfactory. The manner in which the evaluation is carried out has been explained in the Corporate Governance Section
forming part of this Report.

29. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS/ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 during the year were in the ordinary course of business
and on an arms’ length basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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However, pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23 (2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, prior approval of the Audit Committee was sought for entering into the Related Party Transactions.
Further, the Audit Committee granted omnibus approval for repetitive transactions to be entered into with the related parties,
during the year. The Audit Committee reviews all related party transactions on a quarterly basis.

A Policy on the Related Party Transactions has been devised by your Company for determining the materiality of transactions
with related parties and dealings with them. The said Policy is available on your Company’s website www.uyfincorp.com
and aweb link to the said Policy has been provided in the Corporate Governance Section forming part of this Report.

30. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
Kindly refer to the write-up in the Section Management Discussion and Analysis Report.
31. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy for directors and employees to report to the
management instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or
ethics policy, if any.

The Policy is also available on the Company’s website and the web link of the same is:
https://www.uyfincorp.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/UYFL-WB-Policy.pdf

32. POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

The Company has in place the Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace in accordance with The
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, the Company has not received any Complaints pertaining to Sexual
Harassment.

33. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the financial year 2020-21, two Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings was held on 29.08.2020 and
17.03.2021.

The Composition of the Committee has been provided in the Corporate Governance Section forming part of this Report.

The terms of reference of the Committee are wide enough to cover matters specified for the Committee under SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company's Remuneration Policy has been provided in the Corporate Governance Section forming part of this Report.
34. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In terms of Section 135 and Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors have constituted a Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and on the recommendation of the said committee, the Board has approved a
Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') policy and the same has been uploaded in the website of the Company
www.uyfincorp.com which contains the CSR activities being carried out by the Company, governance structure,
implementation process, etc.

The Financial Year 2020-21, was a grim year; a year of unprecedented challenges for individuals and institutions globally,
including India. Despite the turbulent business environment caused by the pandemic, your Company continued to illustrate
its commitment towards social and environmental priorities. The Company believes that CSR is a way of creating shared
value and contributing to social and environmental good. Company's strategy is to integrate its activities in community
development, social responsibility and environmental responsibility and encourage each business unit or function to include
these considerations into its operations.

Your Directors are pleased to inform that the Company has fulfilled its CSR obligations pursuant to Section 135(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013, for the year 2020-21 inter-alia on CSR projects in the areas of education, Health -Care, Rural
Development etc. The details on CSR activities as prescribed under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 are provided as Annexure - 7 and forms part of this Report.

The Policy is also available on the Company's website and the web link of the same is: https://www.uyfincorp.com/wp-
content/uploads/2019/08/UYFL_CSR-Policy.pdf
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35. OTHER DISCLOSURES

Considering the fact that the operational and business activities of the Company are undertaken from its Corporate Office
situated in Mumbai, Maharashtra and also that majority of the Directors of the Company are based in Mumbai, the Board of
Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 30" August, 2021, subjected to the approval of the members at the
forthcoming 28" Annual General Meeting of the Company considered and approved the proposal of shifting of the
Registered Office of the Company from the State of West Bengal (i.e. from the jurisdiction of Registrar of Companies, Kolkata,
West Bengal) to the State of Maharashtra (i.e. to the jurisdiction of Registrar of Companies, Mumbai).

Such a change would enable the Directors to guide the Company more effectively and efficiently and also result in operational
convenience.

36. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors would like to express their grateful appreciation for the excellent support and co-operation received from the
Banks, RBI, SEBI, MCA, Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, Registrar of Companies, Stock Exchanges, Depositories,
Customers, Business Associates, Members and other Stakeholders during the year under review. Your Directors also place
on record their deep appreciation for the valuable contribution of the employees at all levels for the progress of your Company
during the year and look forward to their continued co-operation in realisation of the corporate goals in the years ahead.

For and on Behalf of the Board

Sd/-

Deepak Kothari

Place : Kolkata (Chairman & Managing Director)
Dated : 30th August, 2021 (DIN:-00280323)
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Annexure-1 to the Directors' Report
Management Discussion And Analysis Report

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

The Covid-19 pandemic has impacted most countries, including India. This resulted in countries announcing lockdown and
quarantine measures that sharply stalled economic activity. Several countries took unprecedented fiscal and monetary
actions to help alleviate the impact of the crisis. Government of India had announced various measures to support the
economy during this period. The Reserve Bank of India had also announced several measures to ease the financial system
stress, including enhancing system liquidity, reducing interest rates, moratorium on loan repayments for borrowers, asset
classification standstill benefit to overdue accounts where a moratorium had been granted amongst others to alleviate the
economic stress induced by the pandemic which had an impact across sectors that were already showing signs of a
slowdown even before the outbreak.

NBFCs were adversely impacted by COVID-related stress due to their underlying business models. On the supply side, the
sources of funds dried up, more so for the small and mid-sized NBFCs, on account of reduced risk appetite of lenders for low
rated and unrated exposures. On the demand side, it became difficult for NBFCs to find creditworthy projects and borrowers
to lend to as a result of the pandemic induced stress. The challenges for the NBFCs have moved from the liability to the asset
side in terms of liquidity and asset quality with the outbreak of Covid19. The liquidity covers of NBFCs is largely dependent on
collections and the ability to raise resources. The collections of NBFCs witnessed decline during the six month moratorium on
the payment of instalments in respect of all term loans to their borrowers for the period from March 1, 2020 to August 31, 2020.

Asset quality may still pose some challenges in the first half of fiscal 2022 with the uncertainty around the economic fallout of
the second wave induced localised restrictions being placed in various parts of the Country. However, these challenges are
expected to taper as we move towards the second half of fiscal 2022. The uneven recovery being currently observed is
expected to be more broad-based later onin the fiscal as well.

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS

The success of our organisation depends on our ability to identify strengths & opportunities and leverage them while
mitigating the risks that arise while conducting our business. Your Company has taken these factors into account in drawing
up its plans for the year, without losing sight of its core markets and segments. Your company expects to manage this through
financing an appropriate mix of higher and lower yielding assets, while ensuring that asset quality continues to remain best in
class.

Some of the opportunities for the business of your Company includes Demographic changes and under penetrated market,
Growth in Commercial Vehicles, Passenger Vehicles and Tractors market, Use of digital solutions for business/collections
and Economic Upliftment.

SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The business of the Company predominantly falls within a single primarily business segment viz. “Financial and Related
Services” and hence the disclosure requirement under applicable Accounting Standard w.r.t. “Segment Reporting” is not
applicable.

OUTLOOK

The pandemic has caused significant economic damage. However, the central government, stretching itself within its
framework of prudence, and the swift and frequent RBI policy measures have greatly helped to contain the negative impact.
India's economic recovery in Financial Year 2021-22 will be marked by a high degree of uncertainty. The country's ability to
mobilise vaccines at scale, ramp up the pace of vaccinations, and the speedy containment of virus spread in rural India will all
be major determinants of consumer confidence returning and consequently of faster economic recovery. Continued
adherence to safety protocols and minimising super-spreader events will ensure any subsequent “waves” are contained to
ripples. The emergence of newer variants and strains of the virus will trigger disruptions which could depress consumer
sentiment and consequently, economic activity.

Uncertainty will likely prevail for an extended period. COVID-19 has triggered the deepest global recession in decades.
According to the World Bank, the pandemic will result in contractions across the vast majority of emerging market and
developing economies. The Company is better placed in the NBFC space to capitalise on the opportunities that will emerge in
what will possibly be a totally new business environment. The Company is well placed to leverage the opportunity.

RISKMANAGEMENT

The risk management strategy of your Company is based on a clear understanding of various risks, and adherence to well-laid
outrisk policies and procedures that are benchmarked with industry best practices. Your Company continues to lay emphasis
on risk management, especially in an environment which is characterised by increasing uncertainties. Your Company has
developed robust systems and embraced adequate practices for identifying, measuring and mitigating various risks —
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business, strategic, operational, market, credit, liquidity, reputational and process risks and ensuring that they are contained
within pre-defined threshold levels.

Your Company has a strong framework for the appraisal and execution of credit facilities that involves a detailed evaluation of
industry, business, financial, project and management factors including sponsor's financial strength and experience. A team
of well qualified and experienced individual examine the proposals at various levels and evaluate all information which are
gathered from relevant sources during the assessment process to facilitate credit decisions. This process ensures that the
expertise in lending operations acquired by the Company over the period is put to best use and acts to mitigate credit risks.

Liquidity risk and interest rate risk arising out of maturity mismatch of assets and liabilities are managed through regular
monitoring of the maturity profiles. In addition, to manage operational risk prudently, Know Your Customer (KYC) and Anti-
Money Laundering (AML) Policy are in place, which helps to prevent your Company from being used intentionally or
unintentionally by criminal elements for money laundering.

Your Company's risk management framework emphasises proper analysing and understanding the underlying risks before
undertaking any transactions and changing orimplementing processes and systems. This enables a proper assessment of all
risks and ensures that the transactions and processes conform to your Company's risk appetite and regulatory requirements.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Your Company has put in place adequate internal controls system to ensure that all assets are protected, with documented
procedures. Systems of internal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, the adequacy of safeguards for assets, the reliability of financial controls and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. Your Company's Internal Control System is commensurate with the nature of its business
and the size and complexity of its operations and ensures compliance with policies and procedures. The Internal Control
Systems are being constantly updated with new/revised standard operating procedures.

The Company has a well-established internal financial control and risk management framework, with appropriate policies
and procedures, to ensure the highest standards of integrity and transparency in its operations and a strong corporate
governance structure, while maintaining excellence in services to all its stakeholders. Furthermore, the Audit Committee of
your Company evaluates and reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control systems and suggests
improvements. Significant deviations are brought to the notice of the Audit Committee and corrective measures are
recommended for implementation. The critical audit observations are shared with the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis
for an effective monitoring of controls and implementation of recommendations. The Audit Committee regularly reviews the
audit findings as well as the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control measures. All these measures help in
maintaining a healthy internal control environment.

Kindly refer to “Annexure-A” of the Statutory Auditor's Report dated 30" June, 2021 on this matter.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, your Company achieved revenue from operations of ¥ 1,398.53 lakhs as against3 1,721.17
lakhs in the previous year and recorded profit before tax of ¥ 1,253.46 lakhs as against I 457.66 lakhs in the financial year
2019-20.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

During the financial year ended 31st March 2021, there is change of 25% or more in key financial ratios because of decrease
in Non-Performing Assets.

HUMAN RESOURCES

To U. Y. Fincorp Limited, its people are a very valuable resource. In an increasingly competitive market for talent, UYFL
continues to focus on attracting and retaining right talent. It is committed to provide right opportunities to employees to
realise their potential. Your Company focuses on widening organisational capabilities and improving organisational
effectiveness by having a competent and engaged workforce. Our people are our partners in progress and employee
empowerment has been critical in driving our organisation's growth to the next level. For your Company, all employees form
part of an extended family and your Company has continued in its efforts to encourage wellness in mind, body and spirit.
Talent Management and Development plays a pivotal role to attract and build people capability for their growth and through

them for the growth of the organization.
For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Kolkata

Date: 30th August, 2021 Sd/-
Deepak Kothari
(Chairman & Managing Director)
(DIN: 00280323)
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ANNEXURE-2 TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
Report On Corporate Governance

I. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company's corporate governance practices and disclosures have gone well beyond complying with the statutory
and regulatory requirements stipulated in the applicable laws, including the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred as 'SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015").

The Company believes in adopting best practices in the area of Corporate Governance and follows the principles of
complete transparency and accountability by providing detailed information on various issues concerning the
Company's business and financial performance to its shareholders.

The Board of Directors (Board) considers itself as the trustee of its shareholders. During the year under review, the Board
continued its pursuit by adopting corporate strategies and prudent business plans. The Company followed adequate
monitoring system to safeguard against major risk and to ensure implementation of policies and procedures to satisfy its
social, legal and ethical responsibilities.

Il. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(a) Composition of the Board:

As on date, the Board of Directors comprises of two Executive Directors and five Non-Executive Directors. Non-
Executive Directors constitute more than half of the total number of Directors. Four out of the seven Directors are
Independent Directors which duly complied with the requirements of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. The Company has
an Executive Chairman who is also promoter of the Company.

The information on composition of the Board as on date, category of Directors, Directorships in other Public Limited
Companies and Committees of other Public Limited Companies of which the Director is a member/chairman, is as

under:

_ No. of_ No. of No. of

Name of e Directors e hoid nother |  Gommittes(s) | Commities(s)

Public Limited of which he is of which he is

Companies a Member** a Chairman#
Mr. Deepak Kothari Chairman & Managing Director-Promoter 4 NIL NIL
Mr. Dinesh Burman Executive Non-Independent NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Udai Kothari Non-Executive Non-Independent -Promoter 3 NIL NIL
Mr. Govind Kumar Goyal Non-Executive Independent NIL NIL NIL
Mrs. Leena Hinesh Jobanputra Non-Executive Independent NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Jignesh Dalal Non-Executive Independent NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Nishant Sharadrao Nanda Non-Executive Independent NIL NIL NIL

**Only Public Limited Companies have been considered.

#includes the Chairmanship/ Membership only of the Audit Committee(s) and Stakeholders Relationship Committee(s).

There are no inter-se relationships among the directors. Except Mr. Udai Kothari, none of the Non-Executive Directors of
the Company has any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company.

During the period under review, the Board of Directors of the company had evaluated the performance of the
Independent Directors as required under Regulation 17(10) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

Except Mr. Udai Kothari (holding 3,34,83,699 Equity Shares of the Company) , none of the Non-Executive Directors
holds any shares or convertible instruments of the Company as on 31* March, 2021.

(b) Number of Board Meetings:

During the financial year 2020-21, six meetings of the Board of Directors were held on 31.07.2020 re-scheduled to
07.08.2020, 29.08.2020, 15.09.2020, 12.11.2020, 12.02.2021 and 17.03.2021.
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The information on attendance at Board Meetings held during the year and at the last Annual General Meeting is as under:

N the Di Board Meetings Attendance
me orihe Bieciors ek dring e [ FEKIUTO o [ Atinded | Ganeral Mesting
Mr. Udai Kothari 6 6 6 Yes
Mr. Deepak Kothari 6 6 6 Yes
Mr. Dinesh Burman 6 6 6 Yes
Mr. Govind Kumar Goyal 6 6 6 Yes
Mrs. Leena Hinesh Jobanputra 6 6 6 Yes
Mr. Jignesh Dalal 6 6 6 Yes
Mr. Nishant Sharadrao Nanda 6 6 6 Yes

(c) IndependentDirectors

The Company has complied with the definition of Independence as per SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and according to
the Provisions of Section 149(6) of Companies Act, 2013. A formal letter of appointment has been issued to the
Independent Directors in the manner as provided in the Companies Act, 2013. The terms and conditions of appointment
of Independent Directors has been placed on the Company's website and the web link of the same is :-
https://www.uyfincorp.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/UYFL Terms-Conditions-for-appointment-of-
Independent-Directors.pdf

Independent Directors Meeting

A meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on March 17, 2021, in conformity with the provisions
of the Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 & SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. All the Independent Directors were
present in the meeting. The following issues were discussed in detail:

i)  Reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole;

i)  Reviewed the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors;

iii) Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and the
Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

In the opinion of Board, all the independent Directors of the Company fulfils the conditions for his appointment as an
Independent Director as specified in the Act and Listing Regulation 2015 and are independent of the management.

Training of Independent Directors

Whenever new Non-Executive and Independent Directors are inducted in the Board, the Company takes steps to
familiarize them with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of industry in which the
Company operates, business model of the Company, etc.

The directors are also explained in detail about the compliances required from them under the Companies Act, 2013,
SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and other relevant regulations. The details of familiarization programme for Independent
Directors has been placed on the Company's website and the web link of the same is:-

https://www.uyfincorp.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/UYFL Familiarisation-Programme-for-
Independent-Directors.pdf
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lll. AUDIT COMMITTE

a) The Committee's composition and terms of reference are in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

b) During the financial year 2020-21 four Audit Committee Meetings were held on 31.07.2020 re-scheduled to
07.08.2020,15.09.2020, 12.11.2020 and 12.02.2021.

c) The composition of Audit Committee as on date and the information on attendance at Audit Committee Meetings
held during the year are as under:

i " Nature of MNot-,Of Held during MNot._of
Name of the Directors Positions Held Directorship eetings T eetings
Held Attended

Mr. Jignesh Dalal Chairman Independent & 4 4 4
Non-Executive
Director

Mr. Govind Kumar Goyal Member Independent &
Non-Executive 4 4 4
Director

Mrs. Leena Hinesh Jobanputra Member Independent &
Non-Executive 4 4 4
Director

All the members of the Audit Committee have the requisite qualification for appointment on the Committee and possess
sound knowledge of finance, accounting practices and internal controls. The Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors are
regular invitee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. The Chairman of the Audit Committee
was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company to answer shareholder queries.

IV. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

a) The Committee's composition and terms of reference are in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

b) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee evaluates the composition and organization of the Board and its
Committees in light of requirements established by any regulatory body or any other applicable statute, rule and
regulation which the Committee deems relevant, make recommendations to the Board of Directors in respect to the
appointment, re-appointment and resignation of Independent, Executive, Non-Executive Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company, ensure 'fit and proper' status of the existing/proposed Directors of the
Company in accordance with RBI Circular on Corporate Governance, issued from time to time, and other matters
specified for Nomination and Remuneration Committee in Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

c) During the financial year 2020-21,two Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting was held on 29.08.2020
and 17.03.2021

d) The composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on date and the information on attendance at
Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting held during the year are as under :

No. of No. of
Meetings Meetings
Held the tenure Attended

Nature of
Directorship

Held during

Name of the Directors Positions Held

Mr. Jignesh Dalal Chairman Independent & 2 2 2
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Govind Kumar Goyal Member Independent & 2 2 2
Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Leena Hinesh Jobanputra Member Independent & 2 2 2
Non-Executive Director
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All members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are Independent Directors. The Company Secretary
acts as the Secretary of the Committee. The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was present
at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company to answer shareholder queries.

e) The Committee has formulated the Policy on Board Diversity which sets out the approach to have diversity on the
Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company in terms of thought, experience, knowledge, perspective and genderin
the Board.

f) Performance Evaluation

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company formulated and laid down criteria for
Performance Evaluation of the Board (including Committees) and every Director (including Independent Directors)
pursuant to provisions of Section 134, Section 149 read with Code of Independent Directors (Schedule V) and
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 covering inter-alia
the following parameters:

i) For Board Evaluation : - Qualification and experience, Standard of Integrity, Public relations, Future vision and
innovation, Degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities; Board culture and dynamics.

il Board Committee Evaluation : - Qualification and experience of Members, Depth of review of Financial
performance, Review of Regulatory Compliances, Fraud Monitoring, Effectiveness of meetings; Committee
dynamics.

iii) Individual Director Evaluation (including IDs): - Qualification and experience, Attendance in Board
Meetings/AGM, Understanding the Companies Business, Contribution at Board Meetings.

Further, the Chairman and Managing Director (CMD) is evaluated on key aspects of his role which includes inter-alia
effective leadership to the Board. During the year under review, the Independent Directors of your Company reviewed
the performance of Non-Independent Directors and Chairperson of your Company, taking into account the views of
Executive Director and Non-Executive Directors.

Further, the Independent Directors hold an unanimous opinion that the Non-Independent Directors, including the
Chairman and Managing Director bring to the Board, abundant knowledge in their respective field and are experts in their
areas. Besides, they are insightful, convincing, astute, with a keen sense of observation, mature and have a deep
knowledge of your Company.

The Board as a whole is an integrated, balanced and cohesive unit where diverse views are expressed and dialogued
when required, with each Director bringing professional domain knowledge to the table. All Directors are participative,
interactive and communicative.

The Chairman has abundant knowledge, experience, skills and understanding of the Board's functioning, processes a
mind for detail, is meticulous to the core and conducts the Meetings with poise and maturity.

The information flow between your Company's Management and the Board is complete, timely with good quality and
sufficient quantity.

V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

a) On the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee the Board of Directors has framed a policy,
relating to remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Other Employees. The Company's
Remuneration Policy is as follows:-

REMUNERATION POLICY :-

Company's remuneration policy is guided by the following principles:

e [ ong-termvalue creation.

e Remunerate achievement of results on the basis of prudent, responsible risk bearing.
e Attract and retain the best professionals.

e Reward the level of responsibility and professional path.

e  Ensure equity in the Company and competitiveness outside it.

e  Ensure transparency in its remuneration policy.
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i. NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-Executive Directors (NEDs) will be paid remuneration by way of Sitting Fees at a rate as fixed by the Board of
Directors of the Company. Currently fee is as follows

° Board Meeting % 5,000/-
° Committee Meeting 3 1,000/-

Apart from making payment of sitting fees for attending the Board Meetings/ Committee Meetings and defraying
expenses for attending such meetings and other travelling expenses incurred wholly and exclusively in attending to
Company's work, no remuneration in any form is paid to Non-Executive Directors.

ii. EXCUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company pays monthly remuneration to Executive Directors. The tenure of employment of Executive Directors of
the Company may be terminated by the Company by giving notice of 45 days or payment of Salary (Basic) in lieu thereof.
In case, the Executive Directors do not wish to continue with the Company, they should serve a notice period of 90 days
prior to date of leaving or should make payment of Salary (Basic) in lieu thereof.

The Executive Directors shall not be entitled for any sitting fees for attending the meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Company orany Committees thereof, as long as they function as the Executive Directors of the Company.

The Company shall pay remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and allowances (fixed component) and commission
(variable component) to Managing and Whole-time Directors. Salary shall be paid within the range approved by the
Shareholder's and as per Section 197 and 198 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

iii. OTHERKEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELS EXCLUDING EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company shall pay remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and allowances (fixed component) and performance
based variable component, if any, to other Key Managerial Personnel excluding the Executive Directors. Salary shall be
paid as per term and condition of appointment letter within the range approved by and ratified by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors.

Annual increments effective 1% April each year, as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, shall
be approved by the Board. Specific amount payable to personnel will be based on the performance criteria which takes
into account the profits earned by the Company for the year and prevailing remuneration in similar industry in which the
Company operate.

b) Remuneration paid to Directors during the financial year ended 31*March, 2021 is as under:

Non- Executive Directors (Amount in %)
Name of the Directors Sitting fees paid
Mr. Jignesh Dalal 27,000
Mr. Nishant Sharadrao Nanda 20,000
Mrs. Leena Hinesh Jobanputra 27,000
Mr. Govind Kumar Goyal 24,000
Mr. Udai Kothari (w.e.f. 21.09.2020) 12,000
Executive Directors (Amount inX)
Name of the Directors Remunerations

Mr. Deepak Kothari Salary - 12,33,333
(Chairman & Managing Director w.e.f. 21.09.2020) Perquisites - NIL

Other Allowances - 12,33,334
Mr. Deepak Kothari Salary - 2,83,333
(Whole-time Director upto 20.09.2020) Perquisites - NIL

Other Allowances -2,83,334
Mr. Udai Kothari Salary- 5,66,666
(Chairman & Managing Director upto 20.09.2020) Perquisites - NIL

Other Allowances -5,66,667
Mr. Dinesh Burman Salary- 1,53,000
(Whole-time Director ) Perquisites - NIL

Other Allowances - 76,500
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c) The Non-Executive Independent Directors on the Company's Board, apart from receiving sitting fees do not have
any other material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company, its promoters, its management or its
subsidiaries or associate companies except Mr. Udai Kothari.

VI. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

a) The Committee's composition and terms of reference are in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

b)  The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee oversees the performance of Niche Technologies Private Limited, the
Registrar and Shares Transfer Agents of the Company and recommends measures to improve the level of investor
related services. Though the power to approve share transfer/share transmission is delegated to the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent countersigned by the Company's Representative, all the share transfer/transmission cases
approved by the Registrar are reported to the Committee which also keeps a close watch on disposal status of all
complaints/grievances of Shareholders. During the period under review, no complaint was received by the
Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent from shareholders. There was no share transfer application
pending for registration as on 31*March, 2021.

c)  During the financial year 2020-21 four Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings were held on 31.07.2020
re-scheduled to 07.08.2020, 15.09.2020, 12.11.2020 and 12.02.2021.

d) The composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee as on date and the information on attendance at
Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings held during the year is as under:

Name of the Directors Positions Held Nature of Mggii?\;s Held during Mggii?];s
| 1Tl q i
Directorship Hold the tenure Attendad
Mr. Jignesh Dalal Chairman Independent & 4 4 4
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Udai Kothari Member Managing Director 4 2 2
(Upto 20.09.2020)
Mr. Udai Kothari Member Non-Executive Non-Independent Director 4 2 2
(w.e.f 21.09.2020)
Mr. Dinesh Burman Member Executive Director 4 4 4
Mrs. Leena Hinesh Jobanputra Member Independent & 4 4 4
Non-Executive Director

The Chairman of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the
Company to answer shareholder's queries.

SEBI has initiated a complaints redressal system (SCORES) for processing the investor complaints in a
centralized web based redress system and online redressal of all the shareholders complaints. The Company is in
compliance with the SCORES and has not received any complaints from its shareholders in the financial year
2020-21.

e) Name of Non-Executive Director heading the committee:-Mr. Jignesh Dalal.

f)  Name &Designation of Compliance Officer:-Mrs. Amrita Mohta Kothari, Company Secretary.
g) Number of Shareholder's queries pending as on 1% April, 2020 :- NIL

h)  Number of Shareholder's queries received during the year 2020-21:-NIL

i) Number of Shareholder's queries not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders:- NIL

i) Number of pending complaints as on 31* March, 2021:- NIL

VIl. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

a) The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 13" November, 2015 constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) Committee in accordance with section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with rules framed there
under.
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b) The Terms and Reference of the Committee are as follows:
e  Formulation and recommendation of CSR Policy to the Board.
e Monitoring of implementation of CSR policy.
e Identify key initiatives pursuant to the CSR policy.
e Recommend tothe Board, CSR expenditure to be incurred.
e Recommend to the Board, modifications to CSR policy as and when required.

e To carry out such other functions, and is empowered to act as required, in terms of Companies Act, 2013 read
with rules framed there under, Listing Agreement and rules and regulations framed by Securities and Exchange
Board of India, including any amendment or modification thereof.

c) Duringthefinancial year2020-21 one CSR Committee Meeting was held on 17.03.2021.

d) The composition of CSR Committee as on date and the information on attendance at CSR Committee Meetings
held during the year is as under:

N f the Direct Posit Held Nature of M';lgt.ircl);s Held during Mzce)t.ir?;s
ame of the Directors ositions He ; ;
Directorship Hold the tenure Attendad
1 1 1

Mr. Udai Kothari Chairman Non-Executive Non-Independent Director
(w.e.f 21.09.2020)
Mr. Dinesh Burman Member Executive Director 1 1 1
Mr. Jignesh Dalal Member Independent &
Non-Executive Director 1 1 1

VIll. CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

In terms of requirements of Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, Mr.
Deepak Kothari, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Alok Banerjee, Chief Financial Officer have
furnished certificate to the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 30.06.2021 in the prescribed format for the year
ended 31*March, 2021.

To

The Board of Directors
U.Y.Fincorp Limited

16 Strand Road,

9th Floor, Room No 908B
Kolkata-700 001

Dear Sir,

Re: For the year ended 31st March, 2021

We certify that:

a. Thatwe have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021 and
that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company's code of conduct.

c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and we
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have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal
controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

d. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:
i.  significant changes ininternal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii. significant changesin accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements and

iii. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the company's internal control system over financial
reporting.

e. We certify that the financial statements do not contain any false or misleading statement or figures and do not
omit any material fact which may make the statements or figures contained therein misleading.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30.06.2021

Sd/- Sd/-
Deepak Kothari Alok Banerjee
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

IX. CODEOFCONDUCT

The Code of Ethics and Business Conduct for Directors and Senior Management has been displayed on the Company's
website:- www.uyfincorp.com. All the members of the Board and the Senior Management Personnel has affirmed
compliance with the Code for the year ended 31* March, 2021 and a declaration to this effect signed by Mr. Deepak
Kothari, Chairman & Managing Director forms part of this Report.

To,

Board of Directors

U.Y.Fincorp Limited

16 Strand Road, 9" Floor,

Room No 908B, Kolkata-700 001

Dear Sir,

Sub: Compliance with the Company's Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

In accordance with Schedule V (D) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all
Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with Code of Ethics and Business
Conduct of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

For U. Y. Fincorp Limited

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30.06.2021 Sd/-
Deepak Kothari
Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN:- 00280323)
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X. CODE OF CONDUCT UNDER SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (PROHIBITION OF INSIDER
TRADING) REGULATIONS, 2015

In compliance with the requirement of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015, the Company has framed a Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished
Price Sensitive Information and the same has been adopted by the Board of Directors. A copy of the same have been
uploaded onthe Company's website at www.uyfincorp.com.

Your Company has also adopted a Code of Conduct to monitor, regulate and report insider trading for prevention of
Insider Trading by Company Insiders. The code inter-alia prohibits purchase and/or sale of shares of the Company by
the Directors and Designated Employees while in the possession of unpublished price sensitive information of the
Company.

During the period under review there has been no incidence of Non-compliance reported under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015

Xl. SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of directors of the Company comprise of eminent qualified professional members from the diverse fields, who
have significant amount of skills / expertise / competencies and thus make valuable contributions to the Board. The
collective contribution of the Board of Directors makes an overall impact which reflects in the performance of the
Company.

In compliance with the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company has identified the list of core skills /
expertise / competencies of the Board of Directors in the context of the Company's business and its sector for effective
functioning, which are currently available with the Board:-

Skills / Competencies

Business Policies

Legal and Regulatory Framework
Capital Markets

Risk Assessment and Management
Asset Liability Management
Strategic Management

VVVVYVVVVYVYYVYYVYVY

Organisational
Technological
Planning
Resource Management and Utilisation
People Management
Communication
Behavioural

Independent Directors | » In-depth Industry Knowledge » Technical / Professional
» Audit and Financial Management » Analytical
» Treasury » Technological
» Legal and Regulatory Framework » Behavioural
» Risk Assessment and Management
» Business Policies
» Capital Markets
Executive Directors » In-depth Industry Knowledge Governance
» Audit and Financial Management Leadership
» Wealth Management Technical
» Treasury Operations and Management Analytical
>
>
>
>
>
>
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Xll. GENERAL BODY MEETING
a) Location and time of the last three AGMs/EGMs held:-

AGM/EGM Date Venue Time
27th AGM 30.09.2020 Held through Video Conferencing ("VC”), / 11:30 A.M.
Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM”)
26th AGM 25.09.2019 Manthan (Banquet Hall), 3, Waterloo Street, 11:30 A.M.
Kolkata- 700069
25th AGM 26.09.2018 Manthan (Banquet Hall), 3, Waterloo Street, 11:00 A.M.
Kolkata- 700069
EGM 23.05.2012 1st British Indian Street, 1st Floor, Room No. 109, 10:30 A.M.
Kolkata — 700069
EGM 12.10.2011 Manthan (Banquet Hall), 3, Waterloo Street, 10:30 A.M.
Kolkata- 700069
EGM 27.04.2011 1st British Indian Street, Room No. B-10, 10:00 A.M.
Kolkata — 700069

b) Whether any special resolution was passed in the previous 3 AGMs/EGMs:- Yes

AGM/EGM Date Particulars of Resolution passed as Special Resolution

27th AGM 30.09.2020 Appointment of Mr. Deepak Kothari (DIN: 00280323) as Executive Chairman
and Managing Director of the Company.

26th AGM 25.09.2019 a) Re-appointment of Mrs. Leena Hinesh Jobanputra (DIN: 06975039) as an

Independent Director of the Company.

b) Re-appointment of Mr. Govind Kumar Goyal (DIN: 02466348) as an
Independent Director of the Company.

25th AGM 26.09.2018 a) Re-appointment of Mr. Dinesh Burman as a Whole-time Director of the
Company.

b) To change name of the Company from Golden Goenka Fincorp Limited to
U. Y. Fincorp Limited.

EGM 23.05.2012 To issue Zero Percent Optionally Convertible Debentures on Preferential Basis.

EGM 12.10.2011 To change name of the Company from Golden Securities Limited to Golden
Goenka Fincorp Limited.

EGM 27.04.2011 To offer, issue and allot, in one or more tranches, upto 1,40,00,000 (One Crore
Forty Lakhs Only) Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each of the Company,
on Preferential Basis at a premium of ¥ 8/- each.

c) PostalBallot:-

During the year under review, no resolution was passed by postal ballot in connection with Section 110 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Xlll. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

In compliance with Regulation 33 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, the Company sends by E-mail the quarterly/ yearly
unaudited/ audited financial results to the Stock Exchanges immediately after approval of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Information is also sent to BSE Limited by uploading the same on the Listing Portal of BSE Limited and by
hand delivery to The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited.

Results are published in Business Standard (English) and Duranta Barta/Arthik Lipi (Bengali) etc. newspapers of Kolkata
edition.
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The Company's financial results and official news releases are displayed on the Company's website
www.uyfincorp.com. Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Annual Report, which is posted to
the shareholders of the Company.

During the year, the Company has not made any presentation to institutional investors or to the analysts.

XIV. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERINFORMATION

(i) Annual General Meeting Date :- Wednesday, 29" September, 2021 at 11:30 A.M. through Video Conferencing
(“VC”)/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”).

(i) Financial Year :- Financial Year ended on 31.03.2021(2020-2021).

(iliy Date of book closure :— Thursday, the 23rd day of September, 2021 to Wednesday, the 29th day of September,
2021 (both days inclusive).

(iv) Dividend Paymentdate :—N.A.
(v) Listing on Stock Exchange | Stock Code

a) The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited 10017059
7 Lyons Range, Kolkata-700001

b) The BSE Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 530579
Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001

Demat ISIN Number in National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) & INE152C01025 for Face
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for Equity Shares Value of ¥ 5/- each

The Company has paid the Annual Listing Fees to The BSE Limited and The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited for
the financial year 2021-22.

Further the Company has also paid the Annual Custodian Fees to NSDL & CDSL for the financial year 2021-22.
(v Market Price Data :- The Market Price of the Equity Share of the Company during 2020-2021 is given in the table

below:

Months BSE
- High Low
April 2020 1.64 1.22
May 2020 1.91 1.33
June 2020 2.31 1.44
July 2020 3.07 2.22
August 2020 2.88 2.15
September 2020 2.74 1.93
October 2020 2.87 1.80
November 2020 2.00 1.75
December 2020 2.94 1.85
January 2021 3.05 2.47
February 2021 3.96 2.47
March 2021 3.50 2.83

e There was no trading of shares at The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited during the year.
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(viiy Performance in comparison to broad based indices such as BSE Sensex, Crisil Index etc :(— N.A.

I = T TR =2

Share Prices of the Company

3.17

1.57

101.91%

BSE Sensex

49,509.15

29,468.49

68%

(viii)

(ix)

Registrar & Share Transfer Agents :- Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd., 3A Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No. 7A
& 7B, Kolkata 700 017, Telephone- 033-2280 6616/17/18, Email- nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com.

Share Transfer System :- The transfer of shares is affected by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents after
necessary approvals of the authorised officer. The shares sent for physical transfer are generally registered within
a period of maximum 15 days from the date of receipt provided the documents are in order.

(x) a) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31* March, 2021:-

No. of

Percentage

N, GITEES Shareholders to Total Shares Tc? I:?oetr;’:(a;%?
Total(%)
1-500 1,392 53.03 2,22,865 0.12
501 - 1000 408 15.54 3,58,503 0.19
1001 - 5000 479 18.25 12,083,797 0.63
5001 - 10000 101 3.85 7,92,297 0.42
10001 - 50000 149 5.67 33,63,118 1.77
50001 - 100000 37 1.41 28,47,700 1.49
100001 & above 59 2.25 18,14,50,049 95.38
Total 2,625 100.00 19,02,38,329 100.00
b) Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on 31* March, 2021 :-
Category No. of Shareholders ‘ Total No. of ‘ Percentage
Shares To Total(%)
Promoters 6 11,51,56,847 60.53
Financial Institutions/Banks 1 99 0.00
Residents(Individual) 2,494 91,86,661 4.83
Non-Resident Individual /OCBs 21 4,41,477 0.23
Central Government/State 1 4,000 0.00
Government(s)/President of India
Bodies Corporate 86 6,52,74,400 34.32
Clearing Corporation/Clearing 16 1,74,845 0.09
Member/Trust/IEPF Authorities
Total 2,625 19,02,38,329 100.00

(xi)

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity : - Since the equity shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in
dematerialized mode, the members are advised to hold their shares in dematerialized mode with any Depository
Participants (DPs) registered with NSDL and / or CDSL. Requests for dematerialization of shares should be sent
directly by the DPs concerned to the RTA, M/s. Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd., 3A Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room
No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata 700 017 for further processing. In case of any delay on the part of the DPs to send the Demat
Request Forms (DRF) and relevant Share Certificates beyond 15 days from the date of generation of the Demat
Request Number (DRN) by the DPs, the said DRF will be rejected / cancelled. This is being done to ensure that no
demat requests remain pending with the RTA beyond a period of 21 days from submission of DRF. Members /
Investors should, therefore, ensure that their DPs do not delay in sending the DRF and relevant Share Certificates
to the RTAimmediately after generating the DRN.
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As on 31st March, 2021 the number of shares in dematerialized form was 19,01,01,710 representing 99.93% of the
total shares and the balance 1,36,619 shares representing 0.07 % of the shares were held in physical form and
these shareholders are requested to dematerialize their shares in their own interests to avail the benefits of holding
shares in dematerialized mode. Allthe shares held by promoter are in dematerialized form

(xiiy Outstanding GDRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity
ason 31.03.2021:—NIL

(xiii) Plantlocation :- The Company is Non-Banking Finance Company and hence there is no plant.
(xiv) CreditRating :-N.A.

(xv) Address for correspondence:

Registered Office:- U. Y. Fincorp Limited,
(Formerly known as Golden Goenka Fincorp Limited)
16, Strand Road, 9" Floor
Room No. 908 B, Kolkata-700001
Phone No.- 033-4603 2315
Fax No. — 033-44070020

Corporate Office:- U. Y. Fincorp Limited,
(Formerly known as Golden Goenka Fincorp Limited)
Vaman Techno Centre, A-Wing, 7th Floor, Marol Naka,
Makwana Road, Andheri (East) Mumbai-400059
Phone- 022-42300 800

Email ID :- contact@uyfincorp.com

Website :- www.uyfincorp.com

XV. DISCLOSURES

a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions :- The Company has not entered into any
transactions of material nature, with its related parties that may have potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large, other than in the normal course of business. The transaction with related parties as per
requirements of applicable Accounting Standards are disclosed in Note No. 41 of the Standalone Financial
Statements.

Further the Company has formulated a policy on Related Party Transactions and the same is displayed on the
Company’s website and the web link of the same is: https://www.uyfincorp.com/wp-
content/uploads/2019/08/UYFL _Policy-on-Related-Party-Transaction.pdf

The Company is regular in complying with the requirement of the regulatory authorities on the matters relating to
the capital market and no penalties / strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or
SEBI or any statutory authority, for non-compliance of any matter during the last three years.

b)  The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted the Whistle Blower Policy which is in place as required under
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. This policy is established for
directors and employees to report to the management instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected, fraud
or violation of the company’s code of conduct or ethics policy, if any. No person has been denied access to the
Audit Committee

The policy is also available on the Company’s website and the web link of the same is:-
https://www.uyfincorp.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/UYFL-WB-Policy.pdf

c) The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance stipulated under SEBI
Listing Regulations, 2015. The non-mandatory requirements have been adopted to the extent and in the manner
as stated under the appropriate headings detailed below:-

Reporting of Internal Auditor:-

The Internal Audit Report is placed before the Audit Committee.

d) The details relating to the commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities are not applicable to the
Company.

Annual Report 2020-21




Report On Corporate Governance (Contd.)

e) Ason31%March, 2021, the Company has one wholly owned material non-listed Indian subsidiary. The Company
has formulated a policy on Material Subsidiary and the same is displayed on the Company’s website and the web
link of the same is: https://www.uyfincorp.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/UYFL Policy-on-Material-

Subsidiaries.pdf
f) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:- In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed

Accounting Standards notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The significant accounting policies which are
consistently applied have been set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

g) Details of utilization of funds raised:- No funds were raised by the Company through preferential allotment or
qualified institutions placement.

h)  Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice regarding Non-Debarment and Non-Disqualification of
Directors:- A certificate from M/s Prateek Kohli & Associates, Practising Company Secretary certifying that none
of the Directors on the Board of the Company as on 31st March, 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from
being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
Statutory Authority, is annexed at the end of this Report.

i) Disclosure in relation to recommendation made by any Committee which was not accepted by the Board:-
During the year under review, there were no such recommendations made by any Committee of the Board that
were mandatorily required and not accepted by the Board.

i) Total fees for all services paid to the Statutory Auditors by the Company and its Subsidiaries:- Total fees paid
by the Company and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis excluding GST thereon to the Statutory Auditors and
all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the Statutory Auditors is a part are as follows:-

Particulars Amount
(InX)

As Auditors 1,60,000

For Taxation Matters 20,000

For Other Services 96,000

Total 2,76,000

k) Disclosure in terms of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder :- In terms of the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, the number of
complaints received during the financial year 2020-21 along with their status of redressal as on financial year
ended March 31,2021 are as under:

e No. of complaints filed during the financial year 2020-21 :- Nil
e No. of complaints disposed of during the financial year 2020-21:- Nil
e No. of complaints pending redressal as on March 31, 2021:- Nil

XVI. The Company has complied with the requirements of Corporate Governance Report of sub-paras (2) to (10) of
Schedule V of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

XVII. The Company has complied all the mandatory requirement of Regulation 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of sub-
regulation 2 of Regulation 46 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

XVIIl. CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The annexed certificate from M/s. Prateek Kohli & Associates, Company Secretaries regarding compliance of
conditions of Corporate Governance for the financial year ended 31*March, 2021 forms part of this Report.

XIX. EQUITY SHARESIN UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

During the year under review, No shares of the Company were required to be transferred to Unclaimed Suspense
Accountinterms of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.
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Information about Directors proposed to be appointed/re-appointed at the Annual General Meeting as stipulated

under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015:-

Name of Director Mr. Deepak Kothari Mr. Dinesh Burman
DIN 00280323 00612904
Date of Birth 16.06.1963 12.03.1957
Nationality Indian Indian

Date of first appointment on the Board 21.09.2017 30.07.2010
Qualification B.A. from Kanpur University B. Sc, LLB
Current Designation Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director

More than 26 years of experience in

Nature of Expertise Manufacturing Industry of Liquor and An Experience in administrative and
Veterinary, Real Estate |ndUStry, NBFCS, genera| corporate matters.
Hotel Industry and Aviation
Name of Directorship in other Listed Companies NIL NIL
Name of committees of other Listed Companies in NIL NIL

which the director is a member/chairperson

No. of shares held in the Company 3,34,40,499 NIL

Members have already approved Special
Resolution for the appointment of
Mr. Deepak Kothari as Chairman &

Details of Remuneration sought to be paid Managing Director of the Company for the Refer Item No. 3 of Annual General
consecutive period of three years w.e.f.

Meeting Notice.
21% September, 2020 at the 27" Annual 9
General Meeting of the Company held on
30" September, 2020.
- . Not Applicable since Director retire by Refer Item No. 3 of Annual General
Terms and Conditions of the appointment Rotation Meeting Notice.
. Rs. 24,66,667 for the Rs. 2,29,500 for the

Last drawn Remuneration Financial Year 2020-21. Financial Year 2020-21.

. . . Six Six
No. of Board Meeting attended during the financial
year 2020-21
Relationships with other Directors and Key Father of Mr. Udai Kothari NIL

Managerial Personnel of the Company

The above Report was placed before and approved by the Board of Directors at their Meeting held on 30"August,

2021.

By Order of the Board
Place: Kolkata Sd/-
Date: 30th August 2021 Deepak Kothari

(Chairman & Managing Director)
(DIN:- 00280323)

Annual Report 2020-21




Wealth, suc

\’,‘“ ) C,
<O 9@@

©
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members,

U. Y. FINCORP LIMITED

(Formerly known as Golden Goenka Fincorp Limited)
16 Strand Road,

9th Floor, Room No. 908B,

Kolkata-700001

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by U. Y. FINCORP LIMITED (‘the
Company') for the year ended 31% March 2021, as stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27, 46(2) (b) to (i), Schedule Il and V
(paragraphs C, D and E) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) as amended from time to time. We have obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of
certifications.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was
limited to procedures and implementations thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the
conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements
of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the representations
made by the directors and the management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata

Date: 30" August, 2021
UDIN: A040967C000890057 For Prateek Kohli & Associates
(Company Secretaries)
Sd/-
Prateek Kohli
(Partner)
(C.P. No.: 16457)
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Members,

U. Y. FINCORP LIMITED

(Formerly known as Golden Goenka Fincorp Limited)
16 Strand Road,

9th Floor, Room No. 908B,

Kolkata-700001

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of
U. Y. Fincorp Limited (CIN L65993WB1993PLC060377) and having registered office at 16, Strand Road 9" Floor,
Room No.- 908B, Kolkata - 700001 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before us by the Company for the
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para - C Sub clause 10 (i) of the
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from
timetotime.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number
(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its

officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year
ending on 31* March, 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Name of Director Date of appointment in Company
1. Deepak Kothari 00280323 21/09/2017
2. Udai Kothari 00284256 21/09/2017
3. Dinesh Burman 00612904 30/07/2010
4, Govind Kumar Goyal 02466348 24/07/2015
5. Leena Hinesh Jobanputra 06975039 12/11/2014
6. Jignesh Dalal 08065507 15/02/2018
7. Nishant Sharadrao Nanda 08196581 10/08/2018

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which
the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata

Date: 30th August, 2021
UDIN: A040967C000889122 For Prateek Kohli & Associates
(Company Secretaries)
Sd/-
Prateek Kohli
(Partner)
(C.P. No.: 16457)
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Annexure-3 to the Directors' Report
Extract of Annual Return

FORM NO. MGT -9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1)
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS :

i CIN : L65993WB1993PLC060377
ii Registration Date : 07.10.1993
iii  Name of the Company : U. Y. Fincorp Limited (Formerly known as Golden
Goenka Fincorp Limited)
iv Category/Sub-category of the Company : Public Limited Company
v Address of the Registered office : 16 Strand Road, 9th Floor,
& contact details Room No. 908B, Kolkata-700 001

Telephone No. :- 033-4603 2315
Fax No. :- 033-4407 0020

vi Whether listed company : Yes, Listed on The BSE Limited & The Calcutta
Stock Exchange Limited

vii Name, Address & contact details of the : Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd.,
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, if any. 3A Auckland Place,
7th Floor, Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata- 700 017.
Telephone No.:- 033-2280 6616/17/18

Il PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:- Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) which is
principally engaged in lending and investing activities.

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

NIC Code to the % to total turnover

Name & Description of main products / services Product / Service of the company

1 Non-Banking Financial Services (Lending & Investing Services) 649 100%

Il PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES :-

Holding/ o -
SI. No. Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN Subsidiary/ | 2 OLZZares Ag‘e"c'fiiale
Associates

1 Avristro Capital Markets Limited
24, Park Street, Park Centre, Magma House, U65999WB2009PLC135995 | SUBSIDIARY 100% 2(87)
10th Floor, Kolkata- 700 016, West Bengal

2 Purple Advertising Services Private Limited
45, Shakespeare Sarani, Century Tower U74300WB2008PTC127335 | ASSOCIATE 33.33% 2(6)

2nd Floor, Kolkata- 700 017, West Bengal
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the begining of the year | No. of Shares held at the end of the year
(As on 01.04.2020) (As on 31.03.2021)

Wealth, Sllc
Ce

A. | PROMOTERS
(1) | Indian
a) Individual / HUF 66952198 | 0 66952198 | 35.194 | 67110639 0 | 67110639 | 35.277 | 0.083
b) Central Government 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
c) State Government 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
d) Bodies Corporate 48046208 0 48046208 | 25.256 | 48046208 0 | 48046208 | 25.256 | 0.000
e) Banks / Financial Institutions 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
f) Any Other 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
Sub-total (A)(1) 114998406 | 0 114998406 | 60.450 |115156847 0 |115156847 | 60.533 | 0.083
(2) | Foreign
a) NRiIs - Individuals 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
b) Other - Individuals 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
c) Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
d) Banks / Financial Institutions 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
e) Any Other 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
Sub-total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
Total Shareholding of Promoter (A)
= (A)(1)+(A)(2) 114998406 | 0 114998406 | 60.450 |115156847 0 115156847 | 60.533 | 0.083
B. | PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
(1) | Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
b) Banks / Financial Institutions 99 0 99 0.000 99 0 99 0.000 | 0.000
c) Central Governments 4000 0 4000 0.002 4000 0 4000 0.002 | 0.000
d) State Governments 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
g) Foreign Institutional Investors (Flls) 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
i) Others (Specify) 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
Sub-total (B)(1) 4099 0 4099 0.002 4099 0 4099 0.002 | 0.000
(2) | Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corporate
i) Indian 62986882 | 15400 | 63002282 | 33.118 | 65259000 | 15400 | 65274400 | 34.312 | 1.194
ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders holding 3649275 (121019 | 3770294 | 1.982 | 3347409 | 120219| 3467628 | 1.823 | -0.159
nominal share capital upto %1 lakh
ii) Individual shareholders holding
nominal share capital in excess of T1 lakh | 7769650 0 7769650 4.084 | 5719033 0 5719033 | 3.006 |-1.078
c) Others (Specify)
1. NRI 504065 | 1000 505065 0.265 440477 1000 | 441477 0.232 | -0.033
2. Overseas Corporate Bodies 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
3. Foreign Nationals 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
4. Clearing Members 41151 0 41151 0.022 27463 0 27463 0.014 | -0.007
5. Trusts 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
6. Foreign Bodies - D.R. 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
7. IEPF Authority 147382 0 147382 0.077 147382 0 147382 0.077 | 0.000
Sub-total (B)(2) 75098405 | 137419 | 75235824 | 39.548 | 74940764 | 136619 75077383 | 39.465 | -0.083
Total Public Shareholding
(B) = (B)(1)+(B)(2) 75102504 |137419 | 75239923 | 39.550 | 74944863 | 136619 75081482 | 39.467 | -0.083
C. | Shares held by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 | 0.000
GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) 190100910 | 137419 | 190238329 | 100.000 {190101710 | 136619 | 190238329 | 100.000 | 0.000
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i) Shareholding of Promoters

Shareholding at the beginning of the year| Shareholding at the end of the year

P % of total | % of Shares % of total | % of Shares | % of changein
areholder's Name i

shares Pledged/ shares | Pledged | shargholding

B DR ofthe | encumbered A0, B of the | encumbered | during the year
1 Deepak Kothari (HUF) 28000 0.015 0.000 28000 0.015 0.000 0.000
2 Deepak Kothari 33440499 17.578 0.000 33440499 17.578 | 0.000 0.000
3 Dipti Kothari 0 0.000 0.000 158441 0.083 0.000 0.083
4 Udai Kothari 33483699 17.601 0.000 33483699 17.601 0.000 0.000
5 Lotus Capital Financial Services Limited 37046208 19.474 0.000 37046208 19.474 | 0.000 0.000
6 U'Y Industries Private Ltd 11000000 5.782 0.000 11000000 5.782 0.000 0.000
TOTAL 114998406 60.450 0.000 115156847 | 60.533 | 0.000 0.083

iii) Change in Promoter’s Shareholding

Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding
Particulars of the year during the year

% of total shares % of total shares

No. of shares No. of shares

of the company of the company

1 | _MR. UDAI KOTHARI

a) At the beginning of the Year 33483699 17.601

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 33483699 17.601
2 | MR. DEEPAK KOTHARI

a) At the beginning of the Year 33440499 17.578

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 33440499 17.578
3 | DEEPAK KOTHARI (HUF)

a) At the beginning of the Year 28000 0.015

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 28000 0.015
4 | Mr. DIPTI KOTHARI

a) At the beginning of the Year 0 0.000

b) Changes during the year

Date Reason

01/01/2021 Transfer 82000 0.043 82000 0.043

08/01/2021 Transfer 76441 0.040 158441 0.083

c) At the End of the Year 158441 0.083
5 | LOTUS CAPITAL FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

a) At the Begining of the Year 37046208 19.474

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 37046208 19.474
6 | UYINDUSTRIES PRIVATE LTD

a) At the Begining of the Year 11000000 5.782

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 11000000 5.782
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iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holder of GDRs and ADRs)

Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding

For each of Top 10 Shareholders of the year during the year

% of total shares % of total shares

No. of shares No. of shares

of the company of the company

1 | ONWARD SUPPLIERS PRIVATE LIMITED
a) At the Begining of the Year 9500000 4,994

b) Changes during the year

Date  Reason

31/12/2020 Transfer -157968 -0.083 9342032 4911

c) At the End of the Year 9342032 4.911
2 | ALLTIME DEALER PRIVATE LIMITED

a) At the Begining of the Year 8418531 4.425

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 8418531 4.425
3 | MOONRISE VINCOM PRIVATE LIMITED

a) At the Begining of the Year 7500000 3.942

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 7500000 3.942
4 | SANGAM MERCHANTS PVT.LTD.

a) At the Begining of the Year 6712156 3.528

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 6712156 3.528
5 | MAINLAND FINANCE PVT. LTD

a) At the Begining of the Year 4712150 2477

b) Changes during the year

Date  Reason

29/01/2021 Transfer 20000 0.011 4732150 2.487
12/02/2021 Transfer 62500 0.033 4794650 2.520
19/02/2021 Transfer 235696 0.124 5030346 2.644
26/02/2021 Transfer 74000 0.039 5104346 2.683
05/03/2021 Transfer 40000 0.021 5144346 2.704
12/03/2021 Transfer 5000 0.003 5149346 2.707
19/03/2021 Transfer 65000 0.034 5214346 2.741
c) At the End of the Year 5214346 2.741
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Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding

For each of Top 10 Shareholders of the year during the year

% of total shares % of total shares

No. of shares No. of shares

of the company of the company

6 | LADOO GARMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

a) At the Begining of the Year 3342016 1.757
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 3342016 1.757

7 | PMB HOLDINGS PVT LTD

a) At the Begining of the Year 2986623 1.570

b) Changes during the year

Date  Reason

01/05/2020 Transfer -7 0.000 2986616 1.570
15/05/2020 Transfer -6 0.000 2986610 1.570
c) At the End of the Year 2986610 1.570

8 | VISHNUPRIYA VINTRADE PRIVATE LIMITED

a) At the Begining of the Year 830000 0.436

b) Changes during the year

Date  Reason

31/03/2021 Transfer 1471436 0.773 2301436 1.210

c) At the End of the Year 2301436 1.210
9 | PKGANGWAL AND SONS PVT LTD

a) At the Begining of the Year 1744793 0.917

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 1744793 0.917

10 | MOTI FINVEST LIMITED

a) At the Begining of the Year 1600000 0.841
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 1600000 0.841

11 | HAMSAFAR VINCOM PRIVATE LIMITED

a) At the Begining of the Year 1229261 0.646
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 1229261 0.646
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v) Shareholding of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year

Particulars % of total shares % of total shares
‘ No. of shares of the company No. of shares of the company
MR. UDAI KOTHARI
a) At the beginning of the Year 33483699 17.601
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 33483699 17.601
MR. DEEPAK KOTHARI
a) At the beginning of the Year 33440499 17.578
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 33440499 17.578
MR. DINESH BURMAN
a) At the beginning of the Year 0 0.000
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 0 0.000
MR. GOVIND KUMAR GOYAL
a) At the beginning of the Year 0 0.000
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 0 0.000
MRS. LEENA HINESH JOBANPUTRA
a) At the beginning of the Year 0 0.000
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 0 0.000
MR. JIGNESH DALAL
a) At the beginning of the Year 0 0.000
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 0 0.000
MR. NISHANT SHARADRAO NANDA
a) At the beginning of the Year 0 0.000
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 0 0.000
MRS. AMRITA MOHTA KOTHARI
a) At the beginning of the Year 0 0.000
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 0 0.000
MR. ALOK BANERJEE
a) At the beginning of the Year 0 0.000
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year | 0 | 0.000
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V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment (Amount in <)
Secured Loan

. Unsecured . Total
Particulars eszll;’:;ﬂg Loans LEpei Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the Financial Year
i) Principal Amount - 8,50,00,000 - 8,50,00,000
ii) Interest due but not paid - 64,18,523 - 64,18,523
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total(i+ii+iii) - 9,14,18,523 - 9,14,18,523
Change in Indebtedness during the Financial Year
Additions - 6,50,00,000 - 6,50,00,000
Reduction - 1,00,00,000 - 1,00,00,000
Net Change - 5,50,00,000 - 5,50,00,000
Indebtedness at the end of the Financial Year
i) Principal Amount - 14,00,00,000 - 14,00,00,000
ii) Interest due but not paid - 1,35,68,139 - 1,35,68,139
| il) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) - 15,35,68,139 - 15,35,68,139

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time director and/or Manager: (Amount in %)

Name of the MD/WTD/Manager

Udai Kothari, Deepak Kothari, Deepak Kothari, Dinesh Burman,

Particulars of Remuneration

Managing Director | Whole-time Director| Managing Director |Whole-time Director|
(Upto 20.09.2020) | (Upto 20.09.2020) | (w.e.f. 21.09.2020)

1 | Gross Salalry
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act,1961.
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the 11,33,333 5,66,667 24,66,667 2,29,500 43,96,167
Income tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Stock option
Sweat Equity
Commission as % of profit
Others, please specify - - - - -
Total (A) 11,33,333 5,66,667 24,66,667 2,29,500 43,96,167

- Remuneration is within limits of the Provisions of
Overall Ceiling as per the Act Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V.

ol W

B. Remuneration to other Directors: (Amount in)
Name of the Directors

Particulars of Remuneration Nishant Leena Hinesh|  Jignesh Govind Udai Kothari |~ Total
Sharadrao Jobanputra Dalal Kumar (w.e.f. Amount
Nanda Goyal 21.09.2020

1. Independent Directors
(a) | Fee for attending Board/Committee meetings 20,000 27,000 27,000 24,000 - 98,000

(b) | Commission - - - - -
(c) | Others, please specify - - - - -
Total (1) 20,000 27,000 27,000 24,000 - 98,000

=

2. Other Non Executive Directors
(a) | Fee for attending Board/Committee meetings - - - - 12,000 12,000

(b) [ Commission
(c) | Others, please specify.

12,000 12,000

Total (2) - - - .
Total (B)=(1+2) 20,000 27,000 27,000 24,000 12,000 1,10,000
Total Managerial Remuneration (A+B) 45,06,167

Annual Report 2020-21




Wealth, Sllc
C,

\)"“ )
O
0(

Extract of Annual Return (Contd.)

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD (Amount in?3)
Key Managerial Personnel

Particulars of Remuneration

Mr. Alok Mrs. Amrita

Banerjee Mohta Kothari

1 | Gross Salalry

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of
the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961 9,50,000 6,98,500 16,48,500

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission as % of profit

Others, please specify

(S N RN b

Total 9,50,000 6,98,500 16,48,500

VIl. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES (Amount in<)

Details of

SEEIELO) Penalty/Punishment/

Authority Appeal made
(RD/NCLT/ if any

the Companies Brief

Description Compounding _ _
At fees imposed Court) (give details)

A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding

B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding

Registered Office:

16 Strand Road By Order of the Board
9th Floor, Room No. 908B Sd/-
Kolkata-700001 Deepak Kothari
Dated: 30th August, 2021 (Chairman & Managing Director)

(DIN :- 00280323)
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Annexure-4 to the Directors' Report
Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of
Subsidiaries / Associate Companies / Joint Ventures

FORM AOC-1

{Pursuant to first proviso to Sub-Section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014}
Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries:-

Arist ital
Name of the Subsidiary Company ristro Capita

Markets Limited

The date since when subsidiary was acquired 25"May, 2013
Reporting period for the subsidiary 31%March, 2021
4 | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant
Financial Year in the case of foreign subsidiaries 4
5 | Share Capital 90,00,000
6 | Reserves & Surplus 8,02,59,800
7 | Total Assets 10,51,81,134
8 | Total Liabilities 10,51,81,134
9 | Investments 59,00,002
10 | Turnover 6,19,61,028
11 Profit before Taxation 1,20,06,462
12 | Provision for Taxation NIL
13 | Profit after Taxation 1,20,06,462
14 | Proposed Dividend NIL
15 | % of share holding 100%
Notes:

1. Names of Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations :- N.A.
2. Names of Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year :- N.A.
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Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of
Subsidiaries / Associate Companies / Joint Ventures (Contd.)

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures:-

Purple Advertising Services

Name of the Associate Company

Private Limited

2 | Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31"March, 2021
3 | Date on which the Associate/Joint Ventures was associated or acquired 7" December, 2012
4 | Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the Company on the year end:
o No. of shares (equity) 25,00,000 Equity Shares
o Amount of investment in Associates/Joint Venture ¥ 9,00,00,000
e Extend of Holding % 33.33%
5 | Description of how there is significant influence Associate
6 | Reason why the Associate is not consolidated
7 | Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet Financials could not be completed and
) . hence same has not been considered
8 | Profit/Loss for the year for consolidation purpose.
Considered in Consolidation
Not considered in Consolidation
Notes:

1. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operations : N.A.
2. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year : N.A.

For Das & Prasad For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 303054E)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sumit Kumar Rajgarhia Deepak Kothari Dinesh Burman
(Partner) (Chairman & Managing Director) (Executive Director)
(Membership No. 068270) (DIN:- 00280323) (DIN:- 00612904)

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Kolkata CA Alok Banerjee Amrita Mohta Kothari
Date: 30th June, 2021 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
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Annexure - 5 to the Directors' Report
Secretarial Audit Report

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" DAY OF MARCH, 2021

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

U.Y.Fincorp Limited

(Formerly known as Golden Goenka Fincorp Limited)
16 Strand Road,

9" Floor, Room No. 908B

Kolkata 700001

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable Statutory Provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by U. Y. Fincorp Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the Corporate Conducts/ Statutory Compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the U. Y. Fincorp Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31* March, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
for the financial year ended 31*March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

I.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
Il.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made there under;
Ill.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

IV. The following Regulations (as amended from time to time) and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992:-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993;

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for systems and mechanism formed by the
Company for compliance under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations. The List of major head/groups of Acts, Laws
and Regulations as applicable to the Company inter-alia includes:

The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and the regulations made there under.
We have also examined the compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i. The uniform Listing Agreements entered into by the Company, with The BSE Limited & The Calcutta Stock
Exchange Limited.

ii. The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

iii. The Secretarial Standards (SS - 1 and SS -2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
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Secretarial Audit Report (Contd.)

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that :

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors, Independent Directors and a Woman Director. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate Notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board/Committee Meetings. Information and circulation of the
agenda with detailed information thereof, convening of meetings was done in compliance with the applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines, etc. A system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meetings.

Resolutions were carried through majority decision. The minutes of the meetings held during the audit period did not reveal
any dissenting members’ views.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, Rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the period under review we have not come across with any events having major bearing on the
affairs of the company.

Place: Kolkata

Date: 30th August, 2021
UDIN: A040967C000889111 For Prateek Kohli & Associates
(Company Secretaries)
Sd/-
Prateek Kohli
(Partner)
(C.P. No.: 16457)

{Our report is also to be read with our letter annexed in “Annexure A”.}
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Secretarial Audit Report (Contd.)

To,

‘Annexure A’

The Members
U.Y.Fincorp Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1)

2)

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

Were ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30th August, 2021
UDIN: A040967C000889111 For Prateek Kohli & Associates

(Company Secretaries)
Sd/-

Prateek Kohli

(Partner)

(C.P. No.: 16457)
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Annexure-6 to the Directors' Report
Particulars of Employees

PARTICULARS UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES

(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 AND COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) AMENDEMENT RULES, 2016

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for
the Financial Year 2020-2021 :-

SI. No. | Name of the Director | Ratio
1 Deepak Kothari (Managing Director w.e.f. 21.09.2020) 4.35:1
2 Deepak Kothari (Whole-time Director upto 20.09.2020) 1:1
3 Udai Kothari (Managing Director upto 20.09.2020) 2:1
4 Dinesh Burman ( Whole-time Director) 0.41:1

Other Directors of the Company are paid only sitting fees which are not considered as remuneration.

(ii) The percentage increase in the remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary or
manager in the Financial Year 2020-2021 : -

SI. No. | Name | % Increase
1 Deepak Kothari (Managing Director w.e.f. 21.09.2020) NIL
2 Deepak Kothari (Whole-time Director upto 20.09.2020) NIL
3 Udai Kothari (Managing Director upto 20.09.2020) NIL
4 Dinesh Burman ( Whole-time Director) NIL
5 Amrita Mohta Kothari (Company Secretary) NIL
6 Alok Banerjee (Chief Financial Officer) NIL

Other Directors of the Company are paid only sitting fees which are not considered as remuneration.
(iii) The percentage increase inthe median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year 2020-2021 :- 42.92%
(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: -

There were 9 employees on the rolls as on March 31, 2021.

(v) Average percentage increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in
the last financial year and its comparison with the percentage increase in the managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration:-

There was no increase in Remuneration paid to Managing Director & Whole-time Director during the financial year ended
31*March, 2021,

(vi) Affirmation thatthe remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company:- Yes

For U. Y. Fincorp Limited

Place: Kolkata Sd/-
Date: 30th August 2021 Deepak Kothari

(Chairman & Managing Director)

(DIN:- 00280323)
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Annexure-7 to the Directors' Report
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities to be included in the Board's Report for

the financial year ending on 31st March, 2021

Brief outline on the CSR Policy of the Company:

In terms of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors have constituted a
“Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee.”

On the recommendation of the said committee, the Board has approved a Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') policy
which contains the CSR activities being carried out by the Company, governance structure, implementation process,
etc.

The Policy recognizes that corporate social responsibility is not merely compliance; it is a commitment to support
initiatives that measurably improve the lives of underprivileged by one or more of the following focus areas as notified
under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014:

@ Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition.
Promoting Health care including Preventive Health care.
Ensuring environmental sustainability and ecological balance.

[
[
® Employmentand livelihood enhancing vocational skills and projects.
® Promotion of education.

[

Promoting gender equality and women empowerment.

® Rural Development Projects etc.
Composition of the CSR Commiittee:

Name of the Director Designation/Nature of Directorship Number of Number of
meetings of meetings of CSR
CSR Committee Committee
held during the | attended during
year the year
; ; 1 1
: : Chairperson, Non-Executive Non-
1 Mr. Udai Kothari Independent Director
2 Mr. Dinesh Burman Member, Executive Director 1 1
3 Mr. Jignesh Dalal Member, Independent Director 1 1

The web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are
disclosed on the website of the Company:

a. Web-link where CSR policies and projects are disclosed:
https://www.uyfincorp.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/UYFL CSR-Policy.pdf

b. Web-link where the composition of CSR Committee is disclosed:
https://www.uyfincorp.com/composition-of-board-committees/

The details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not Applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any

Amount Available for set off from Amount required to be set off for
Financial Year preceding financial year financial year, if any
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Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities(Contd.)

6. Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5):¥ 1,082.85 Lakhs

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5):¥21.66 Lakhs
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NIL
(c) Amountrequired to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7¢):321.66 Lakhs

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent

Total Amount Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Spent for the Account as per Section 135(6) Schedule VIl as per second proviso to Section 135(5)
Fi ial Ye
fnanctat vear Amount Date of Transfer Name of Fund Amount Date of Transfer
% 22.29 Lakhs NIL
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
Sl | Name Item Local | Location of | Project Amount Amount Amount Mode of Mode of
No. | of the from area | theproject | duratio | allocated spentin | transferred | Implem | Implementation
Projec | the list of n for the the to Unspent | entation | Tlh"°”9?_
t activities | (Yes/ | State | Dist project current CSR -Direct m’;\;':::y'“g
n No) ict financial Account (Y/N)
Schedule © re ear for the
VIl to the v ! Nam | CSR
Act project .as e Registr
per Section ation
135(6) No.
NIL
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
sl Name of the Project Item from | Local | Location of the project Amount | Mode of | Mode of Implemen-
No the list of | area spent Implem tation through
activities | (Yes/ for the entation Implementing
in No - -Direct Agency
Schedule ) proleCt (Y/N)
Vil to the State District Name _ CSR
Act Registration No.
1 | Action for Rural Technology (x) No Maharashtra Yavatmal | ¥ 4.29Lakhs | Direct
2 | Kanpur Parivartan Forum (i) No Uttar Pradesh | Kanpur 33 Lakhs Direct
N. A.
3 | Shri Jagatbharti Education (i) No Gujarat Surendran | ¥ 15 Lakhs | Direct
& Charitable Trust agar

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e):322.29 Lakhs
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Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities(Contd.)

(9) Excess amount for set off, if any:

Sl Particular Amount
No.

(i) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) ¥ 21.66 Lakh
(i) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 322.29 Lakhs
(i) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] % 0.68 Lakhs
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any | NIL

(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] % 0.63 Lakhs

9 (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial year(s):

Sl. | Preceding Amount Amount spent Amount transferred to any fund Amount
No. Fi . transferred In the specified under Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if any remaining
inancial N .
to Unspent Reporting to be spent in
Year CSR Financial Name of Amount Date of succeeding
Account Year financial years
U/S 135(6) the Fund Transfer
1 2019 - 20
2 | 2018-19 NIL
3 2017 -18

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing project of the preceding financial year(s)

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

SI | Project | Name of | Financial Year | Project Total Amount spent | Cumulative | Status of

No. ID the in which the | duration Amount on the project Amount the
Project project was Allocated in the spent at project -

commenced For the reporting the end of | Completed/
Project Financial Year | reporting Ongoing
Financial
Year
NIL

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired
through CSR spentin the financial year: Not Applicable

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Not Applicable
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Not Applicable

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered,
their address etc: Not Applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the
capital asset): Not Applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section
135(5). — Not Applicable

For and on behalf of Board For and on behalf of Board
Place: Kolkata Sd/- Sd/-
Date: 30th August 2021 Deepak Kothari Udai Kothari

Chairman & Managing Director Chairperson, CSR Committee
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TO THE MEMBERS OF U.Y. FINCORP LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of U.Y. Fincorp Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),

the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the profit and total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

Auditor’s Response

We started our audit procedures with the
understanding of the internal control environment
related to Impairment loss allowance. Our procedures
over internal controls focused on recognition and
measurement of impairment loss allowance. We
assessed the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the selected key controls
implemented by the Company.
We also assessed whether the impairment
methodology used by the Company is in line with
the requirements of Ind AS 109, “Financial
instruments”. More particularly, we assessed the

Key Audit Matter (KAM)

1 Impairment loss allowance of loans and
advances

Impairment loss allowance of loans and advances
(“Impairment loss allowance”) is a key audit matter
as the Company has significant credit risk exposure.
The value of loans and advances on the balance
sheet is significant and there is a high degree of
complexity and judgement involved for the
Company in estimating individual and collective
credit impairment provisions and write-offs against
these loans. The Company's model to calculate
expected credit loss (“ECL”) is inherently complex

and judgement is applied in determining the three-
stage impairment model (“ECL Model”), including
the selection and input of forward-looking
information. ECL provision calculations require the
use of large volumes of data. The completeness and
reliability of data can significantly impact the

approach of the Company regarding the definition of
default, Probability of Default, Loss Given Default
and incorporation of forward-looking information for
the calculation of ECL.

For loans and advances which are assessed for
impairment on a portfolio basis, we performed
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Key Audit Matter (KAM)

accuracy of the modelled impairment provisions.
The accuracy of data flows and the implementation
of related controls are critical for the integrity of the

<°°’

Auditor’s Response

particularly the following procedures:

o tested the reliability of key data inputs and related
management controls;

o\, Wealth, sllc
C,

estimated impairment provisions. e checked the stage classification as at the balance

sheet date as per definition of default;

evalidated the ECL model and calculation by
involving our Information Technology Expert;

« calculated the ECL provision manually for a selected
sample; and

« assessed the assumptions made by the Company in
making accelerated provision, considering forward
looking information and based on the status of a
particular industry as on the reporting date.

For loans and advances which are written off during
the year under audit, we read and understood the
methodology and policy laid down and implemented
by the Company in this regard along with its
compliance on sample basis.

standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the Standalone Financial Statement

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
buttodoso.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material

if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books
ofaccount.

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements
as stated in Note No 28 to the Ind AS financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

For Das & Prasad

Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No.303054E)
Sd/-

Sumit Kumar Rajgarhia
(Partner)

(Membership No. 068270)

UDIN - 21068270AAAAAT5647

Place: Kolkata
Date: June 30, 2021
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Annexure - A to the Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of U. Y. Fincorp Limited (“the Company”) as of March
31,2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
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Annexure - A to the Auditor's Report (Contd.)

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Das & Prasad
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.303054E)

Sd/-

Sumit Kumar Rajgarhia
(Partner)

(Membership No. 068270)
UDIN - 21068270AAAAAT5647

Place: Kolkata
Date: June 30, 2021
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Annexure - B to the Auditor's Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on the standalone Ind AS
financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2021, we report that:

() (@ TheCompany has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
the fixed assets;

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year under audit by the Management in accordance with a
regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at
reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on the such verification;

(c) As perinformation and explanation given to us by the management, and the records verified by us and based on the
examination of the registered sale deed / lease deed provided to us, we report that all the immovable properties are
held in the name of the Company.

(i) Inouropinion, the inventories which include shares in dematerialised were verified through demat statement, during the
year by the Management at reasonable intervals and as explained to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification.

(i) In respect of the loans, secured or unsecured, granted by the Company to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013:

(@ In our opinion and according to the information given to us, the terms and conditions of the loans given by the
Company are prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and repayments of principal
amounts and /or receipts of interest have been regular as per stipulations.

(c) There are no overdue amounts in respect of the loan granted to the aforesaid listed in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Act.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made and guarantee and security
provided.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public covered under Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) Being a Non-Banking Financial Company, the provisions of paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(vii) (@) According to the records of the Company, undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income Tax,
Service Tax, Cess or other material statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited during the year by the
Company with appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanation given to us no undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax,GST, Cess or other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they become
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no disputed dues which have not been
deposited by the company on account of dispute as at March 31, 2021

(viii) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks, government or debenture
holders during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

(ix) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer
or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year ended March 31, 2021. Accordingly
paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given to us, we report that no material
fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the period, nor have we been informed of such case by
the management;

(xi) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has paid or provided managerial remuneration in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
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(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and
hence the paragraph 3(xii) is not applicable;

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details
of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Indian accounting
standards

(xiv) According to information and explanation given to us the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the period under review;

(xv) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly the paragraph 3(xv) is not applicable the Company;

(xvi) In our opinion and on the basis of information and explanation given to us by the management, the Company is required
to be registered under section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and the company has obtained the necessary
registration.

For Das & Prasad
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.303054E)

Sd/-

Sumit Kumar Rajgarhia
(Partner)

(Membership No. 068270)
UDIN - 20068270AAAAAT5647

Place: Kolkata
Date: June 30, 2021
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021

(T in Lakhs)
) As at As at
DS 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
I ASSETS
1 Financial Assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 982.36 57.77
(b) Bank balance other than (a) above 4 1.55 1.55

(c) Receivables

(i) Trade receivables 5 - -
(d) Loans 6 20,713.07 20,297.80
(e) Investment 7 4,741.78 4,638.45
(f) Other Financial Assets 8 1,255.39 1,192.29
2. Non-Financial Assets
(@) Inventories 9 0.81 0.65
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 23.08 -
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 10 574.70 589.23
(d) Investmentin Property 12 11.89 11.89
(e) Property, Plant and Equipment 11 86.64 97.64
(f)  Other Non-Financial Assets 13 0.76 0.62
Total Assets 28,392.05 26,887.88
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
1. Financial Liabilities
(a) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 14 1,400.00 850.00
(b) Other Financial Liabilities 15 144.90 75.97
2. Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Provisions 16 2,557.69 2,574.82
(b) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) - 26.44
(c) Other Non-Financial Liabilities 17 85.77 107.95
3. Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 18 9,511.92 9,511.92
(b) Other Equity 19 14,691.76 13,740.79
Total Liabilities and Equities 28,392.05 26,887.88
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements 11to 42
The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date
For Das & Prasad For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 303054E)
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sumit Kumar Rajgarhia Deepak Kothari Dinesh Burman
(Partner) (Chairman & Managing Director) (Executive Director)
(Membership No. 068270) (DIN:- 00280323) (DIN:-00612904)
Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Kolkata CA Alok Banerjee Amrita Mohta Kothari
Date: 30 June, 2021 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
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Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021

(T in Lakhs)
Particulars Note For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Revenue from Operations 20
Interest Income 1,398.53 1,721.17
(I) Total revenue from operations 1,398.53 1,721.17
(1) Other Income 21 103.45 80.77
(1) Total Income (I1+11) 1,501.99 1,801.94
Expenses
Finance Costs 22 77.29 71.32
Impairment of Financial Instruments (15.62) 1,078.45
Change in Inventories of Finished Goods 23 (0.17) 0.19
Employee Benefits Expenses 24 79.23 117.81
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 25 10.99 14.08
Other Expenses 26 96.81 62.44
(IV) Total Expenses 248.53 1,344.28
(V) Profit/(Loss) before Tax (llI-1V) 1,253.46 457.66
(V1) Tax Expenses
Current Tax 289.94 372.52
Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) 14.52 (215.06)
Income Tax relating to earlier years - 25.26
(Vll) Profit/(Loss) for the year (V-VI) 949.00 274.93
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expenses) (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 1.98 (0.45)
- Net Loss on Fair Value Changes - (241.08)
(VII) Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 1.98 (241.53)
(IX) Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the period (VII+VIiI) 950.98 33.40
Earnings per equity share 27
[Nominal value: ¥ 5 per share]
Basic R) 0.50 0.14
Diluted R®) 0.50 0.14
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements 11to 42
The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Statement of Profit & Loss
This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date
For Das & Prasad For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 303054E)
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sumit Kumar Rajgarhia Deepak Kothari Dinesh Burman
(Partner) (Chairman & Managing Director) (Executive Director)
(Membership No. 068270) (DIN:- 00280323) (DIN:-00612904)
Sd/- Sd/-

Place: Kolkata CA Alok Banerjee Amrita Mohta Kothari
Date: 30 June, 2021 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
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Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

(T in Lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before extraordinary items and tax 1,253.46 457.66
Adjustment for:
Depreciation/ Amortisation and Impairment 10.99 14.08
Finance costs 77.29 71.32
Acturial Gain/ Loss on defined benefit obligation 1.98 (0.45)
Deemded Interest on Amortised Cost (103.45) (41.78)
Operating profit before Working Capital Changes 1,240.27 500.82
Adjustment for:
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and other Receivables = -
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans Assets (415.26) (71.73)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Bank Balances - 1.20
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets (63.10) 36.68
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (0.17) 0.19
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non Financial Assets (0.14) 0.10
Increase/( Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 68.94 75.97
Increase/( Decrease) in Provisions (17.13) 1,079.76
Increase/( Decrease) in Other Non Financial Liabilities (22.06) (8.32)
Cash Generated from / (used in) Operations 791.34 1,614.67
Direct Taxes Paid/Refund received (339.46) (125.45)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities a 451.87 1,489.22
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Capital Advances received - 100.00
(Purchase) / Additions of Property, Plant & Equipments (Net) 0.01 (22.29)
Purchase of Investment - (2,500.00)
Net cash flow from /(used in) Investing Activities b 0.01 (2,422.29)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Borrowings 550.00 850.00
Dividend Paid - -
Tax on Dividend Paid - (0.25)
Finance cost (77.29) (71.32)
Net Cash Flow from /(used in) Financing Activities c 472.71 778.43
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents a+b+c 924.59 (154.64)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 57.77 212.41
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 982.36 57.77
Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year
a) Cash on Hand 1.19 5.13
b) Balance with Banks - In Current Accounts 981.17 52.64
Total 982.36 57.77

Explanations:
1. Theabove Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set outin the IND - AS 7 ‘Statement Cash Flow'
2. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year's classification.

Thisis the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

For Das & Prasad For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 303054E)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sumit Kumar Rajgarhia Deepak Kothari Dinesh Burman
(Partner) (Chairman & Managing Director) (Executive Director)
(Membership No. 068270) (DIN:- 00280323) (DIN:-00612904)

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Kolkata CA Alok Banerjee Amrita Mohta Kothari
Date: 30 June, 2021 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
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Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity

A. Equity Share Capital (X in Lakhs)
: As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
Particulars
No. ofshares | _Amount

At the beginning of the year 19,02,38,329 9,511.92 |19,02,38,329 9,511.92

Add: Addition during the year - -

At the End of the year 9,511.92 9,511.92

B. Other Equity (% in Lakhs)
Particulars Special Reserve | Fair Value of
Securities - [Reserve Fund Other
Premium F:Ezt::?ned ROther S i as per Section | Comprehensive
Reserve 9 eserve | Reserve | 45.1C of RBI | Income (FVOCI)
Act, 1934] Equity
Investments
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 11,114.76 3,315.96 - 3.73 973.18 (450.00) 14,957.64
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year - 274.93 | (1,250.00) - - (241.08) (1,216.15)
Add/(Less): Other Comprehensive Income - (0.45) - - - - (0.45)
Add/(Less): Transfer to Special Reserve - (5.50) - - 5.50 - -
Add/(Less): Special Reserve excess
transfered in earlier year - - - - - - -
Add/Less: Transfer to Fair Value
Reserve against OCD - (41.67) 41.67 - - - -

Less: Dividend Paid - - - - - - -
Less: Tax on Dividend - (0.25) - - - - (0.25)
Balance as at 31st March 2020 11,114.76 3,543.03 | (1,208.33) 3.73 978.68 (691.08) 13,740.79
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year - 949.00 - - - - 949.00
Add/(Less): Other Comprehensive Income - 1.98 - - - - 1.98
Add/(Less): Transfer to Special Reserve - (239.29) - - 239.29 - -
Add/Less: Transfer to Fair Value Reserve against OCD - (103.33) 103.33 - - - -
Less: Dividend Paid - - - - - - -
Less: Tax on Dividend - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 11,114.76 4,151.39 | (1,105.00) 3.73 1,217.97 (691.08) 14,691.76

Description of reserves in statement of changes in equity

i) Securities Premium Reserve:
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is available for utilisation in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

ii) Retained Earnings:

Retained earnings represents accumulated profits earned by the company and remaining undistributed as on date.

iii) Other Reserve:

Other Reserve is created to recognise the effects of present value of financial assets.

iv) General Reserve:

General reserve is created and utilised in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

v) Special Reserve [Reserve Fund as per Section 45-IC of RBI Act, 1934]: Statutory reserves fund is required to be created by a Non-Banking Financial
Company as per Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The Company is not allowed to use the reserve fund except with authorisation of Reserve
Bank of India.

vi) FVOCI Equity Investments:

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity instruments through other comprehensive income. These
changes are accumulated within the FVOCI equity investments reserve. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the
relevant equity securities are derecognised

As per our report of even date attached

For Das & Prasad For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 303054E)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sumit Kumar Rajgarhia Deepak Kothari Dinesh Burman
(Partner) (Chairman & Managing Director) (Executive Director)
(Membership No. 068270) (DIN:- 00280323) (DIN:- 00612904)

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Kolkata CA Alok Banerjee Amrita Mohta Kothari
Date: 30th June, 2021 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone Financial
Statements as at and for the period ended 31st March 2021

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

U. Y. Fincorp Limited (UYFL) is a RBI registered Non-Banking Financial Company. The Company was originally
incorporated with the Registrar of Companies, West Bengal on October 7, 1993 as Golden Securities Private Limited.
Pursuant to Shareholders Resolution dated November 30, 1994. The Company was converted into Public Limited
Company and the name was changed to “Golden Securities Limited”. Fresh Certificate of Incorporation consequent to
such change of name was issued by the Registrar of Companies, West Bengal vide certificate dated December 13, 1994.
The name of our Company was changed to Golden Goenka Fincorp Limited and a fresh Certificate of Incorporation
reflecting the new name was issued by the Registrar of Companies, West Bengal on November 21, 2011. Subsequently
the name of Company was changed to its present name “U. Y. Fincorp Limited” and a fresh Certificate of Incorporation
reflecting the new name was issued by the Registrar of Companies, West Bengal on December 10, 2018. Company made
its public issue in the year 1995 and subsequently got its shares listed at BSE Limited and The Calcutta Stock Exchange
Limited in the same year. The RBI granted a certificate of registration dated April 20, 1998, permitting the Company to
carry on the business of a NBFC as a non deposit taking company. Subsequently, Company has received a fresh
certificate pursuant to change of name of Company. U. Y. Fincorp Limited is primarily focused in providing inter corporate
loans, personal loans and investments in securities and trading in securities.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013.

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosures in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 —
Inventories or value in use in Ind AS 36 — Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

¢ Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can
access at the measurement date;

e | evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e | evel 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
B) Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

The The preparation of the financial statements require the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual result. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting
policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a high degree of judgement or complexity, and of items
which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those
originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes
together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone Financial Statements (Contd.)

Critical estimates and judgements
The areas involving critical estimates and judgements are:
i) Taxation

The Company is engaged in financial and related services and also subject to tax liability under MAT provisions.
Significant judgement is involved in determining the tax liability for the Company. Also there are many transactions
and calculations during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Further
judgement is involved in determining the deferred tax position on the balance sheet date.

ii) Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation is based on management estimates of the future useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. Estimates may change due to technological developments, competition, changes
in market conditions and other factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in the depreciation
and amortisation charges.

iii) Employee Benefits

The present value of the defined benefit obligations and long term employee benefits depends on a number of factors
that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the
net cost (income) include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of
defined benefit obligations.

The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be
used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the
obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Company considers the interest rates of Government
securities that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related defined benefit obligation. Other key
assumptions for obligations are based in part on current market conditions.

iv) Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions and contingencies are based on Management’s best estimate of the liabilities based on the facts known at
the balance sheet date.

v) Impairment charges on loans and advances

The measurement of impairment losses requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These are based on the assumptions which are driven by a number of factors resulting in future
changes to the impairment allowance.

A collective assessment of impairment takes into account data from the loan portfolio (such as credit quality, nature of
assets underlying assets financed, levels of arrears, credit utilization, loan to collateral ratios etc.), and the
concentration of risk and economic data (including levels of unemployment, country risk and performance of different
individual groups). These significant assumptions have been applied consistently to all period presented.

vi) EIR method

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best
estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect
of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including
prepayments and penalty interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the
instruments, as well expected changes to India’s base rate and other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the
instrument.

vii) Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19

The Company has considered internal and external information up to the date of approval of financial statements. In
assessing the recoverability of property plant and equipments, receivables, intangible assets, cash and cash
equivalent and investments. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based
on current indicators of future economic conditions; the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of these
assets. The Company has concluded that the impact of COVID — 19 is not material based on these estimates .The
impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial
statements and the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone Financial Statements (Contd.)

C) Property, plant and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is
applied to the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular
servicing, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the carrying
value of the replaced part is de-recognised. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major
components having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate items.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes all
direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Trial run expenses (net of revenue) are capitalised. Borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction is
capitalised as part of cost of the qualifying assets.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset, and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

D

~

Intangibles

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with definite useful lives are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

E) Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Depreciation is provided on prorata basis on straight line method at the rates determined based on estimated useful
lives of tangible assets where applicable, specified in Schedule Il to the Act. These charges are commenced from the
dates the assets are available for their intended use and are spread over their estimated useful economic lives or, in
the case of leased assets, over the lease period, if shorter. The estimated useful lives of assets and residual values are
reviewed regularly and, when necessary, revised. No further charge is provided in respect of assets that are fully
written down but are still in use. Depreciation on assets under construction commences only when the assets are
ready for theirintended use.

F) Impairment
i) Tangible and Intangible Assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying values of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying value of those assets may not be
recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in
order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and when
the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying
value that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately.

ii) Investmentin Subsidiaries and Associates

The carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in accordance with Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets as
asingle asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with Ind AS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

G) Leases

The Company determines whether an arrangement contains a lease by assessing whether the fulfillment of a
transaction is dependent on the use of a specific asset and whether the transaction conveys the right to use that asset
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to the Company in return for payment. Where this occurs, the arrangement is deemed to include a lease and is
accounted for either as finance or operating lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company as lessee
(i) Operating lease

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the
term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

(i) Finance lease

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of lease, at the lower of the fair value of the property or the
present value of the minimum lease payments.The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet
as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the lease.

The Company as Lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Company’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.Rental income from operating
leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are
structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the Company’s expected
inflationary costincreases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on
initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in the statement
of Profit & Loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

a) Financial assets

Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances consist of :
(i) Cashand cash equivalents -

which includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term deposits which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and have maturities of
less than one year from the date of such deposits. These balances with banks are unrestricted for withdrawal and
usage.

(i) Other bank balances

which includes balances and deposits with banks that are restricted for withdrawal and usage.
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Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell
these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company in respect of equity investments (other than in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) which are not
held for trading has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in
the fair value of such equity instruments. Such an election is made by the Company on an instrument by instrument
basis at the time of initial recognition of such equity investments

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried at fair
value through the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets.

e Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits and trade receivables

e  Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

e Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions
that are within the scope of Ind AS 18.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The
application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cashflows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in the
statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and
loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset
meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance
is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the
OCl.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone Financial Statements (Contd.)

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets
which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
orittransfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all
ofits liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured
atamortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant.

Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in
the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company uses certain derivative financial instruments to reduce business risks
which arise from its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate fluctuations. The instruments are confined
principally to forward foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swaps. The instruments are employed as hedges
of transactions included in the financial statements or for highly probable forecast transactions/firm contractual
commitments. These derivatives contracts do not generally extend beyond six months except for interest rate
derivatives.

Derivatives are initially accounted for and measured at fair value from the date the derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.

) Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to state managed
retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the Company’s
obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit retirement schemes the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement gains and losses of
the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The service cost
and net interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) is treated as a net expense within employment costs.
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Past service cost is recognised as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or when any related
restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised, whichever is earlier.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as reduced by the fair value plan assets.

Compensated absences

Short term compensated expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the related
service isrendered.

J) Provision

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can
be reliably estimated. Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are measured on a
discounted basis.

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:

(a) by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity
has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities and;(b) as a result, the entity has created a valid
expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those responsibilities.

K) Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured
at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of
continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the
assets associated with that contract.

L) Income taxes

Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the statement of profit and loss because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying values of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. In contrast, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
itis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to cover or settle the
carrying value of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority and
there are legally enforceable rights to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities within that jurisdiction.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in the statement of profit and loss, except when they
relate to items credited or debited either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely
to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. MAT is
recognised as deferred tax assets in the Balance Sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable
that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.
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M) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable net of discounts, taking into account contractually defined terms and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Interestincome

Interest income from financial assets is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR’) to the gross carrying
amount of financial assets, other than credit-impaired assets and those classified as measured at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss (FVTPL) or Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI). Interest Income on credit impaired
financial assets is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost (net of provision) of the
financial asset.

Dividend Income

Income from dividend is recognised when the Company’s right to receive such dividend is established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a
recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

N) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds
including interest expense calculated using the effective interest method, finance charges in respect of assets
acquired on finance lease. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
forthe intended use or sale.

0) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the
balance sheet.

P) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision forimpairment, if any.

Q) Segment Reporting
Identification of Segments

The management is of the view that the business of the company predominantly falls within a single primary segment
viz"Financial & Related Services" and hence there are no seperate reportable segments as per Ind-AS dealing with the
segmentreporting.

R) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

S) Contingent Liabilities and Assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements, but are disclosed where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents (% in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
articutars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Cash on hand 1.19 5.13
Balances with banks:

- In Current accounts 981.17 52.64
Total 982.36 57.77
4. Bank Balance Other Than Cash and Cash Equivalents (% in Lakhs)

Particul As at As at
articutars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Balance in Unclaimed Dividend Account 1.55 1.55
Total 1.55 1.55
5. Trade receivables (Unsecured) (% in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
articufars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Other Debts = -
Doubtful - _

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables - -

Total - -
Ageing of receivables that are post due but notimpaired

60-90days

91-180days

>180days

The credit period on sales of goods ranges from 14 to 60 days without security. No interest is charged on trade receivables
upto the end of the credit period.

In determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the
expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account
historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based
on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix. There has been no significant change in
the credit quality of receivables past due for more than 180 days.

The Company does not generally hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a
legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the Company to the counter-party.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Company considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is
limited due to the fact that the customer base is large and unrelated.

6. Loans (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) (¥ in Lakhs)

Particular As at As at
articutars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Secured by tangible assets

-Two-Wheeler Loans 2.16 2.16
Unsecured

Loan to Related parties 10,431.10 9,344.50

[Refer note 41]

Loan to Others 10,279.81 10,951.15
Total 20,713.07 20,297.80
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021 (Contd.)

8. Other Financial Assets (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) (% in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
articuiars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Security Deposit 2.21 2.04
Other Advances 1.70 -
Interest accrued and due on Loans 1,223.76 1,137.06
Interest accrued but not due on Loans 20.51 46.58
Advance to Staffs 7.20 6.60
Total 1,255.39 1,192.29
9. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value) (X in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
articuiars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Shares & Securities (At lower of cost and net realisable value) 0.81 0.65
(Refer Annexure | to Notes to Financial Statements)
Total 0.81 0.65
10 Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liability) (net) (% in Lakhs)

As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Particulars

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, Plant & Equipment - -

(A) - -
Deferred Tax Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 5.24 5.13
Others 569.47 584.10
(B) 574.70 589.23
Net Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) (B-A) 574.70 589.23
Movement in Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (T in Lakhs)
Particulars Pgioé) (;e;t%”l? ;T Others
As at 1st April 2019 4.73 369.44
(Charged)/ Credit to
- profit & loss 0.40 214.66
- other comprehensive income - -
As at 31st March 2020 5.13 584.10
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 589.23
As at 31st March 2020
(Charged)/ Credit to
- profit & loss 0.11 (14.63)
- other comprehensive income = =
As at 31st March 2021 5.24 569.47
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 574.70
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021 (Contd.)

11. Property, Plant & Equipments (% in Lakhs)
Air-conditioner |  Office & 8 .
. : Furniture and Motor Office
FEEEE & Szl Fixtures Vehicles | COMPUters | promises
Equipments | Equipment
Gross Block (At Cost)
Deemed Cost
as at 1st April, 2019 1.13 417 15.36 7.83 4.51 74.80 107.80
Additions - - - 21.17 - 1.13 22.29
Disposals/Discard - - - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2020 1.13 417 15.36 29.00 4.51 75.93 130.10
Additions - - - - 0.17 - 0.17
Disposals/Discard - - - 0.17 - - 0.17
As at 31st March, 2021 1.13 417 15.36 28.83 4.67 75.93 130.09
Accumulated Depreciation/Amortisation:
As at 1st April, 2019 0.29 1.88 3.98 2.45 2.68 7.11 18.38
Charge / Adjustment for the year 0.22 1.03 2.95 2.30 1.05 6.54 14.08
Disposals/Discard - - - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2020 0.51 2.91 6.92 4.74 3.73 13.64 32.46
Charge / Adjustment for the year 0.16 0.57 2.18 1.75 0.41 5.92 10.99
Disposals/Discard - - - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2021 0.67 3.48 9.11 6.49 4.14 19.56 43.45
Net Block
As at 31st March, 2021 0.46 0.69 6.25 22.33 0.53 56.37 86.64
As at 31st March, 2020 0.62 1.26 8.43 24.26 0.78 62.28 97.64
As at 1st April, 2019 0.84 2.29 11.38 5.39 1.83 67.69 89.42
12. Investment in Property (% in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
artieuiars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Land 11.89 11.89
Total 11.89 11.89
Reconcilation Fair Value (¥ in Lakhs)
Balance as on 1st April, 2019 8.71
Increase/ (Decrease) in Fair Value 0.39
Closing balance at 31st March, 2020 9.10
Increase/ (Decrease) in Fair Value (2.17)
Closing balance at 31st March, 2021 6.93

Discription of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on investment properties:

Valuation Technique Significant unobservable inputs

The present market value of the land at its vicinity is assessed on the
Land basis of Goverment rates & extensive local enquiries.
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021 (Contd.)

13. Other Non-Financial Assets (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) (% in Lakhs)

As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Particulars

Prepaid Expenses 0.71 0.56
Others 0.06 0.06
Total 0.76 0.62
14. Borrowings (at amortised cost) (% in Lakhs)

As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Unsecured Loan, repayable on demand
a) From Body Corporate - -
b) Loans from related party* 1,400.00 850.00

Total 1,400.00 850.00

* Loan from related party bears interest at the rate of 9% per annum.

15. Other Financial Liabilities (¥ in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
articuiars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Interest accrued & due on borrowings 135.68 64.19
Employee Related Liability 7.26 9.58
Other Liability for Expense 1.97 2.21
Total 144.90 75.97
16 Provisions (¥ in Lakhs)

As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Provision for employee benefits:

Gratuity (Refer note no. 29) (5.88) (4.37)
Contingent Provisions Against Standard Assets 37.77 36.70
Provisions Against Non-Performng Assets 2.525.81 2,542.49
Total 2,557.69 2,574.82
17. Other Non-Financial Liabilities (% in Lakhs)

As at As at

Sl 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Liability for Expenses - -

Unclaimed Dividend 1.55 1.55
Capital Advance 80.00 100.00
Statutory Liabilities 4.22 6.40
Total 85.77 107.95
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021 (Contd.)

18. Share Capital (% in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
articutars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Authorised
Equity Shares, X 5/- par value per share 10,000.00 10,000.00
20,00,00,000 (Previous year: 20,00,00,000), Equity Shares
10,000.00 10,000.00
Issued
Equity Shares, ¥ 5/- par value per share
19,32,01,120 (Previous year: 19,32,01,120), Equity Shares 9,660.06 9,660.06
9,660.06 9,660.06

Subscribed and Fully Paid-up
Equity Shares, T 5/- par value per share 9,511.92 9511.92
19,02,38,329 (Previous year: 19,02,38,329), Equity Shares

9,511.92 9511.92

(a) Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :
The reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding and the corresponding amount thereof, as at the Balance Sheet date

is set out below: (¥ in Lakhs)
As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020

Particulars

No. of shares (Amount) No. of shares (Amount)

At the beginning of the financial year 19,02,38,329 9,511.9219,02,38,329 9,511.92

Add: Shares issued as fully paid-up
during the financial year - = - -

At the end of the financial year 19,02,38,329 9,511.92 (19,02,38,329 9,5611.92

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect of each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution
of dividends and the repayment of capital :

The Company’s authorised capital consist of one class of shares, referred to as equity shares, having par value of ¥ 5/-
each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining asset
of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020

% of Holding | No. of shares | % of Holding

Name of Shareholders

Mr. Udai Kothari 3,34,83,699 17.60% | 3,34,83,699 17.60%
Mr. Deepak Kothari 3,34,40,499 17.58% | 3,34,40,499 17.58%
Lotus Capital Financial Services Limited 3,70,46,208 19.47% | 3,70,46,208 19.47%
U.Y. Industries Private Limited 1,10,00,000 5.78% | 1,10,00,000 5.78%
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021 (Contd.)

19. Other Equity

As at

Particulars 31st March 2021

(% in Lakhs)

As at
31st March 2020

Reserves & Surplus

Share Premium 11,114.76 11,114.76
Retained Earnings 4,151.39 3,543.08
Total (A) 15,266.15 14,657.79
Other Reserves

Other Reserve (1,105.00) (1,208.33)
General Reserve &8 3.73
Special Reserve [Reserve Fund as per Section 45-IC of RBI Act, 1934] 1,217.97 978.68
FVOCI Equity Investments (691.08) (691.08)
Total (B) (574.38) (917.00)
Total Other Equity (A+B) 14,691.76 13,740.79
20 Revenue from Operations (% in Lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

FERTELES 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Interest on Loan 1,398.53 1,721.17
Sale of Stock in Trade
Sale of Shares & Securities - -
Total 1,398.53 1,721.17
21 Other Income (% in Lakhs)

For the year ended

Particulars 31st March 2021

Interest income on
Security Deposit

For the year ended
31st March 2020

39.07

Income Tax Refund -
Other Interest 103.45 41.70
Misc. Income - -
Total 103.45 80.77
22 Finance costs (¥ in Lakhs)

For the year ended
31st March 2021

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2020

Interest :
To Bank and Others 77.29 71.32
Total 77.29 71.32
23 Change in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade, by-products and finished goods (% in Lakhs)
Particul For the year ended | For the year ended (Increase) /
articuiars 31st March 2021 | 31st March 2020 Decrese
Inventories at the end of the year:
Shares & Securities 0.81 0.65 (0.17)
(A) 0.81 0.65 (0.17)
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Shares & Securities 0.65 0.84 0.19
(B) 0.65 0.84 0.19
(B-A) (0.17) 0.19
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021 (Contd.)

24 Employee benefits expense (% in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Salaries, wages and bonus 77.90 114.16
Contribution to gratuity fund - 0.17
Employer Contribution to ESI 0.01 -
Gratuity expense (Refer Note No. 29) 0.64 0.75
Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 0.67 2.73
79.23 117.81
25 Depreciation & amortization expense (% in Lakhs)
Particul For the year ended For the year ended
artieuiars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Depreciation on Tangible assets 10.99 14.08
10.99 14.08
26 Other Expenses (¥ in Lakhs)
Particular For the year ended | For the year ended
articuiars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Advertisement, Publicity & Sales Promotion 0.54 0.54
Communication Expenses 0.18 0.68
Demat Charges 0.02 0.01
Electricity Charges 0.17 0.66
Corporate Compliance Fees 1.77 1.77
Listing Fees 4.22 4.22
Filling Fees 0.06 0.15
CSR Expenditure (note below)* 22.29 31.00
Directors’ Sitting Fees 1.27 1.64
Donation 10.00 -
Repairs & Maintenance:
- Office Maintenance 0.51 0.51
- Computer Maintenance 0.22 0.19
- Repairs & Maintenance to others 0.75 0.98
Rates and taxes 0.07 0.07
Fees & Subscription - 0.13
Insurance 0.19 0.95
Legal and Professional Fees 3.04 4.46
Motor Car Expenses 1.77 0.98
Printing & Stationery 0.80 2.09
Rent 4.28 4.28
Rent Exp-Ind-As 0.11 0.11
Auditor’s Remuneration (note below)* 2.36 2.71
Travelling and Conveyance 40.59 2.05
Miscellaneous Expenses 1.58 2.27
96.81 62.44
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021 (Contd.)

*Note:
Payment to Auditors includes: (¥ in Lakhs)
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
a) As statutory audit fees 1.42 1.42
b) As tax audit fees 0.24 0.20
c) For other Services 0.71 1.10
2.36 2.71
Details for expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility: (¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
a) Gross amount required to be spent during the year 21.66 30.50
b) Amount spent during the year :

- Expenses paid in bank 22.29 31.00

- Expenses yet to be paid for - -
Total 22.29 31.00
c) Nature of expenditure:

- Revenue expenditure 22.29 31.00
Total 22.29 31.00
27 Earnings per Share (% in Lakhs)

Particul For the year ended For the year ended

artieuiars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Net Profit / (Loss) after tax for calculation of basic and diluted EPS R) 949.00 274.93
Weighted average number of equity shares (Basic) 19,02,38,329 19,02,38,329
Weighted average number of equity shares (Diluted) 19,02,38,329 19,02,38,329
Nominal Value of equity per share ) 5 5
Basic Earnings Per Share ) 0.50 0.14
Diluted Earnings Per Share ®) 0.50 0.14

28.Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (% in Lakhs)

Partioul As at As at
articulars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Contingent Liabilities
Default in TDS as per Traces 0.75 404.40

Total 0.75 404.40

Capital Commitments : There are no Capital Commitment as on 31st March, 2021
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021 (Contd.)

29. Employee Benefits
(a) Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity

The Gratuity scheme is a final salary defined benefit plan, that provides for lumpsum payment at the time of separation; based
on scheme rules the benefits are calculated on the basis of last drawn salary and the period of service at the time of separation
and paid as lumpsum. There is a vesting period of 5 years.

Description of Risk Exposures :

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may
vary overtime. Thus, the Company is exposed to various risks in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as follows :

i) Actuarial Risk: It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons :

Adverse salary growth experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary excalation will result into an
increase in obligation at arate is higher than expected.

Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption than the Gratuity
benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of
cashflow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and discount
rate.

Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the
Gratuity Benefits will be pid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on wheather the benefits are vested as at the
resignation date.

ii) Investment Risk:

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair
value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount
rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount
rate during the inter-valuation period.

iii) Liquidity Risk:

Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some
of such employees resign/retire from the company there can be strain on the cashflows.

iv) Market Risk:

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One actuarial
assumption that has a material effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in
discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption depends on
the yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at
the valuation date.

v) Legislative Risk:
Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the
legislation/regulation. The government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher

benefits to the employees. This will directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have to
be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

(b) Change in defined benefit obligation: (% in Lakhs)
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Opening defined benefit obligations 5.64 3.77
Current service cost 1.17 1.23
Interest cost 0.38 0.28
Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations :
Due to change in financial assumptions 0.19 0.53
Due to change in demographic assumption - (0.00)
Due to experience adjustments (2.20) (0.16)
Past service cost - -
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 5.18 5.64
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021 (Contd.)

(c) Reconciliation of plan assets: (% in Lakhs)
: As at As at
Opening value of plan assets 10.18 9.51
Interest income 0.74 0.76
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included
in interest income (0.04) (0.09)
Contributions by employer 0.17 0.00
Closing value of plan assets 11.05 10.18
(d) Net Liability/Assets recognized in the Balance Sheet is as follows: (% in Lakhs)
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Present value of funded obligations 5.18 5.64
Fair value of plan assets (11.05) (10.18)
Net Liability / (Assets) (5.88) (4.54)
(e) Bifurcation of liability as per schedule ll: (¥ in Lakhs)
. As at As at
Current Liability (0.88) (1.49)
Non-Current Liability (4.99) (3.05)
Net Liability (5.88) (4.54)
(f) Profit and Loss account for the period: (¥ in Lakhs)
Particul For the year ended For the year ended
articufars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Service cost:
Current service cost 1.17 1.23
Past service cost & loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlement - -
Net interest cost (0.36) (0.48)
Total included in Employee Benefit Expense 0.81 0.75
Total charge to P&L 0.81 0.75
(g) Other Comprehensive Income for the current period: (% in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations:

Due to change in financial assumptions 0.19 0.53
Due to change in demographic assumptions - (0.00)
Due to experience adjustments (2.20) (0.16)
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income 0.04 0.09
Amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive (Income)/Expense (1.98) 0.45
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021 (Contd.)

(h) Principle actuarial assumptions:

: As at As at
31 St MarCh 2021 31St MarCh 2020

Discount Rate 6.45% p.a. 6.85% p.a.
7% p.a. 0% for next 1

Salary Growth Rate year & 7%p.a.
thereafter

15% p.a. at 15% p.a. at

Withdrawal rates

younger ages
reducing to 2%
p.a. at older
ages..

younger ages
reducing to 2%
p.a. at older
ages.

Rate of return on plan assets 6.45% p.a. 6.85% p.a.

(i) Sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as shown below: (¥ in Lakhs)

. As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
Particulars
% Increase Amount Increase % Increase | Amount Increase

Discount rate sensitivity

Increase by 0.5% (4.48) 4.94 (4.56) 5.39
Decrease by 0.5% 4.87 5.43 4.95 5.92
Salary growth rate sensitivity

Increase by 0.5% 3.96 5.38 3.19 5.82
Decrease by 0.5% (3.95) 4.97 8.19) 5.46
Withdrawal rate sensitivity

Increase by 0.5% - 5.18 0.60 5.68
Decrease by 0.5% (0.03) 5.18 (0.74) 5.60
(i) Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligation: (% in Lakhs)

Particular As at As at
articufars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Expected Cashflows :

Year 1 0.35 0.27
Year 2 1.19 0.27
Year 3 0.28 1.21
Year 4 0.26 0.40
Year 5 0.24 0.39
Year 6 to 10 1.22 1.84

(k) Composition of Plan assets :

Particulars psat ps at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Policy of insurance 100% 100%

30. Theinformation as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has
been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. The
amount of principal and interest outstanding during the year is given below:
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021 (Contd.)

(% in Lakhs)

Particul As at As at
aiicuias 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

a) Amounts outstanding but not due during the year = -
b) Amounts due but not paid during the year - -
c) Amounts paid after appointed date during the year - -
d) Interest accrued but not paid during the year - -
e) Interest further due and payable even in the succeeding year - -

Total - -

31. Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally
imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have been
made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the

Board.
a) Regulatory Capital (Capital Adequacy Ratio) (% in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
articulars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Tier | capital 23,628.98 22,663.48
Tier Il capital - -
Total Capital 23,628.98 22,663.48
Risk Weighted Assets 26,803.14 21,327.28
Tier | Ratio (%) 1.13 2.83

Tier Il Ratio (%) - -

Regulatory capital consists of Tier | capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained earnings including
current year profit, statutory reserves and other free reserves less deferred revenue expenditure and intangible assets. The
other component of regulatory capital is Tier Il Capital Instruments, which includes subordinate bonds, deposits and loans.

32. Financial Risk Management and Policy

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company continues to focus on a system-based approach to business risk management. The Company’s financial risk
management process seeks to enable the early identification, evaluation and effective management of key risks facing the
business. Backed by strong internal control systems, the current Risk Management System rests on policies and procedures
issued by appropriate authorities, process of regular reviews / audits to set appropriate risk limits and controls, monitoring of
such risks and compliance confirmation for the same.

a) Marketrisk

The Company's business primarily 'Financial and Related Services' in nature, exposes it to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market variables such as interest rates. The company
regularly reviews its average borrowing / lending cost including proportion of fixed and floating rate borrowings / loan so as to
manage the impact of changes in interest rates.

i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The objectives of the Company's interest rate risk management processes are to lessen the
impact of adverse interest rate movements on its earnings and cash flows.
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Increase / (Decrease) Effect on Profit Effect on post-tax
in percentage before Tax equity

Particulars

31st March, 2021

g in Lakhs +) 1% (1,400.00) (1,047.65)
T in Lakhs (-)1% 1,400.00 1,047.65
31st March, 2020

T in Lakhs +) 1% (850.00) (633.07)
T in Lakhs (-)1% 850.00 633.07

b) Credit risk

Credit risk’ is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s loans and advances to customers and investment debt
securities.

i) Management of Credit risk

The Company has put in place well defined product programs with credit policy parameters defining the credit appetite for
each product.

ii) Write off policy

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped pursuing the recovery.
Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial instrument in statement of profit and loss.

iii) Credit quality analysis

The company’s policies for computation of expected credit loss are set out below :

Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is computed for loans and investments portfolio of the company. The loans and advances
portfolio comprises of the following :

i) Corporate Lending

i) Vechicle Lending

Investments measured at amortised cost is subjected to ECL.

c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the

Company might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the
cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of significant financial
liabilities at the reporting date. (% in Lakhs)

Less than

1year 1 to 5 years

Particulars ‘ On Demand > 5 years ‘ Total

31st March, 2021

Borrowings 1,400.00 - - - 1,400.00
Trade payables - - - - -
Other financial liabilities - 144.90 - - 144.90
1,400.00 144.90 - - 1,544.90

31st March, 2020
Borrowings 850.00 - - - 850
Trade payables - - - - -
Other financial liabilities - 75.97 - - 75.97
850.00 75.97 - - 925.97

d) Operational and business risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to
operate effectively, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to
financial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavours to manage these risks through
a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks. Controls include maker-checker controls, effective
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segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, such
as the use of internal audit.

e) Otherrisk-impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic

The outbreak of coronavirus has caused significant disturbance and slowdown of business operation for the year ended 31st
March, 2021. Apart from other adverse effects the pandemic has also resulted in a significantly lower business & put
constraint on recovery of overdues from customers during the quarter ended 31st March, 2021. The company will continue to
closely monitor any material changes arising from the future economic condition and impact on its business.

33. Financial Instruments

The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are
disclosed in note 2 (J) to the financial statements

(T in Lakhs)
As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
Particulars

FVOCI Amortised Cost FVOCI Amortised Cost
Assets :
Trade receivables - - - -
Investments 960.92 3,780.86 960.92 3,677.53
Loans - 20,7138.07 - 20,297.80
Cash and cash equivalents = 982.36 - 57.77
Other financial assets - 1,255.39 - 1,192.29
Total 960.92 26,731.68 960.92 25,225.39
Liabilities:
Borrowings - 1,400.00 - 850.00
Other financial liability - 144.90 - 75.97
Total - 1,544.90 - 925.97

Fair value hierarchy:

Ind AS 107, ‘Financial Instrument - Disclosure’ requires classification of the valuation method of financial instruments measured at
fair value in the Balance Sheet, using a three level fair-value-hierarchy (which reflects the significance of inputs used in the
measurements). The hierarchy gives the highest priority to un-adjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair-
value-hierarchy under Ind AS 107 are described below:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and place limited reliance on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level. This is the
case for unlisted equity securities included in level 3.

The investments included in Level 2 of fair value hierarchy have been valued using quotes available for similar assets and liabilities in
the active market. The investments included in Level 3 of fair value hierarchy have been valued using the cost approach to arrive at
their fair value. The cost of unquoted investments approximate the fair value because there is a range of possible fair value
measurements and the cost represents estimate of fair value within that range.

The following table summarises financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and financial assets that are
not measured at fair value on arecurring basis (but fair value disclosure are required):

B Annual Report 2020-21




\,"“ )
O
o(

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021 (Contd.)

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

As at 31st March, 2021
Financial Assets :
Financial investments at FVOCI

Unquoted Investments - - 960.00
Financial investments at Amortised Cost

Unquoted Investments - - 3,780.86
Total - - 4,741.78

As at 31st March, 2020
Financial Assets :
Financial investments at FVOCI

Unquoted Investments - - 960.00
Financial investments at Amortised Cost

Unquoted Investments - - 3,677.53
Total - - 4,638.45

34. Expenditure in Foreign Currency:
During the year there were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo.
35. Details of Loans and Guarantees given covered under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Company is exempted from the applicability of the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Meetings of Board and
its Powers) Amendment Rules, 2015 as the Company is RBI registered Non-Banking Financial Company whose
principal business inter-alia includes financing of companies.

36. Segment Information

The management is of the view that the business of the company predominantly falls within a single primary segment viz.
“Financial and Related Services” and hence there are no separate reportable segments as per Ind-AS 108 dealing with
segment reporting.

37. The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 19th January, 2017 considered and approved the
disinvestment of the entire shares of one of its material wholly owned subsidiary viz, Aristro Capital Markets Limited to
one or more entities subjected to the Shareholders approval vide Postal Ballot.

Further as per the combined Scrutinizer Report on E-voting & Postal Ballot dated 21st March, 2017 issued by Mr.
Prateek Kohli, Practicing Company Secretary (CP No 16457), Proprietor of M/s Prateek Kohli & Associates, Company
Secretaries, the Scrutinizer, the members of our Company had approved the proposal of disinvestment of the M/s
Aristro Capital Markets Limited to one or more entities.

The transaction for sale of shares is pending for regulatory approvals. Pending such transfer, the effect of the transaction
has not been reflected in these results and hence treated as “Non Current Assets held for Sale” as per Ind AS 105.

38. Tradereceivables and trade payables with respect to few parties are subject to confirmation and reconciliation, if any.

39. The Company and M/s Golden Goenka Credit Private Limited (Formerly known as Risewell Credit Private Limited) had
made an investment in M/s Purple Advertising Services Private Limited (the “Associate”) during the year 2012-13 and
2013-14 and as a result M/s Purple Advertising Services Private Limited became the Associate of the Company from
year 2013-14. As per the terms of agreement for investment, the Associate Company had agreed to issue a specified
number of its equity shares in lieu of investments made. However, out of the requisite numbers of shares, the Associate
Company had issued only 25,00,000 shares to the Company. Consequently, the agreement was cancelled and a money
suit was filed in the Hon’ble Calcutta High Court against the Associate Company.

40. Additional information as required by Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential
Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007 is furnished vide Annexure - Il is attached herewith.
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41. Related Party Disclosures
A. Related Parties:

|.  Subsidiaries

ii. Associates
iii. Enterprises significantly influenced

by Key management personnel or

their relatives

B. Key Management Personnel:

iv. Managing Director

v. Executive Director

vi. Chief Financial Officer

vii. Company Secretary

Aristro Capital Markets Limited.

Purple Advertising Services Private Limited.

Brihans Laboratories Private Limited.

Brima Sagar Maharashtra Distilleries Limited.
Quality Laminators.

R. K. Products & Co. (Unit - II)

R. K. Products & Co. (Unit - IlI)

R. K. Products & Co. (Unit - IV)

Sarvatra Technologies Private Limited.

Som Datt Landmark Hotels & Recreations Private Limited.

U.Y. Aviation Private Limited.
U.Y. Industries Private Limited.

Zircon Traders Limited.

Mr. Deepak Kothari w.e.f. 21st September, 2020

Mr. Udai Kothari upto 20th September, 2020
Mr. Dinesh Burman

Mr. Deepak Kothari upto 20th September, 2020

Mr. Alok Banerjee
Mrs. Amrita Mohta Kothari

The following is the summary of transactions with related parties:

Name of related party

Nature of transactions and 2020-21

outstanding balances

Enterprises significantly influenced by Key management personnel or their relatives :

(¥ in Lakhs)
2019-20

Brihans Laboratories Private Limited

Loan Given 35.00 50.00
Loan Repaid 35.00 40.00
Balance Receivable:

Loans 2,529.25 2,564.92
Interest Income 210.46 255.46
Investment in Shares °

Closing Balance of :

Investment in Shares 50.00 50.00
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The following is the summary of transactions with related parties: (% in Lakhs)

Name of related party Nature of transactions and 2020-21 2019-20

outstanding balances

Enterprises significantly influenced by Key management personnel or their relatives :

Loan Given - 225.00
Loan Repaid 100.00 2,465.00
Balance Receivable:

Loans 46.67 144.76
Interest Income 7.21 143.07

Brima Sagar Maharashtra Distilleries Limited*

Investment in Shares

Closing Balance of:
Investment in Shares 402.00 402.00

Closing Balance of:

Investment in OCD* 1,395.00 1,291.67
Loan Given 250.00 200.00
Loan Repaid

) ) Balance Receivable:
Quality Laminators

Loans 693.83 400.00
Interest Income 47.38 28.64
Loan Given 110.00 200.00
Loan Repaid 110.00 100.00
R. K. Products & Co. (Unit - Il) Balance Receivable :
Loans 110.76 102.06
Interest Income 9.41 2.29
Loan Given - 164.00
Loan Repaid - 183.00

R. K. Products & Co. (Unit - IIl) Balance Receivable -

Loans 1,940.10 1,960.12

Interest Income 161.19 187.92

Loan Given - 440.00

Loan Repaid - 407.00
R. K. Products & Co. (Unit - IV) Balance Receivable :

Loans 35.75 37.86

Interest Income 2.97 5.41

Loan Given

Loan Repaid 20.00 30.00
Sarvatra Technologies Private Limited Balance Receivable:

Loans 0.05 25.48

Interest Income 1.32 6.06
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The following is the summary of transactions with related parties: (Z in Lakhs)

Name of related party Nature of transactions and 2020-21 2019-20
outstanding balances

Enterprises significantly influenced by Key management personnel or their relatives :
Loan Given 1,351.60 1,167.50
Loan Repaid 593.00 356.00
U.Y. Aviation Private Limited Balance Receivable :
Loans 2,620.28 1,702.50
Interest Income 172.08 149.53
Loan Given - 158.00
Loan Repaid
Zircon Traders Limited Balance Receivable :
Loans 2,689.71 2,718.14
Interest Income 223.47 261.26
Loan Taken 650.00 1,200.00
Som Datt Landmark Hotels Loan Repaid - 350.00
& Recreations Private Limited Balance Payable:
Loans 1,535.68 914.19
Interest on Loan 77.29 71.32
Rent Paid 4.28 4.28
U.Y. Industries Private Limited Interest on Security Deposit i (0.08)
Key Management Personnel
Managerial Remuneration 11.33 48.00
Director Sitting Fees 0.12 -
Loan Given 5.00 1.390.00
Mr. Udai Kothari Loan Repaid 395.00 1,350.00
Balance Receivable:
Loans 9.24 436.05
Interest Income 9.24 64.28
Managerial Remuneration 30.33 24.00
Loan Given 500.00
Mr. Deepak Kothari Loan Repaid
Balance Receivable: 500.42
Interest Income 0.42 -
Mr. Dinesh Burman Managerial Remuneration 2.30 3.06
Mr.  Alok Banerjee Remuneration 9.50 12.00
Mrs. Amrita Mohta Kothari Remuneration 6.99 8.26

* Amount represent in books is amortise cost of ¥ 25 Crore invested in 0% Optionally Convertable Debenture during the year
as perInd As.
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42. Previous year’s figures have been re-grouped and or re-arranged wherever necessary, to cofirm the current year

classifiction.

For Das & Prasad For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 303054E)

Sd/- Sd/-
Sumit Kumar Rajgarhia Deepak Kothari
(Partner) (Chairman & Managing Director)
(Membership No. 068270) (DIN:- 00280323)
Sd/-
Place: Kolkata CA Alok Banerjee
Date: 30 June, 2021 (Chief Financial Officer)

Sd/-

Dinesh Burman
(Executive Director)
(DIN:-00612904)

Sd/-
Amrita Mohta Kothari
(Company Secretary)
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ANNEXURE - TO THENOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Refer Note 9]

Particulars of Stock for Trade as on 31st March, 2021 (Z in Lakhs)
Particul Face Value Quantity Cost Value Value
articuiars (Amount in 3) (Nos.) (Amount) (Amount)
Equity Shares: Trade (A)
Kappac Pharma Limited 10 20,200 53.70 -
Mystic Electronics Limited 10 22,305 122.30 0.81
Total 176.00 0.81

Particul Cost Value Value
articufars (Amount) (Amount)
Grand Total 176.00 0.81
Less: Provision for Diminution 175.18 -
Total 0.81 0.81

ANNEXURE IITO THENOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Refer note 40]

Disclosure of details as required in terms of paragraph 13 of Non-Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial

(Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015. (% in Lakhs)
Particulars Amoun't AE
Outstanding Overdue
Liabilities Side:
(1) | Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial company
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:
(i) | Debentures:
Secured - -
Unsecured (other than falling within the meaning of public deposit) - -
(i) | Deferred Credits - -
(iii) | Term Loans - -
(iv) | Inter-corporate loans and borrowing 1,535.68 135.68
(v) | Commercial Paper - -
(vi) | Other Loans: - -
Working capital facility
Public Deposit
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Particul Amount
SIHCRANS Outstanding
Assets Side :
(2)| Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those included in (4) below]:
(i) | Secured 2.16
(i) | Unsecured 20,710.91

(3)| Break-up of Leased Assets and Stock on Hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities
() | Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:

(@) | Financial Lease -
(b) | Operating Lease

(i) | Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(@) | Assets on hire -
(b) | Repossessed Assets -

(iii) | Others Loans counting towards AFC activities:
(@) | Loans where assets have been repossessed -
(b) | Loans other than (a) above -
(4)| Break up of Investments
Current Investments

(i) | Quoted:

(@) | Shares: (A) Equity* 0.81
(B) Preference -
(b) | Debentures and bonds -
(¢) | Units of mutual funds -
(d) | Government Securities -
(e) | Others -

(i) | Unquoted:
(@) | Shares: (A) Equity -
(B) Preference -
(b) | Debentures and bonds -
(c) | Units of mutual funds -
(d) | Government Securities -
(e) | Others -

* Stock for Trade

Long term investments

() | Quoted:

(@) | Shares: (A) Equity -
(B) Preference -
(b) | Debentures and bonds -

) | Units of mutual funds -
(d) | Government Securities -

)

Others Z

(i) [ Unquoted:
(@) | Shares: (A) Equity 4,037.86
(B) Preference -
(b) | Debentures and bonds -
(c) | Units of mutual funds -
(d) | Government Securities -
(e) | Others -
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Particulars

Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:

Category

Related Parties:

Amount net of provisions

Secured Unsecured

(% in Lakhs)

Amount
Outstanding

i
(@) | Subsidiaries - -
(b) | Companies in the same group - -
(c) | Other related parties 10,405.02 10,405.02
(i) | Other than related parties 7,744.47 7,744.47

Total 18,149.49 18,149.49

(i)

Category

Related Parties:

(6) |Investor group wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities
(both quoted and unquoted):

Market Value / Break
up or fair value of NAV

Book Value
(net of provisions)

(a) Subsidiaries 1,485.86 1,485.86

(b) Companies in the same group 900.00 900.00

(c) Other related parties 1,555.92 1,555.92

(i) | Other than related parties 800.00 800.00
Total 4,741.78 4,741.78

(i)

(7) |Other Information:

Particulars

Gross Non-Performing Assets

(% in Lakhs)

(a) Related parties

5,606.97

(b) Other than related parties

(i) | Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties -
(b) Other than related parties 3,081.16

(i)

Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TO THE MEMBERS OF U.Y. FINCORP LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of U.Y. Fincorp Limited (“the Company”), and its
subsidiary, (the Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date,

and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the
“consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2021, the consolidated profit and
consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended
onthat date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to following :

a) Note no 7 of the consolidated financial statements, in absence of the financial statements of associate company M/s
Purple Advertising Services Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2021, the results of same has not been
consolidated as per IND AS 28 on “Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures” in Consolidated Financial results.
Consequently the impact of the same and the value of investments in such associate are not ascertainable presently.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of above matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our

report.
Key Audit Matter (KAM) Auditor’s Response
1 Impairment loss allowance of loans and

advances

We started our audit procedures with the

Impairment loss allowance of loans and advances
(“Impairment loss allowance”) is a key audit matter
as the Company has significant credit risk exposure.
The value of loans and advances on the balance
sheet is significant and there is a high degree of
complexity and judgement involved for the
Company in estimating individual and collective
credit impairment provisions and write-offs against
these loans. The Company's model to calculate

understanding of the internal control environment
related to Impairment loss allowance. Our
procedures over internal controls focused on
recognition and measurement of impairment loss
allowance. We assessed the design and tested the
operating effectiveness of the selected key controls
implemented by the Company.

We also assessed whether the impairment
methodology used by the Company is in line with
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Key Audit Matter (KAM)

expected credit loss (“ECL”) is inherently complex
and judgement is applied in determining the three-
stage impairment model (“ECL Model”), including
the selection and input of forward-looking
information. ECL provision calculations require the
use of large volumes of data. The completeness and
reliability of data can significantly impact the

the requirements of Ind AS 109, “Financial
instruments”. More particularly, we assessed the
approach of the Company regarding the definition of
default, Probability of Default, Loss Given Default
and incorporation of forward-looking information for
the calculation of ECL.

For loans and advances which are assessed for

accuracy of the modelled impairment provisions.
The accuracy of data flows and the implementation
of related controls are critical for the integrity of the
estimated impairment provisions.

impairment on a portfolio basis, we performed
particularly the following procedures:.

e tested the reliability of key data inputs and related
management controls;

e checked the stage classification as at the balance
sheet date as per definition of default;

evalidated the ECL model and calculation by
involving our Information Technology Expert;

o calculated the ECL provision manually for a selected
sample; and

e assessed the assumptions made by the Company in
making accelerated provision, considering forward
looking information and based on the status of a
particular industry as on the reporting date.

For loans and advances which are written off during
the year under audit, we read and understood the
methodology and policy laid down and implemented
by the Company in this regard along with its
compliance on sample basis.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to
Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statement

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
todoso.

The respective Boards of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial
reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statement/ financial information of one (1) subsidiary whose financial statement/information
reflect total assets of Rs. 1051.81 Lakhs and net assets of Rs. 892.60 Lakhs as at March 31, 2021 and total net profit of Rs.
120.06 Lakhs and total comprehensive income of Rs. 120.06 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2021 and net cash inflow of
Rs. 38.89 Lakhs for the year ended on that date as considered in the consolidated financial statements. This financial
statement and other financial information have not been audited as per IND AS but have been certified by the Company's
Management and which have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial results,
in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary is based solely on the information
and certified results provided by the Parent Company's Management. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on March 31, 2021 taken on
record by the Boards of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India and the reports of the
statutory auditors of its subsidiary company incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies
incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2)
ofthe Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A” which is based on the auditors' reports of the Company
and its subsidiary company incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial reporting of those companies.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of section
197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations givento us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial
position of the Group as stated Note No 29 to the Ind AS financial statements.

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the parent Company

For Das & Prasad

Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No.303054E)
Sd/-

Sumit Kumar Rajgarhia
(Partner)

(Membership No. 068270)

UDIN - 21068270AAAAAV9328

Place: Kolkata

Date: June 30, 2021
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Annexure - A to the Auditors' Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of U.Y. Fincorp Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiary as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Boards of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAl').
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Annexure - A to the Auditors' Report

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company, have, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal financial control over financial
reporting criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to 1 (one) subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India,
was not audited by us, and hence no opinion is formed in respect of such subsidiary company.

For Das & Prasad

Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No.303054E)
Sd/-

Sumit Kumar Rajgarhia
(Partner)

(Membership No. 068270)

UDIN - 21068270AAAAAV9328

Place: Kolkata
Date: June 30, 2021
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021

(% in Lakhs)

FelsTiele M 31st I\/IAasr;: 2021 31st MA:r;tm 2020
I ASSETS
1 Financial assets
(@) Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 982.36 57.77
(b) Bank balance other than (a) above 4 1.55 1.55
(c) Receivables
(i) Trade receivables 5 - -
(d) Loans 6 20,713.07 20297.80
(e) Investment 7 3,255.92 3,152.59
(f) Other Financial Assets 8 1,255.39 1,192.29
2. Non-Financial Assets
(@) Inventories 9 0.81 0.65
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 23.08 -
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 10 574.70 589.23
(d) Investment in Property 12 11.89 11.89
(e) Property, Plant and Equipment 11 86.64 97.64
(f) Other Non-Financial Assets 13 0.76 0.62
3. Total Assets from discontinued operations 1,051.81 968.62
Total Assets 27,958.00 26,370.65
I LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
1 Financial liabilities
(a) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 14 1,400.00 850.00
(b) Other Financial Liabilities 15 144.90 75.97
2. Non-Financial Liabilities
(@) Provisions 16 2,557.69 2,574.82
(b) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) - 26.44
(c) Other Non-Financial Liabilities 17 85.77 107.95
3. Equity
(@) Equity Share capital 18 9,511.92 9,511.92
(b) Other Equity 19 14,098.50 12,885.90
4. Total Liabilities from discontinued operations 159.21 337.65
Total Liabilities and Equities 27,958.00 26,370.65

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements

The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For Das & Prasad
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 303054E)

1to 43

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sumit Kumar Rajgarhia Deepak Kothari Dubesh Burman

(Partner) (Chairman & Managing Director) (Executive Director)
(Membership No. 068270) (DIN:- 00280323) (DIN:- 00612904)

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Kolkata CA Alok Banerjee Amrita Mohta Kothari

Date: 30th June, 2021 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars Note For Year ended For Year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Revenue from Operations 20
Interest Income 1,398.53 1,721.17
(I) Total revenue from operations 1,398.53 1,721.17
(1) Other Income 21 103.45 80.77
(1) Total Income (I+11) 1,501.99 1,801.94
Expenses
Finance Costs 22 77.29 71.32
Impairment of Financial Instruments (15.62) 1,078.45
Change in Inventories of Finished Goods 23 (0.17) 0.19
Employee Benefits Expenses 24 79.23 117.81
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 25 10.99 14.08
Other Expenses 26 96.81 62.44
(IV) Total Expenses 248.53 1,344.28
(V) Profit/(Loss) before Tax (llI-1V) 1,253.46 457.66
(V) Tax Expenses
Current Tax 289.94 372.52
Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) 14.52 (215.06)
Income Tax relating to earlier years = 25.26
(VIl) Profit/(Loss) for the year (V-VI) 949.00 274.93
(Vi) Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations 120.06 (833.47)
(IX) Tax Expense of discontinued operations - -
(X) Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations (after tax) (VIlI-IX) 120.06 (833.47)
(XI) Profit/(Loss) for the year (VII+X) 1,069.06 (558.54)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expenses) (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 1.98 (0.45)
- Net Loss on Fair Value Changes - (241.08)
(XI) Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 1.98 (241.53)
(XIl) Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the period (XI+XII) 1,071.04 (800.08)
Basic & Diluted Earnings per equity share 27
[Nominal value: X 5 per share]
From Continuing Operation 0.50 0.14
From Discontinuing Operation 0.06 (0.44)
From Total Operation 0.56 (0.29)
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements 1to 43

The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Statement of Profit & Loss
This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date

For Das & Prasad For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 303054E)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sumit Kumar Rajgarhia Deepak Kothari Dubesh Burman
(Partner) (Chairman & Managing Director) (Executive Director)
(Membership No. 068270) (DIN:- 00280323) (DIN:- 00612904)

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Kolkata CA Alok Banerjee Amrita Mohta Kothari
Date: 30th June, 2021 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

(% in Lakhs)
Particular For the Year ended For the Year ended
articuiars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit before extraordinary items and tax 1,373.52 (375.82)
Adjustment for:
Depreciation/ Amortisation and Impairment 10.99 14.08
Finance costs 77.29 71.32
Adjustment from discontinued operations 201.98 (23.13)
Acturial Gain/ Loss on defined benefit obligation 1.98 (0.45)
Deemded Interest on Amortised Cost (103.45) (41.78)
Operating profit before Working Capital Changes 1,562.31 (355.78)
Adjustment for:
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and other Receivables - -
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans Assets (415.26) (71.73)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Bank Balances - 1.20
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets (63.10) 36.68
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (0.17) 0.19
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non Financial Assets (0.14) 0.10
(Increase)/Decrease in Total Assets from discontinued operations (89.59) 2,028.39
Increase/( Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 68.94 75.97
Increase/( Decrease) in Provisions (17.13) 1,079.76
Increase/( Decrease) in Other Non Financial Liabilities (22.18) (8.32)
Increase/( Decrease) in Total Liabilities from discontinued operations (254.10) (832.11)
Cash Generated from / (used in) Operations 819.57 1,954.35
Direct Taxes Paid/Refund received (340.44) (125.45)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities a 479.13 1,828.90
B. Cash Flow from investing activities
Capital Advances received - 100.00
(Purchase) / Additions of Property, Plant & Equipments (Net) 0.01 (22.29)
Purchase of Investment - (2,500.00)
Net Cash (Used)/Generated from discontinued operation 10.07 6.35
Net Cash Flow from /(used in) Investing Activities b 10.08 (2,415.95)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Borrowings 550.00 850.00
Tax on Dividend Paid - (0.25)
Finance cost (77.29) (71.32)
Net Cash (Used)/Generated from discontinued operation (87.33) (138.74)
Net Cash Flow from /(used in) Financing Activities c 435.38 639.69
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents a+b+c 924.59 52.64
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 57.77 5.13
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 982.36 57.77
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year
(a) Cash on hand 1.19 5.13
(b) Balance with banks - In Current accounts 981.17 52.64
Total 982.36 57.77

Explanations :

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Ind-AS 7 ‘Statement Cash Flow’.
2. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year’s classification.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

For Das & Prasad For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 303054E)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sumit Kumar Rajgarhia Deepak Kothari Dubesh Burman
(Partner) (Chairman & Managing Director) (Executive Director)
(Membership No. 068270) (DIN:- 00280323) (DIN:- 00612904)

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Kolkata CA Alok Banerjee Amrita Mohta Kothari

Date: 30th June, 2021 Chief Financial Officer, (Company Secretary)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

A. Equity Share Capital (Z in Lakhs)

As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020

Particulars
No. of shares | (Amount) No. of shares

At the beginning of the year 190,238,329 9,5611.92| 190,238,329 9,5611.92

Add: Addition during the year - -

At the End of the year 9,511.92 9,511.92

B. Other Equity (% in Lakhs)
Special Reserve
. Capital Securities Retained Other General [Reserve Fund Comr?rg:::nsive Total
Particulars Reserve ?:sn;:}\]/? Earning Reserve Reserve azsp_fé ife(;:;n Income of fair Equity
Act, 1934] Value

Balance as at 1st April, 2019 303.60 | 11,114.76 | 3,132.52 - 3.73 973.18 (466.13) 15,061.65
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year - - | (558.54) | (1,250.00) - 5.50 (366.50) (2,169.55)
Add: Fair Value Other Comprehensive Income - - (0.45) - - - - (0.45)
Add/(Less): Transfer to Special Reserve - - (5.50) - (5.50)
Add/Less: Transfer to Fair Value Reserve against OCD - - (41.67) 41.67 - - - -
Less: Tax on Dividend - - (0.25) - - - - (0.25)
Balance as at 31st March 2020 303.60 | 11,114.76 | 2,526.11 | (1,208.33) 3.73 978.68 (832.64) 12,885.90
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year - - | 1,069.06 - - - 141.56 1,210.62
Add/(Less): Other Comprehensive Income - - 1.98 - - 1.98
Add/Less: Transfer to Special Reserve - - | (239.29) - 239.29
Add/Less: Transfer to Fair Value Reserve against OCD - - (103.33) 103.33
Less: Tax on Dividend - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 303.60 |11,114.76 | 3,254.53 | (1,105.00) 3.73 1,217.97 (691.08) 14,098.50

Description of reserves in statement of changes in equity

i) Capital Reserve:

This reserve represents capital investment in subsidy received and amount forfeited towards warrant subscription.

ii) Securities Premium Reserve:

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is available for utilisation in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

iii) Retained Earnings:

Retained earnings represents accumulated profits earned by the company and remaining undistributed as on date.

iv) Other Reserve:

Other Reserve is created to recognise the effectes of present value of financial assets.

v) General Reserve:

General reserve is created and utilised in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

vi) Special Reserve [Reserve Fund as per Section 45-IC of RBI Act, 1934]:

Statutory reserves fund is required to be created by a Non-Banking Financial Company as per Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. The Company is not allowed to use the reserve fund except with authorisation of Reserve Bank of India.

vii) FVOCI Equity Investments:

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity instruments through other comprehensive
income. These changes are accumulated within the FVOCI equity investments reserve. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to
retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised.

As per our report of even date attached

For Das & Prasad For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 303054E)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sumit Kumar Rajgarhia Deepak Kothari Dubesh Burman
(Partner) (Chairman & Managing Director) (Executive Director)
(Membership No. 068270) (DIN:- 00280323) (DIN:- 00612904)

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Kolkata CA Alok Banerjee Amrita Mohta Kothari
Date: 30th June, 2021 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the period ended 31st March, 2021

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

U. Y. Fincorp Limited (UYFL) is a RBI registered Non-Banking Financial Company. The Company was originally
incorporated with the Registrar of Companies, West Bengal on October 7, 1993 as Golden Securities Private Limited.
Pursuant to Shareholders Resolution dated November 30, 1994. The Company was converted into Public Limited
Company and the name was changed to “Golden Securities Limited”. Fresh Certificate of Incorporation consequent to
such change of name was issued by the Registrar of Companies, West Bengal vide certificate dated December 13, 1994.
The name of our Company was changed to Golden Goenka Fincorp Limited and a fresh Certificate of Incorporation
reflecting the new name was issued by the Registrar of Companies, West Bengal on November 21, 2011. Subsequently
the name of Company was changed to its present name “U. Y. Fincorp Limited” and a fresh Certificate of Incorporation
reflecting the new name was issued by the Registrar of Companies, West Bengal on December 10, 2018. Company made
its public issue in the year 1995 and subsequently got its shares listed at BSE Limited and The Calcutta Stock Exchange
Limited in the same year. The RBI granted a certificate of registration dated April 20, 1998, permitting the Company to
carry on the business of a NBFC as a non deposit taking company. Subsequently, Company has received a fresh
certificate pursuant to change of name of Company. U. Y. Fincorp Limited is primarily focused in providing inter corporate
loans, personal loans and investments in securities and trading in securities.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A) Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosures in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 -
Inventories or value in use in Ind AS 36 — Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e | evel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can
access at the measurement date;

e | evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

¢ Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
B) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:-

¢ has power over the investee ; and
e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
¢ has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.When the Company has less than a majority
of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to
give it power, including:
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e the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

¢ potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties.
® rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss from the date the Company gains
control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component’s other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

The financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiary Companies have been consolidated on a line-by-line
basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The financial statements of the
subsidiary companies used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that of the Company.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred assets

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the
noncontrolling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

The following subsidiaries and associates have been considered in preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Country of % of ownership interest either directly or through subsidiaries

Particulars .
Incorporation As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Subsidiaries

i) Aristro Capital Markets Limited India 100% 100%
Associates
i) Purple Advertising Services Private Ltd. India 33.33% 33.33%

C) Use of estimates and critical accounting judgementsPrinciples of Consolidation

The preparation of the financial statements require the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom
equal the actual result. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting
policies.This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a high degree of judgement or complexity, and of
items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than
those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant
notes together with information about the basis of calculation foreach affected line item in the financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgements
The areas involving critical estimates and judgements are:
i) Taxation

The Company is engaged in “Financial and Related Services” and also subject to tax liability under MAT provisions.
Significant judgement is involved in determining the tax liability for the Company. Also there are many transactions
and calculations during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Further
judgement is involved in determining the deferred tax position on the balance sheet date.

i) Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation is based on management estimates of the future useful lives of the property, plant and
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equipment and intangible assets. Estimates may change due to technological developments, competition, changes
in market conditions and other factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in the depreciation
and amortisation charges.

iii) Employee Benefits

The present value of the defined benefit obligations and long term employee benefits depends on a number of factors
that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the
net cost (income) include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of
defined benefit obligations.

The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be
used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the
obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Company considers the interest rates of Government
securities that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related defined benefit obligation. Other key
assumptions for obligations are based in part on current market conditions.

iv) Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions and contingencies are based on Management’s best estimate of the liabilities based on the facts known at
the balance sheet date.

v) Impairment charges onloans and advances

The measurement of impairment losses requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These are based on the assumptions which are driven by a number of factors resulting in future
changes to the impairment allowance.A collective assessment of impairment takes into account data from the loan
portfolio (such as credit quality, nature of assets underlying assets financed, levels of arrears, credit utilization, loan to
collateral ratios etc.), and the concentration of risk and economic data (including levels of unemployment, country risk
and performance of different individual groups). These significant assumptions have been applied consistently to all
period presented.

vi) EIR method

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best
estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect
of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including
prepayments and penalty interest and charges).This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement
regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India’s base rate and
other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

vii) Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19

The Company has considered internal and external information up to the date of approval of financial statements. In
assessing the recoverability of property plant and equipments, receivables, intangible assets, cash and cash
equivalent and investments. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based
on current indicators of future economic conditions; the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of these
assets. The Company has concluded that the impact of COVID - 19 is not material based on these estimates .The
impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial
statements and the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

D

~

Property, plant and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is
applied to the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular
servicing, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the carrying
value of the replaced part is de-recognised. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major
components having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate items.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes all
direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Trial run expenses (net of revenue) are capitalised. Borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction is
capitalised as part of cost of the qualifying assets.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset, and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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E)

F)

G

~

H)

Intangibles

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with definite useful lives are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Depreciation is provided on prorata basis on straight line method at the rates determined based on estimated useful
lives of tangible assets where applicable, specified in Schedule Il to the Act. These charges are commenced from the
dates the assets are available for their intended use and are spread over their estimated useful economic lives or, in
the case of leased assets, over the lease period, if shorter. The estimated useful lives of assets and residual values are
reviewed regularly and, when necessary, revised. No further charge is provided in respect of assets that are fully
written down but are still in use. Depreciation on assets under construction commences only when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Impairment
i) Tangible and Intangible Assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying values of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying value of those assets may not be
recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in
order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and when
the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying
value that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately.

ii) Investmentin Subsidiaries and Associates

The carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in accordance with Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets as
asingle asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with Ind AS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

Leases

The Company determines whether an arrangement contains a lease by assessing whether the fulfillment of a
transaction is dependent on the use of a specific asset and whether the transaction conveys the right to use that asset
to the Company in return for payment. Where this occurs, the arrangement is deemed to include a lease and is
accounted for either as finance or operating lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company as lessee
(i) Operating lease

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the
term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

(ii) Finance lease
Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of lease, at the lower of the fair value of the property or the
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present value of the minimum lease payments.The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet
as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the lease.

The Company as Lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Company’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.Rental income from operating
leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are
structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the Company’s expected
inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue.

I) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on
initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in the statement
of Profit & Loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interestincome or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

a) Financial assets

Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances consist of :
(i) Cashand cash equivalents -

which includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term deposits which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and have maturities of
less than one year from the date of such deposits. These balances with banks are unrestricted for withdrawal and
usage.

(i) Other bankbalances
which includes balances and deposits with banks that are restricted for withdrawal and usage.
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell
these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company in respect of equity investments (other than in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) which are not
held for trading has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in
the fair value of such equity instruments. Such an election is made by the Company on an instrument by instrument
basis at the time of initial recognition of such equity investments

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried at fair
value through the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
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recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets.

e Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits and trade receivables

o Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

e Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions
that are within the scope of Ind AS 18.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The
application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cashflows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in the
statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and
loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset
meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance
is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the
OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets
which are creditimpaired on purchase/ origination.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
orittransfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant.

Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in
the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company uses certain derivative financial instruments to reduce business risks
which arise from its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate fluctuations. The instruments are confined
principally to forward foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swaps. The instruments are employed as hedges
of transactions included in the financial statements or for highly probable forecast transactions/firm contractual
commitments. These derivatives contracts do not generally extend beyond six months except for interest rate
derivatives.

Derivatives are initially accounted for and measured at fair value from the date the derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.

J) Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to state managed
retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the Company’s
obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit retirement schemes the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement gains and losses of
the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The service cost
and net interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) is treated as a net expense within employment costs.

Past service cost is recognised as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or when any related
restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised, whichever is earlier.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as reduced by the fair value plan assets.

Compensated absences

Short term compensated expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the related
service is rendered

K) Provision

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can
be reliably estimated. Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are measured on a
discounted basis.

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:

(a) by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity
has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities and;

(b) as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those
responsibilities.

L) Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured
at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of

Annual Report 2020-21




al
(0\”‘“‘ Wealch, s'lcc

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the
assets associated with that contract.

M) Income taxes

Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the statement of profit and loss because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying values of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. In contrast, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
itis nolonger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to cover or settle the
carrying value of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority and
there are legally enforceable rights to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities within that jurisdiction.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in the statement of profit and loss, except when they
relate to items credited or debited either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely
to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. MAT is
recognised as deferred tax assets in the Balance Sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable
that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

N

~

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable net of discounts, taking into account contractually defined terms and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Interestincome

Interest income from financial assets is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR’) to the gross carrying
amount of financial assets, other than credit-impaired assets and those classified as measured at Fair Value
throughProfit or Loss (FVTPL) or Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI). Interest Income on credit
impaired financial assets is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost (net of
provision) of the financial asset.

Dividend Income

Income from dividend is recognised when the Company’s right to receive such dividend is established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a
recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

0) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds
including interest expense calculated using the effective interest method, finance charges in respect of assets
acquired on finance lease. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale.
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P) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the
balance sheet.

Q) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision forimpairment, if any.

R) Segment Reporting
Identification of Segments

The management is of the view that the business of the company predominantly falls within a single primary segment
viz"Financial & Related Services" and hence there are no seperate reportable segments as per Ind-AS dealing with the
segment reporting.

S) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

T) Contingent Liabilities and Assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements, but are disclosed where an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the
Year ended 31st March 2021

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents (R In Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
QIHEESIS 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Cash on hand 1.19 5.13
Balances with banks:
- In Current accounts 981.17 52.64
Total 982.36 57.77
4. Bank Balance Other Than Cash and Cash Equivalents  In Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
QIHCEAIS 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Balances in unclaimed dividend account 1.55 1.55
Total 1.55 1.55
5. Trade receivables (Unsecured)  In Lakhs)

As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Particulars

Other Debts - -
Doubtful - _

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables = -
Total = -
Ageing of receivables that are post due but not impaired
60-90 days
91-180 days
>180 days

The credit period on sales of goods ranges from 14 to 60 days without security. No interest is charged on trade receivables
upto the end of the credit period.

In determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the company has used a practical expedient by computing the
expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account
historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is
based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix. There has been no significant
change in the credit quality of receivables past due for more than 180 days.

The Company does not generally hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a
legal right offset against any amounts owed by the Company to the counter-party.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Company considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is
limited due to the fact that the customer base is large and unrelated.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the
Year ended 31st March 2021

6. Loans (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) (X InLakhs)
Particul As at As at
articuiars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Secured by tangible assets
-Two-Wheeler Loans 2.16 2.16
Unsecured
Loan to Related parties 10,431.10 9,344.50
[Refer note 41]
Loan to Others 10,279.81 10,951.15
Total 20,713.07 20,297.80
7. Investments (% In Lakhs)

: As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Amount . Amount

A. Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares
In Subsidiaries (at Cost)
Equity shares of T 10/- each in Aristro Capital Markets Limited

In Associate (at Cost)
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each in Purple Advertising Services Private Limited 2,500,000 900.00 2,500,000 900.00

In Others (at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income FVOCI)*

Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each in Brima Sagar Maharashtra Distilleries Limited 600,000 160.92 600,000 160.92
Equity shares of T 10/- each in S2 Capital Services Private Limited 800,000 0.00 800,000 0.00
Equity shares of T 10/- each in Brihans Laboratries Private Limited 500,000 0.00 500,000 0.00
Equity shares of T 10/- each in Shalimar Lakecity Private Limited 3,200,000 800.00 3,200,000 800.00
Total (U] 1,860.92 1,860.92

B. Investment in Optionally Convertible Debentures (at Amortised Cost)

0% Optionally Convertible Debentures @ ¥ 1,00,000/- 2,500 1,395.00 1,291.67

Total () 1,395.00 1,291.67

Grand Total (1+11) 3,255.92 3,152.59
*Notes:

Cost of unquoted equity instruments has been considered as an appropriate estimate of fair value because of a wide
range of possible fair value measurment and cost represents the best estimate of fair value within the range.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the

Year ended 31st March 2021

8. Other Financial Assets (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

(3T In Lakhs)

Particular As at As at
articufars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Security Deposit 2.21 2.04
Other Advances 1.70 -
Interest accrued and due on Loans 1,223.76 1,137.06
Interest accrued but not due on Loans 20.51 46.58
Advance to Staffs 7.20 6.60
Total 1,255.39 1,192.29
9. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value) (% In Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
articuiars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Shares & Securities (At lower of cost and net realisable value) 0.81 0.65
(Refer Annexure | to Notes to Financial Statements)
Total 0.81 0.65
10. Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liability) (net < In Lakhs

Particulars

As at
31st March 2021

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, Plant & Equipment

(A)
Deferred Tax Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment
Others

(B)

Net Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) (B-A)

5.24 5.13
569.47 584.10
574.70 589.23
574.70 589.23

Movement in Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities

Particulars

As at 1st April, 2019
(Charged)/ Credit to
- profit & loss

- other comprehensive income

As at 31st March, 2020

Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)
(Charged)/ Credit to

- profit & loss

- other comprehensive income
As at 31st March, 2021
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

Property, Plant

& Equipment Others

4.73 369.44
0.40 214.66
5.13 584.10

589.23
0.11 (14.63)
5.24 569.47

574.70
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the
Year ended 31st March 2021

11. Property, Plant & Equipments (% In Lakhs)
Air Office & Furniture

Conditioner Electrical & Computers Office
Equipments Equipment | Fixtures Premises

Gross Block (At Cost):
Deemed Cost as at 1st April, 2019 1.13 417 15.36 7.83 4.51 74.80 107.80
Additions - - - 21.17 - 1.13 22.29

Disposals/Discard - - - - - - -

As at 31st March, 2020 1.13 417 15.36 29.00 4.51 75.93 |130.10
Additions - - - - 0.17 - 0.17
Disposals/Discard - - - 0.17 - - 0.17
As at 31st March, 2021 1.13 417 15.36 28.83 4.67 75.93 |130.09

Accumulated Depreciation/Amortisation:

As at 1st April, 2019 0.29 1.88 3.98 2.45 2.68 7.11 18.38
Charge / Adjustment for the year 0.22 1.03 2.95 2.30 1.05 6.54 14.08
Disposals/Discard - - - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2020 0.51 2.91 6.92 4.74 3.73 13.64 32.46
Charge / Adjustment for the year 0.16 0.57 2.18 1.75 0.41 5.92 10.99
Disposals/Discard - - - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2021 0.67 3.48 9.11 6.49 4.14 19.56 43.45
Net Block
As at 31st March, 2021 0.46 0.69 6.25 22.33 0.53 56.37 86.64
As at 31st March, 2020 0.62 1.26 8.43 24.26 0.78 62.28 97.64
As at 1st April, 2019 0.84 2.29 11.38 5.39 1.83 67.69 89.42
12. Investment in Property (% In Lakhs)
Particulars ASIET ADES

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Land 11.89 11.89
Total 11.89 11.89

Reconciliation of fair value : (% In Lakhs)
Particulars | Amount

Balance as on 1st April, 2019 8.71
Increase/ (Decrease) in Fair Value 0.39
Closing balance at 31st March, 2020 9.10
Increase/ (Decrease) in Fair Value (2.17)
Closing balance at 31st March, 2021 6.93

Discription of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on investment properties:

Valuation Technique Significant unobservable inputs

Land The present market value of the land at its vicinity is assessed on the basis of
Government rates & extensive local enquiries.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the
Year ended 31st March 2021

13. Other Non-Financial Assets (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) (% In Lakhs)
Particulars 31st MAasrgrtm 2021 |  3ist I\/IA:rsr: 2020
Prepaid Expenses 0.71 0.56
Others 0.06 0.06
Total 0.76 0.62
14. Borrowings (at amortised cost) (% In Lakhs)
Particulars ) | St i i
Unsecured Loan, repayable on demand
a) From Body Corporate - -
b) Loans from related party* 1,400.00 850.00
Total 1,400.00 850.00
* Loan from related party bears interest at the rate of 9% per annum.
15. Other financial Liabilities (% In Lakhs)
HanSuee 31st MA;r;tm 2021 31st I\/IAaSr:rt1 2020
Interest accrued & due on borrowings 135.68 64.19
Employee Related Liability 7.26 9.58
Other Liability for Expense 1.97 2.21
Total 144.90 75.97
16. Provisions (% In Lakhs)

As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Provision for employee benefits:

Gratuity (Refer note no. 29) (5.88) (4.37)
Contingent Provisions Against Standard Assets 37.77 36.70
Provisions Against Non-Performng Assets 2,525.81 2,542.49
Total 2,557.69 2,574.82
17. Other Non-Financial Liabilities (% In Lakhs)
) i ) | S e 23
Liability for Expenses - -
Unclaimed Dividend 1.55 1.55
Capital Advance 80.00 100.00
Statutory Liabilities 4.22 6.40
Total 85.77 107.95
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the

Year ended 31st March 2021

18. Share Capital

(% In Lakhs)

Particulars A 2
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Authorised
Equity Shares, % 5/- par value per share 10,000.00 10,000.00
20,00,00,000 (Previous year: 20,00,00,000), Equity Shares
10,000.00 10,000.00

Issued
Equity Shares, ¥ 5/- par value per share 9,660.06 9,660.06
19,32,01,120 (Previous year: 19,32,01,120), Equity Shares

9,660.06 9,660.06
Subscribed and Fully Paid-up
Equity Shares, X 5/- par value per share 9,511.92 9,511.92
19,02,38,329 (Previous year: 19,02,38,329), Equity Shares

9,511.92 9,511.92

(a) Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :
The reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding and the corresponding amount thereof, as at the Balance

Sheet date is set out below:

. As at 31st March 2021
Particulars

No. of shares (Amount)

T InLakhs
As at 31st March 2020

No. of shares (Amount)

At the beginning of the financial year 190,238,329 9,511.92 190,238,329 (9,511.92

Add: Shares issued as fully paid-up during the financial year

At the end of the financial year 190,238,329 | 9,511.92 | 190,238,329 |9,511.92

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect of each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends

and the repayment of capital:

The Company’s authorised capital consist of one class of shares, referred to as equity shares, having par value of ¥ 5/- each.

Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject

tothe approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining asset of
the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity

shares held by the shareholders.
(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31st March 2021
Name of the Share holders

No. of shares | % of Holding
Mr. Udai Kothari 33,483,699 | 17.60%

Mr. Deepak Kothari 33,440,499 | 17.58%
Lotus Capital Financial Services Limited 37,046,208 19.47%
U.Y. Industries Private Limited 11,000,000 5.78%

As at 31st March 2020

No. of shares | % of Holding
33,483,699 | 17.60%
33,440,499 | 17.58%
37,046,208 | 19.47%
11,000,000 | 5.78%

19. Other Equity

(% In Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Reserves & Surplus

Share Premium 11,114.76 11,114.76
Retained Earnings 3,254.53 2,526.11
Total (A) 14,369.29 13,640.87
Other Reserves

Capital Reserve 303.60 303.60
Other Reserve (1,105.00) (1,208.33)
General Reserve 3.73 3.73
Special Reserve [Reserve Fund as per Section 45-IC of RBI Act, 1934] 1,217.97 978.68
FVOCI Equity Investments (691.08) (832.64)
Total (B) (270.79) (754.97)
Total Other Equity (A+B) 14,098.50 12,885.90
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the
Year ended 31st March 2021

20. Revenue from Operations (X In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Interest on Loan 1,398.53 1,721.17
Sale of Stock in Trade
Sale of Shares & Securities - -

Total 1,398.53 1,721.17

In Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended

21. Other Income

Particulars

31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Interest income on
Security Deposit - -

Income Tax Refund - 39.07
Other interest 103.45 41.70
Misc. Income = -
Total 103.45 80.77

22. Finance Costs % In Lakhs)

Particul For the year ended | For the year ended
articuiars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Interest:
To bank and others 77.29 71.32
Total 77.29 71.32

23. Change in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade, by-products and finished goods  In Lakhs)

For the year ended | For the year ended (Increase) /

FELElE 31st March 2021 | 31st March 2020 Decrese

Inventories at the end of the year:

Shares & Securities 0.81 0.65 (0.17)
(A) 0.81 0.65 (0.17)
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Shares & Securities 0.65 0.84 0.19
(B) 0.65 0.84 0.19
(B-A) (0.17) 0.19

24. Employee benefits expense % In Lakhs)

Particul For the year ended | For the year ended
articliars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Salaries, wages and bonus 77.90 114.16
Contribution to gratuity fund = 0.17
Employer Contribution to ESI 0.01 -
Gratuity expense (Refer Note No. 29) 0.64 0.75
Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 0.67 2.73

79.23 117.81

25. Depreciation & amortization expense In Lakhs

Particul For the year ended For the year ended
articuiars 31st March 2021 |  31st March 2020
Depreciation on Tangible assets 10.99 14.08

10.99 14.08
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the

Year ended 31st March 2021

26. Other Expenses

(X In Lakhs)

For the year ended

31st March 2020

Particulars For the year ended
. 31st March 2021

Advertisement, Publicity & Sales Promotion 0.54 0.54
Communication Expenses 0.18 0.68
Demat Charges 0.02 0.01
Electricity Charges 0.17 0.66
Corporate Compliance Fees 1.77 1.77
Listing Fees 4.22 4.22
Filling Fees 0.06 0.15
CSR Expenditure (note below)* 22.29 31.00
Directors’ Sitting Fees 1.27 1.64
Donation 10.00 -

Repairs & Maintenance:
- Office Maintenance 0.51 0.51
- Computer Maintenance 0.22 0.19
- Repairs & Maintenance to others 0.75 0.98
Rates and taxes 0.07 0.07
Fees & Subscription - 0.18
Insurance 0.19 0.95
Legal and Professional Fees 3.04 4.46
Motor Car Expenses 1.77 0.98
Printing & Stationery 0.80 2.09
Rent 4.28 4.28
Rent Exp-Ind-As 0.11 0.11
Auditor’'s Remuneration (note below)* 2.36 2.71
Travelling and Conveyance 40.59 2.05
Miscellaneous Expenses 1.58 2.27
96.81 62.44

*Note:
Payment to Auditors includes : R In Lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
a) As statutory audit fees 1.42 1.42
b) As tax audit fees 0.24 0.20
c) For other Services 0.71 1.10
2.36 2.71
Details of Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibilities ( In Lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31stMarch 2021 |  31st March 2020
a) Gross amount required to be spent during the year 21.66 30.50
b) Amount spent during the year:
Expenses paid in bank 22.29 31.00
Expenses yet to be paid for - -
Total 22.29 31.00
c) Nature of expenditure:
Revenue expenditure 22.29 31.00
Total 22.29 31.00
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the

Year ended 31st March 2021

27 The details of subsidiaries and associates are as follows:-

(X

Wealth, suc
C,

in Lakhs)

Particulars Country of % Holding % Holding
Incorporation As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Subsidiaries
i) Aristro Capital Markets Limited India 100% 100%
Associates
i) Purple Advertising Services Private Ltd. India 33.33% 33.33%

[Refer note (a) herein below]

Note: (a) Financials of the said company could not be completed and hence same has not been considered for consolidation
purpose.
(% in Lakhs)

For the year ended
31st March 2020

28 Earnings per Share

For the year ended
31st March 2021

Particulars

Net Profit / (Loss) after tax for calculation of basic and diluted EPS

from Continuing Operations R) 949.00 274.93
Net Profit / (Loss) after tax for calculation of basic and diluted EPS
from Discontinuing Operations ) 120.06 (833.47)
Weighted average number of equity shares (Basic) 19,02,38,329 19,02,38,329
Weighted average number of equity shares (Diluted) 19,02,38,329 19,02,38,329
Nominal Value of equity per share R) 5 5
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share R)
(@) From Continuing Operations 0.50 0.14
(b) From Discontinuing Operations 0.06 (0.44)
© From Total Operations 0.56 (0.29)
29. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (% in Lakhs)
As at As at

Particulars

Contingent Liabilities

31st March 2021

31st March 2020

Default in TDS as per Traces 0.75 4.04
Income Tax Matter - 1,051,70
0.75 1,055.75

Total

Capital Commitments : There are no capital commitment as on 31st March, 2021.

30.Employee Benefits
(a) Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity

The Gratuity scheme is a final salary defined benefit plan, that provides for lumpsum payment at the time of
separation; based on scheme rules the benefits are calculated on the basis of last drawn salary and the period of service

at the time of separation and paid as lumpsum. There is a vesting period of 5 years.

Description of Risk Exposures :

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which
may vary overtime. Thus, the Company is exposed to various risks in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as

follows:

i) Actuarial Risk: It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following

reasons :

Adverse salary growth experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary excalation will result into an

increase in obligation at a rate is higher than expected.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the
Year ended 31st March 2021

Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption than the Gratuity
benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of
cashflow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and discount rate.

Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the
Gratuity Benefits will be paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on wheather the benefits are vested as at
the resignation date.

i) Investment Risk:

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be
the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the
future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant
changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

iii) Liquidity Risk:
Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits.
If some of such employees resign/retire from the company there can be strain on the cashflows.

iv) Market Risk:

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One
actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money.
An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This
assumption depends on the yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed
tofluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

v) Legislative Risk:
Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the
legislation/regulation. The government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay

higher benefits to the employees. This will directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the
same will have to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

(b) Change in defined benefit obligation: (¥ in Lakhs)

Particul As at As at
articuiars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Opening defined benefit obligations 5.64 3.77

Current service cost 1.17 1.23

Interest cost 0.38 0.28

Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations:

Due to change in financial assumptions 0.19 0.53

Due to change in demographic assumption - (0.00)

Due to experience adjustments (2.20) (0.16)

Past service cost - =

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 5.18 5.64

(c) Reconciliation of plan assets: (¥ in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at

articuiars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Opening value of plan assets 10.18 9.51

Interest income 0.74 0.76

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included (0.04) (0.09)

in interest income

Contributions by employer 0.17 0.00

Closing value of plan assets 11.05 10.18
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the
Year ended 31st March 2021

(d) Net Liability/Assets recognized in the Balance Sheet is as follows: (% in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
articuiars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Present value of funded obligations 5.18 5.64
Fair value of plan assets (11.05) (10.18)
Net Liability / (Assets) (5.88) (4.54)
(e) Bifurcation of liability as per schedule lli: (X in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
articuiars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Current Liability (0.88) (1.49)
Non-Current Liability (4.99) (3.05)
Net Liability (5.88) (4.54)
(f) Profit and Loss account for the period: (¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
ied 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Service cost :

Current service cost 1.17 1.23
Past service cost & loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlement - -
Net interest cost (0.36) (0.48)
Total included in ‘Employee Benefit Expense’ 0.81 0.75
Total charge to P&L 0.81 0.75
(g) Other Comprehensive Income for the current period: (¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
1eu 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations :

Due to change in financial assumptions 0.19 0.53
Due to change in demographic assumptions - (0.00)
Due to experience adjustments (2.20) (0.16)
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income 0.04 0.09
Amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive (Income) / Expense (1.98) 0.45

(h) Principle actuarial assumptions:

Particul As at As at
articulars 31st March 2021 1st April 2020
Discount Rate 6.45% p.a. 6.85% p.a.
7.00% p.a. 0.00% for next 1 year
Salary Growth Rate & 7% p.a. thereafter.
Withdrawal rates 15% p.a. at 15% p.a. at younger

younger ages ages reducing to 2%
reducingto2% p.a. p.a.atolderages.
at older ages..

Rate of return on plan assets 6.45% p.a. 6.85% p.a.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the
Year ended 31st March 2021

(i) Sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as shown below: (% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
% Increase Amount Increase % Increase | Amount Increase
Discount rate sensitivity
Increase by 0.5% (4.48) 4.94 (4.56) 5.39
Decrease by 0.5% 4.87 5.43 4.95 5.92
Salary growth rate sensitivity
Increase by 0.5% 3.96 5.38 3.19 5.82
Decrease by 0.5% (3.95) 4.97 (8.19) 5.46
Withdrawal rate sensitivity
Increase by 0.5% - 5.18 0.60 5.68
Decrease by 0.5% (0.03) 5.18 (0.74) 5.60
(j) Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligation: (% in Lakhs)

Particul As at As at
articufars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Expected Cashflows :

Year 1 0.35 0.27
Year 2 1.19 0.27
Year 3 0.28 1.21
Year 4 0.26 0.40
Year 5 0.24 0.39
Year 6 to 10 1.22 1.84

(k) Composition of the plan assets :

Particular As at As at
EINGUETS 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Policy of insurance 100% 100%

31. Theinformation as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has
been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.
The amount of principal and interest outstanding during the year is given below:

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
ieu 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

a) Amounts outstanding but not due during the year - -
b) Amounts due but not paid during the year - -
c) Amounts paid after appointed date during the year - -
d) Interest accrued but not paid during the year - -
e) Interest further due and payable even in the succeeding year - -

Total - -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the
Year ended 31st March 2021

32. Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally
imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have been
made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the

Board.
a) Regulatory Capital (Capital Adequacy Ratio) (% in Lakhs)
. As at As at

31 St MarCh 2021 31St MarCh 2020
Tier | capital 23,628.98 22,663.48
Tier Il capital - -
Total Capital 23,628.98 22,663.48
Risk Weighted Assets 26,803.14 21,327.28
Tier | Ratio (%) 1.13 2.83

Tier Il Ratio (%) - -

Regulatory capital consists of Tier | capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained earnings including
current year profit, statutory reserves and other free reserves less deferred revenue expenditure and intangible assets. The
other component of regulatory capital is Tier || Capital Instruments, which includes subordinate bonds, deposits and loans.

33. Financial Risk Management and Policy

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company continues to focus on a system-based approach to business risk management. The Company’s financial risk
management process seeks to enable the early identification, evaluation and effective management of key risks facing the
business. Backed by strong internal control systems, the current Risk Management System rests on policies and procedures
issued by appropriate authorities, process of regular reviews / audits to set appropriate risk limits and controls, monitoring of
such risks and compliance confirmation for the same.

a) Marketrisk

The Company's business primarily 'Financial and Related Services' in nature, exposes it to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market variables such as interest rates. The company
regularly reviews its average borrowing/lending cost including proportion of fixed and floating rate borrowings/loan so as to
manage the impact of changes in interest rates.

i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The objectives of the Company's interest rate risk management processes are to lessen the
impact of adverse interest rate movements on its earnings and cash flows.

Particulars Increase/(Decrease) Effect on profit Effect on post—tax
in percentage before tax equity

31st March 2021
% in lakhs (+)1% (1,400.00) (1,047.65)
T in lakhs 1% 1,400.00 1,047.65
31st March 2020
T in lakhs (+)1% (850.00) (633.07)
T in lakhs 1% 850.00 633.07
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the
Year ended 31st March 2021

b) Credit risk

Credit risk’ is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s loans and advances to customers and investment debt
securities.

i) Management of Credit risk

The Company has put in place well defined product programs with credit policy parameters defining the credit appetite for
each product.

ii) Write off policy

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped pursuing the recovery.
Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial instrument in statement of profit and loss.

ili) Credit quality analysis
The company’s policies for computation of expected credit loss are set out below :

Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is computed for loans and investments portfolio of the company. The loans and advances
portfolio comprises of the following :

i) Corporate Lending

i) Vechicle Lending

Investments measured at amortised cost is subjected to ECL.

c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the

Company might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the
cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities at the
reporting date.

(T in Lakhs)

Less than
1 year

1 to 5 years > 5 years

Particulars On Demand

31st March, 2021

Borrowings 1,400.00 - - - 1,400.00
Trade payables - - - - -
Other financial liabilities - 144.90 - - 144.90
1,400.00 144.90 - - 1,544.90

31st March, 2020
Borrowings 850 - - - 850
Trade payables - - - - -
Other financial liabilities - 75.97 - - 75.97
850 75.97 - - 925.97

d) Operational and business risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to
operate effectively, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to
financial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavours to manage these risks through
a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks. Controls include maker-checker controls, effective
segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, such
as the use of internal audit.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the
Year ended 31st March 2021

e) Otherrisk-impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic

The outbreak of coronavirus has caused significant disturbance and slowdown of business operation for the year ended 31st
March, 2021. Apart from other adverse effects the pandemic has also resulted in a significantly lower business & put
constraint on recovery of overdues from customers during the quarter ended 31st March, 2021. The company will continue to
closely monitor any material changes arising from the future economic condition and impact on its business.

34. Financial Instruments

The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are
disclosed in note 2 (J) to the financial statements

(¥ in Lakhs)

As at 31st March 2021

) As at 1st April 2020
Particulars
FVOCI Amortised Cost FVOCI Amortised Cost

Assets:

Trade receivables - - - -
Investments 960.92 3,780.86 960.92 3,677.53
Loans - 20,7138.07 - 20,297.80
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 982.36 - 57.77
Other Financial Assets - 1,255.39 - 1,192.29
Total 960.92 26,731.68 960.92 25,225,39
Liabilities:

Borrowings - 1,400.00 - 850.00
Other Financial Liability - 144.90 - 75.97
Total - 1,544.90 - 925.97

Fair value hierarchy:

Ind AS 107, ‘Financial Instrument - Disclosure’ requires classification of the valuation method of financial instruments
measured at fair value in the Balance Sheet, using a three level fair-value-hierarchy (which reflects the significance of inputs
used in the measurements). The hierarchy gives the highest priority to un-adjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The
three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy under Ind AS 107 are described below:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable market data and place limited reliance on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level. This
is the case for unlisted equity securities included in level 3.

The investments included in Level 2 of fair value hierarchy have been valued using quotes available for similar assets and
liabilities in the active market. The investments included in Level 3 of fair value hierarchy have been valued using the cost
approach to arrive at their fair value. The cost of unquoted investments approximate the fair value because there is a range of
possible fair value measurements and the cost represents estimate of fair value within that range.

The following table summarises financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and financial assets
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosure are required):
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(X in Lakhs)

Particulars ‘ Level 1 Level 2 ‘ Level 3
As at 31st March, 2021
Financial Assets :
Financial investments at FVOCI
Unquoted Investments - - 960.92
Financial investments at Amortised Cost
Unquoted Investments - - 3,780.86
Total - - 4,741.78
As at 31st March, 2020
Financial Assets :
Financial investments at FVOCI/
Unquoted Investments - - 960.92
Financial investments at Amortised Cost
Unquoted Investments - - 3,677.53
Total - - 4,638.45

35. Expenditure in Foreign Currency:
During the year there were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo.
36. Details of Loans and Guarantees given covered under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Company is exempted from the applicability of the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Meetings of Board and
its Powers) Amendment Rules, 2015 as the Company is RBI registered Non-Banking Financial Company whose
principal business inter-alia includes financing of companies.

37. Segment Information

The management is of the view that the business of the company predominantly falls within a single primary segment viz.
“Financial and Related Services” and hence there are no searate reportable segments as per Ind-AS 108 dealing with
segment reporting.

38. The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 19th January, 2017 considered and approved the
disinvestment of the entire shares of one of its material wholly owned subsidiary viz, Aristro Capital Markets Limited to
one or more entities subjected to the Shareholders approval vide Postal Ballot.

Further as per the combined Scrutinizer Report on E-voting & Postal Ballot dated 21st March, 2017 issued by Mr.
Prateek Kohli, Practicing Company Secretary (CP No 16457), Proprietor of M/s Prateek Kohli & Associates, Company
Secretaries, the Scrutinizer, the members of our Company had approved the proposal of disinvestment of the M/s
Aristro Capital Markets Limited to one or more entities.

The transaction for sale of shares is pending for regulatory approvals. Pending such transfer, the effect of the transaction
has not been reflected in these results and hence treated as "Non Current Assets held for Sale" as per Ind AS 105.

39. Tradereceivables and trade payables with respect to few parties are subject to confirmation and reconciliation, if any.

40. The Company and M/s Golden Goenka Credit Private Limited (Formerly known as Risewell Credit Private Limited) had
made an investment in M/s Purple Advertising Services Private Limited (the “Associate”) during the year 2012-13 and
2013-14 and as a result M/s Purple Advertising Services Private Limited became the Associate of the Company from
year 2013-14. As per the terms of agreement for investment, the Associate Company had agreed to issue a specified
number of its equity shares in lieu of investments made. However, out of the requisite numbers of shares, the Associate
Company had issued only 25,00,000 shares to the Company. Consequently, the agreement was cancelled and a money
suit was filed in the Hon’ble Calcutta High Court against the Associate Company.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

41. Related Party Disclosures

A. Related Parties:

i. Subsidiaries : Avristro Capital Markets Limited
ii. Associates : Purple Advertising Services Private Limited.
iii. Enterprises significantly influenced : Brihans Laboratories Private Limited.
by Key management personnel or : Brima Sagar Maharashtra Distilleries Limited.
their relatives : Quality Laminators.

R. K. Products & Co. (Unit - Il)

R. K. Products & Co. (Unit - llI)

R. K. Products & Co. (Unit - IV)

Sarvatra Technologies Private Limited.

Som Datt Landmark Hotels & Recreations Private Limited

U.Y. Aviation Private Limited.

U.Y. Industries Private Limited.

Zircon Traders Limited.

Golden Goenka Credit Private Limited.

Girdhar Fiscal Services Private Limited.

Golden Goenka Commerce Private Limited.
B. Key Management Personnel :

iv. Managing Director : Mr. Deepak Kothari (w.e.f. 21st September 2020)
Mr. Udai Kothari (upto 20th September 2020)

v. Executive Director : Mr. Dinesh Burman
Mr. Deepak Kothari (upto 20th September 2020)

vi. Chief Financial Officer : Mr. Alok Banerjee
vii. Company Secretary : Mrs. Amrita Mohta Kothari
viii. Director : Mr. Girdhari Lal Goenka

Mr. Bal Kishan Gourisaria

Mr. Vinay Kumar Goenka

C. Relative of Key Management Personnel : Mrs. Raj Goenka
Mr. Rajeev Goenka
Ms. Nikita Goenka

Mrs. Puja Goenka
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

The following is the summary of transactions with related parties:

Name of related party Nature of transactions and 2020 - 20\1 2019-20
outstanding balances

Enterprises significantly influenced by Key management personnel or their relatives :

(% in Lakhs)

Loan Given 35.00 50.00

Loan Repaid 35.00 40.00

Balance Receivable:

Loans 2,529.25 2,564.92
Brihans Laboratories Private Limited Interest Income 210.46 255.46

Investment in Shares

Closing Balance of :

Investment in Shares 50.00 50.00
Loan Given - 225.00
Loan Repaid 100.00 2,465.00
Balance Receivable:

Loans 46.67 144.76
Interest Income 7.21 143.07

Brima Sagar Maharashtra Distilleries Limited*
Investment in Shares

Closing Balance of:

Investment in Shares 402.00 402.00

Closing Balance of:

Investment in OCD* 1,395.00 1,291.67

Loan Given 250.00 200.00
Quality Laminators Loan Repaid

Balance Receivable:

Loans 693.83 400.00

Interest Income 47.38 28.64

Loan Given 110.00 200.00

Loan Repaid 110.00 100.00
R. K. Products & Co. (Unit - II) Balance Receivable

Loans 110.76 102.06

Interest Income 9.41 2.29
R. K. Products & Co. (Unit - Il Loan Given - 1,64.00

Loan Repaid - 183.00

Balance Receivable :

Loans 1,940.10 1,960.12

Interest Income 161.19 187.92

Loan Given - 440.00

Loan Repaid - 407.00
R. K. Products & Co. (Unit - IV) Balance Receivable :

Loans 35.75 37.86

Interest Income 2.97 5.41
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The following is the summary of transactions with related parties: (% in Lakhs)

Name of related party Nature of transactions and 2020- 21 2019-20

outstanding balances

Enterprises significantly influenced by Key management personnel or their relatives :

Loan Given
Loan Repaid 20.00 30.00

Sarvatra Technologies Private Limited -
Balance Receivable:

Loans 0.05 25.48
Interest Income 1.32 6.06
Loan Given 1,351.60 1,167.50
Loan Repaid 593.00 356.00

U.Y. Aviation Private Limited .
Balance Receivable :

Loans 2,620.28 1,702.50
Interest Income 172.08 149.53
Loan Given - 158.00
Loan Repaid

Zircon Traders Limited
Balance Receivable :

Loans 2,689.71 2,718.14
Interest Income 223.47 261.26
Loan Taken 650.00 1,200.00
Som Datt Landmark Hotels Loan Repaid ) 350.00
& Recreations Private Limited Balance Payable:
Loans 1,535.68 914.19
Interest on Loan 77.29 71.32
Rent Paid 4.28 4,28
U-Y. Industries Private Limited Interest on Security Deposit - (0.08)
Golden Goenka Credit Private Limited Brokerage Income 5.02 2.14
Girdhar Fiscal Services Private Limited Brokerage Income 2.96 2.30
Golden Goenka Commerce Private Limited Brokerage Income 0.31 0.38
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(¥ in Lakhs
Nature of transactions and 2020 - 21 2019-20
outstanding balances
Key Management Personnel
Managerial Remuneration 11.33 48.00
Director Sitting Fees 0.12 -
Loan Given 5.00 1.390.00
Mr. Udai Kothari Loan Repaid 395.00 1,350.00
Balance Receivable:
Loans 9.24 436.05
Interest Income 9.24 64.28
Managerial Remuneration 30.33 24.00
Loan Given 500.00
Mr. Deepak Kothari Loan Repaid
Balance Receivable: 500.42
Interest Income 0.42 -
Mr. Dinesh Burman Managerial Remuneration 2.30 3.06
Mr. Alok Banerjee Remuneration 9.50 12.00
Mrs. Amrita Mohta Kothari Remuneration 6.99 8.26
Mr. Girdhari Lal Goenka Brokerage Income 0.08 0.07
Mrs Raj Goenka Brokerage Income 0.09 0.16
Mr Rajeev Goenka Brokerage Income 0.07 0.14
Ms Nikita Goenka Brokerage Income 0.22 0.11
Mrs Rashi Goenka Brokerage Income 0.15 -
Mrs Puja Goenka Remuneration 3.90 3.60
* Amount represent in books is amortise cost of ¥ 25 Crore invested in 0% Optionally Convertable Debenture during the year
asperindAs.
42. Additional Information in repesct of Net Assets and Profir / Loss of each entity within the group and their proportionate
share of the totals.

Net Assets i.e. Total Assets
Minus Total Liabilities

Share in Profit & Loss

Name of the entity in the As % of As % of

Consolidated Amount Consolidated Amount

Net Assets Net Assets

Parent:
U. Y. Fincorp Limited 96.44% 24,203.69 88.77% 949.00
Subsidiaries:
Aristro Capital Markets Limited 3.56% 892.60 11.23% 120.06
Associates:
Purple Advertising Services Private Limited - - - -
[Refer note (a) herein below]
Total 100% 25,096.29 100% 1,069.06

Note: (a) Financials of the said company could not be completed and hence same has not been considered for
consolidation purpose
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43. Previous year’s figures have been re-grouped and / or re-arranged wherever necessary, to cofirm the current year
classifiction.

For Das & Prasad For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 303054E)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sumit Kumar Rajgarhia Deepak Kothari Dubesh Burman
(Partner) (Chairman & Managing Director) (Executive Director)
(Membership No. 068270) (DIN:- 00280323) (DIN:- 00612904)

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Kolkata CA Alok Banerjee Amrita Mohta Kothari
Date: 30th June, 2021 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
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Forward Looking Statement

Statements contained in this Report, may constitute “forward-looking statements”. Forward-looking statements are generally

” u "«

identifiable by the use of the words “may”, “will”, “should”, “plan”, “expect”,

" ” o ”

anticipate”, “estimate”, “believe”, “intend”, “project”, “goal”
or “target” or the negative of these words or other variations on these words or comparable terminology. Forward-looking statements
involve a number of known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause our or our industry's actual results, levels
of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, levels of activity, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. In addition to these, other important factors that could cause
actual results to differ materially from our expectations include international economic and political conditions; changes in laws,
regulations and accounting standards; distributor and licensee relationships and actions; effectiveness of spending and marketing
programmes; and unusual weather patterns. U. Y. Fincorp Limited does not undertake publically to update or revise any forward looking
statement that may be made in this Report, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. Although the Company
believes that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, it cannot guarantee future results, levels of
activity, performance or achievements.
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